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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman)
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Mr. Chen Zheng
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Mr. Kwan Kei Chor

Dr. Lyu Ziang
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Mr. Zhang Peidong
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Company Secretary
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EIEHRESE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the
“Directors”) of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would
like to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Throughout the past two years, the pandemic brought
unprecedented challenges to the global economic and social
development, and a wide spectrum of industries has been
affected for a long time as a result of the material impact of it. In
2021, even though the pandemic is not over, the Group remains
focus in developing the operation of the provision of financial
services targeted to the 5.6 million tobacco retailers in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and thus strengthening the
loan financing and referral segments.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the economy environment in the world remains
uncertain and challenging. However, the Group will continue
to focus in our PRC market. Since 2019, a series of practical
initiative concerning inclusive finance have been introduced
the central government of the PRC with the aim to effectively
encourage lending to small and micro-sized business.

We believe that the Group is well-positioned to capture the
business opportunities in, among others, supply chain financing
services associated with the government’s initiative in the small
and micro enterprises financing sector.

The Group is also taking proactive measures and making active
responses in an effort to sustain the business and actively
diversify or expand our customer base and product base to
broaden the sources of revenue and diversify business risk.

We will continue to strive a balance among the interests of
shareholders, employees and customers, and pursue long-term
and sustainable development for the Group.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to thank our
shareholders, business partners, customers and professional
parties for their continued support. | would also like to express
my gratitude to our management team and staff for their
contribution to the Group.

Liu Kequan
Chairman
Hong Kong
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE“-J' &73 *ﬁ'

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding, industrial
property development, general trading and loan financing
operations including the provision of loan financing, financial
guarantee services, loan referral and consultancy services.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 ("FY2021") the
Group’s management considered the future strategic plan of
the Group and adjusted and identified the following reportable
segments. The Group’s securities brokerage segment, insurance
brokerage segment and the asset management segment as
disclosed in last year have been restated into the others segment.
The segment revenue and results of the Group for FY2021 are
stated in the table below:

EBOE

AEEIENEREER TXRDERER
ﬁ””%&% ARMEXRK (BRREHERR
BB RRRS  EREN REARSE)

REBZE_E-_—F+-_A=+—HBItFE([=
T-—UF|) AEEEBEELEREHERK
RERE B FLABRTEEUTATZ2RD
H-EFRBIASEBTBLHFLCLD I REEL
KON EEERS A EEIAEMO -
AEEBR-_ZSE-_—UFNO>BRAREES
RTE&K:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+TZA=1t—BLEE

2021 2020
—FE-—F —ETF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Segment Revenue from: REUATREBEZD WA :
Industrial property development THERAMEERE 13,656 11,279
General trading —RE5 - 15,093
Loan financing | (Note 1) BEREE (H3E1) 185,524 337,978
Loan financing Il (Note 2) EREEN (ME2) 76,861 20,072
Others HAb 8,826 7,898
284,867 392,320
Segment (loss) profit from: REUTNREZDE (BE) &EF
Industrial property development TERYMEERRE (4,716) (7,372)
General trading —RES (354) (9,451)
Loan financing | (Note 1) EXEE (MFET) (128,150) (201,289)
Loan financing Il (Note 2) BEXEEN(ME2) (82,924) (1,464)
Others HAth (3,199) (3,869)
(219,343) (223,445)
Note 1: Loan financing | represents the provision of loan financing, BaEr - BER@E ?EE%C/%&:HZ TREER®RE -
financial guarantees, loan referral and consultancy services in REER BEREN LB ARS -
Hong Kong and Beijing.
Note 2: Loan financing Il represents the provision of micro-financing, Bz EXmMENEEERRHMIEER EXE

loan referral and consultancy services in Ningbo.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industrial property development

Revenue from the segment mainly represents warehouse storage
income generated from warehouse operation. The Group's
warehouse is located in Taicang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.
It is divided into six units and the total area is approximately
48,600 square meters. Revenue from the warehouse operation
recorded an increase of HK$2,377,000 from approximately
HK$11,279,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020")
to approximately HK$13,656,000 for FY2021. Resulted in an
improvement to the segment loss to approximately HK$4,716,000
for FY2021 from segment loss of approximately HK$7,372,000 for
FY2020. The average occupancy rate of the Group’s warehouse
during the year was 86% and was primarily used as storage of
electric power tools and consumer products by our customers.

In 2021, China’s economy continues to recover steadily, and its
economic development and the prevention and control of the
novel coronavirus epidemic (the “COVID-19 pandemic”) maintain
its leading position in the world, with a number of major
indicators reaching the expected targets. For example, GDP in
2021 increased by 8.1% as compared with 2020. Therefore, in
the fourth quarter of 2021, the occupancy rate of the warehouse
has reached 100%. The management of the Group is very
confident that the occupancy rate of the warehouse can be
maintained a high level of occupancy in 2022.

General Trading

Since 2016, the liquors industry in the PRC has been in a state
of shrinking volume and increasing prices during the process
of continuous decline in production. The trend of market
concentration has become more and more obvious. The
revenue and profit of the Group’s liquor trading have dropped
significantly in the past two years. Therefore, during FY2021,
the Group has been realigning its business segment and shifting
its focus from low profit margin business segments to the
core segment, loan financing. As a result, the Group did not
record any sales revenue in liquors trading for FY2021 (FY2020:
approximately HK$15,093,000). The segment recorded a loss of
approximately HK$354,000 for FY2021 (FY2020: segment loss of
approximately HK$9,451,000).

The management is monitoring the liquors industry closely and
will decide if the business segment is still necessary for the Group
as a whole in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE‘“-J' &I’ *ﬁ'

Loan Financing |

The Group's loan financing | services comprise the provision
of loan financing, financial guarantees, loan referral and
consultancy services in Hong Kong and Beijing. Revenue from
the segment for FY2021 was approximately HK$185,524,000
(FY2020: approximately HK$337,978,000), resulted in a segment
loss of approximately HK$128,150,000 (FY2020: segment loss
of approximately HK$201,289,000). The decrease in segment
revenue was mainly due to the decrease in the number of
asset partners and the percentage of the guarantee service fee
in FY2021. The segment loss was mainly due to the provision
against the outstanding guarantees issued and impairment loss
on loans and interest receivables, trade receivables and right-of-
use assets as some of the Group’s customers were affected by
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Loan Financing Business in Beijing

During 2021, as more people in China have received COVID-19
vaccine and people’s daily life would resume normal, the
economy in China should record a substantial boost. Due to
the new waves of COVID-19 outbreak in many countries, much
international trade and tourism industries have been severely hit.
Micro, small and medium-sized enterprises and individuals will be
the economic drivers of the recovery for domestic consumption
and capital investment. The Group will leverage its strength in
the market and the opportunity from the loan financing business
in Ningbo which has expanded the Group’s business scope to
provide support for its customers. The Group will continue to
seize the opportunities of the reshuffling of companies in the
industry, improved industry supervision, and increasing customer
capital demand, continue to optimize iterative products, upgrade
risk control strategies and tools, and provide better services for
customers.

Loan Financing Business in Hong Kong

The Group's loan financing operation in Hong Kong is mainly the
provision of mortgage loan. There were no new loan drawdown
for FY2021, and no outstanding loan as at 31 December 2021
and 2020. The Group will continue to implement a prudent
strategy with stringent internal loan management system in the
loan financing operation in Hong Kong to identify suitable high
net worth customers through its business partnership such as
loan referral agents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loan Financing Il

The Group’s loan financing Il services comprise the provision
of micro-financing, loan referral and consultancy services in
Ningbo, the PRC. Revenue from the segment for FY2021
was approximately HK$76,861,000 (FY2020: approximately:
HK$20,072,000), resulted in a segment loss of approximately
HK$82,924,000 (FY2020: HK$1,464,000).

The segment loss was mainly due to the impairment loss on
loans and interest receivables and trade and other receivables
recognised for FY2021, as some customers were affected by the
slow recovery of economy after the COVID-19 pandemic.

The acquisition of Xin Yunlian Investment Limited (“Xin Yunlian™)
and its subsidiaries and associated company (collectively,
Xin Yunlian Group”) was completed on 31 July 2020. The
major activities of Xin Yunlian Group are the operation of an
e-commerce platform and the provision of financial services
(including micro-financing and loan referral operations) and
advertising business. All operations are targeted to the 5.6
million tobacco retailers in the PRC. As at 31 December 2021,
there were approximately 4.7 million tobacco retailers registered
on the e-commence platform of Xin Yunlian Group. The above
acquisitions have already created synergies in FY2021, the Group
leveraged its knowledge, expertise, experience and financial
resources in China loan financing business to guide and enable
Xin Yunlian Group to provide loan financing business for tobacco
retailers. The combined network of client base and financial
institutions covered by the Group is expected to form a stronger
platform for cross selling and achieve growth in the loan referral
business and the small and micro enterprises finance business. In
addition, the profit guarantee of not less than RMB153 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$168 million) for the five years
ending 31 December 2024 will also provide a positive impact on
the financial position of the Group as a whole in the years ahead.

BEEEN WK DT

EXREEN

AEBNERREIRBEIERPEERIRE
HNEER BERENRBARGE - — T ——
MFERBZD I 2 WAL E76,861,0007% 7T
(ZZE T B :4920,072,000% 7T ) » M &4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Business Model

W EB S /MEERE OFI)BR 2R (Wangxin Xin
Yunlian Financial Information Service (Zhejiang) Company
Limited*, “Xin Yunlian Financial”) is the exclusive financial service
provider of FIEN B E FE AR 2 Al (Zhongyan Xin
Shangmeng E-commerce Limited*, “Zhongyan E-commerce”).
Xin Yunlian Financial is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 7T %1
EHER B R A A (Zhejiang Xin Yunlian Cloud Technology
Company Limited*), which is indirectly controlled as to 51%
by Xin Yunlian. Zhongyan E-commerce is owned as to 49% by
AL E 8 8 F BB R A A (Zhejiang Xin Yunlian Digital
Technology Company Limited*), which is owned as to 51%
by Xin Yunlian. Zhongyan E-commerce share its E-commerce
platforms with Xin Yunlian Financial to publishes notices and
make publicity to over 4.7 million registered tobacco retailers. In
addition, Xin Yunlian Financial also use the official accounts and
other new media platforms as well as through tobacco monopoly
administration at province and city levels to promote their service
to customers. With the authorization of registered users of the
e-commerce platform, Xin Yunlian Financial can access the readily
available customer database. The Group also provides financial
service to qualified tobacco retailer customers in need that are
identified through telephone marketing or site visiting.

The services provided by Xin Yunlian Financial include the referral
of potential borrowers for loan services to financial institutions
with a focus on retailers licensed to distribute tobacco products
in the PRC. Considering the financial needs of tobacco retailers in
making tobacco orders, store improvement and other operating
matters, Xin Yunlian Financial has launched a tobacco credit loan
service, through which the tobacco retailers can apply for credit
loan on-line with their tobacco retail license. Target clients can
directly contact Xin Yunlian Financial through the e-commerce
platform, WeChat official account, customer service hotline and
Xin Yunlian Financial mobile application to inquire about loan
services.

After a review of the funding needs of potential borrowers
and a preliminary assessment of their credit profile, Xin Yunlian
Financial will refer the potential borrowers to appropriate banks
for suitable financial products. The banks in cooperation with Xin
Yunlian Financial will, based on their respective concerns, mitigate
credit risks in further by assessing such potential borrowers. For
the customers passing risk assessment, those banks will remit
loans to the account designated by the borrowers. Since credit
risk is the main risk inherent in the financial services business,
with the support of the e-commerce platform, Xin Yunlian
Financial based on a real and verifiable transaction scenario of a
tobacco retailer can have the ability to effectively manage and
supervise the credit risk of potential borrowers to be referred by
them to financial institutions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of loan transactions through referral, Xin Yunlian
Financial, as an intermediary agency, will charge the banks or
borrowers referral fees.

During FY2021, Xin Yunlian Financial continued to cooperate
with regional banks in the PRC to provide funding to the
potential borrowers. The loan products are mainly one-year credit
loan and repayable by instalment. The interest rate ranges from
4.8% to 24% per annum depending on the credit assessment of
each individual borrower. A referral fee of approximately 3% is
charged by Xin Yunlian Financial depending on the terms of the
banks.

From a regional perspective, the top ten provinces with the
largest business scale are Guangdong Province, Guizhou Province,
Hunan Province, Henan Province, Shaanxi Province, Jiangsu
Province, Yunnan Province, Hubei Province, Sichuan Province and
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region.

Policy

In his written speech at the opening ceremony of the Annual
Conference of Financial Street Forum 2021, Vice Premier Liu He
pointed out that under the leadership of the CPC Committee and
the State Council, in promoting economic growth, the financial
system should focus on maintaining stable employment, meeting
basic living needs and keeping market entities afloat. It should
do a good job in the adjustment of monetary policy, keeping
it flexible and targeted and at a reasonable and appropriate
level. It should continue to increase the financing support to the
private economy and micro, small and medium enterprises, give
better play to the role of the multi-tiered capital market as a
hub, and improve the financial support system for technological
innovation.

Xin Yunlian Financial will continuously commit to the fields
of technology and finance. In 2021, Xin Yunlian Financial has
completed product docking and launch with Zheshang Bank and
China Everbright Bank, providing customers with more diversified
financial products and services.

Looking forward to 2022, Xin Yunlian Financial will strengthen
cooperation with large national commercial banks and innovative
asset management institutions, with serving tobacco retailers as
its feature. Xin Yunlian Financial will further increase the market
share by expanding inclusive and customized services in line
with industry ecology, in order to consolidate its leading position
in the financial sector of the tobacco industry as an inclusive
financial technology enterprise that provides comprehensive
internet financial services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

For the micro-financing operation, as at 31 December 2021,
loans and interest receivables of the Group was approximately
HK$342,298,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$359,938,000), with interest rates ranging from 5% to 24%
(31 December 2020: 5% to 24%) per annum.

Others

Others segment represents the operation of securities brokerage,
margin financing, provision of asset management services,
provision of insurance brokerage and agency service in Hong
Kong and advertising service in the PRC. Revenue from the
segment for FY2021 was approximately HK$8,826,000
(FY2020: approximately HK$7,898,000), resulted in segment
loss of approximately HK$3,199,000 (FY2020: segment loss
of approximately HK$3,869,000). In the future, the Group will
continue to increase the return on assets under strict cost control
measures in all others segment.

SIGNIFICANT IMPAIRMENT

During FY2021, an impairment loss of approximately HK$176
million (FY2020: approximately HK$147 million) was resulted in
the loan financing operations of the Group.

One of the major operations of the loan financing segment of
the Group is to act as a financing arrangement intermediary
between the asset partners (the “Asset Partners”) and the fund
partners (the “Fund Partners”) to provide financial referral,
financial guarantee services and financing service in the PRC. The
Group had long established a strategic cooperation with a major
Asset Partner which is engaged in the import of parallel import
vehicles business (the “Parallel Importer”), through which the
Parallel Importer will introduce its customers that are engaged
in the trading of parallel import vehicle business (the “Parallel
Trader"”) to the Group for financing arrangement, and the Parallel
Importer has agreed to provide counter-guarantees to the Group
for the Parallel Traders introduced by them, and a parcel of land
of the pier owned by the Parallel Importer was pledged to the
Group as the collateral for such counter-guarantees.

Loan and interest receivables from the Parallel Traders arises
when the Group granted the loans to the Parallel Traders and
trade and other receivables from the Parallel Traders arises when
the Group earn consultancy, financial guarantee and/or other
financial services income from the Parallel Traders for financing
arrangement services provided to the Parallel Traders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Secondly, the Group also provides financial referral and guarantee
services to the tobacco retailers subsequent to the acquisition of
Xin Yunlian Group in July 2020. In FY2021, the operation of such
financial referral and guarantee services increased significantly
as more regional financial institutions are interested in providing
funding to the approved tobacco retailers. With the guarantee
services provided by the Group, a default payment receivables
included in the trade and other receivables will result as the
Group would repay on behalf of the borrowers referred by the
Group once non-repayment is noted, and the Group will then
follow up for repayment from the borrowers subsequently.

In second half of 2021, the Group has more active co-operation
with various financial institutions which would provide loan
funding to the approved tobacco retailers referred by the Group
while the Group provided guarantee service to the financial
institutions in the event of non-repayment from the borrowers.
The operations were processed automatically via the bank’s
electronic platform between the bank, the borrowers and the
Group as the guarantor. And the repayment by the Group on
behalf of the borrowers would automatically recorded as default
payment receivables. Normally, the Group should follow up
immediately upon default payment directly with the various
tobacco retailers involved which were located in different areas
and arrange repayment with them accordingly. However, due to
the COVID-19 situation and a lack of manpower and mobility
across different areas in the PRC as a result of COVID-19
restriction, the direct follow up process with the borrowers were
delayed and thus the recovery rate was unsatisfactory during
the period under review, leading to the impairment on other
receivables. From the understanding of the management, the
majority of the borrowers are still in business and the amount
owed individually was not significant to the total default
receivables, once the travelling with the PRC is resumed, the
Group will allocated more resources in default debt collection
with the aim to improve the recovery rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

The breakdown of the impairment loss recognised during FY2021
and FY2020 is summarised as below:

R_F_—MER_F_FHTHER
EEBARGMT -

B

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-— —E-FF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEBT

Impairment loss recognised on: B TYI B IEER 2 M EEE
Loan and interest receivables JE W & SRR A B 52 113
Trade and other receivables JFE U5 B TR I LAt JE Uk TR TR 127 29
Others Hh, (3) 5
Total impairment loss recognised PR BEEEAERE 176 147

Before approving and authorising the relevant loans and/or
the provision of financing arrangement services, all potential
Asset Partners will undergo an evaluation process with factors
considered including:

corporate and team structure of the Asset Partners (and its
referral);

internal risk management;

historical financial records;

position of the Asset Partners in the industry; and
availability of collaterals.

Only those with satisfactory evaluation results will be accepted as
borrowers and granted the loan receivables and/or accepted as
the Group’s customers for financial referral or financial guarantee
services.

The Board has taken into account the severe downward
economic trend in the PRC due to the COVID-19 pandemic which
has substantially hit the domestic demand in the parallel import
vehicles market. As a result, the operations of the Parallel Traders
are negatively affected and they were under great pressure on
their own capital and cash flow chain. At the same time, the
Parallel Importer who provides the counter-guarantee was also
adversely affected by the sudden and sharp economic downturn
and encountered credit supply shortage combined with cash flow
crisis and is involved in certain lawsuits from other parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Given the adverse credit risk exposure of both the Parallel Traders
and the Parallel Importer and the decreasing demand for parallel
import vehicles, which is considered as an overall industry risk,
the Board is of the view that the credit risks in loan receivables
have significantly increased and the debtors are vulnerable to
non-payment. Therefore, stage 3 in which a probability of default
of approximately 53%, representing a credit rating of CC as
sourced from Thomson Reuters, has been assigned to all relevant
loan receivables from the Parallel Traders. However, given that
the situation has not improved in 2021, further impairment has
been made in 2021 with a probability of default of approximately
70% is recognised.

Latest status and future actions in following up of the significant
impairments:

During FY2021, the Group has engaged PRC legal advisor to
process the legal proceedings to claim for the repayment of the
loans and first hearing was completed for one of the cases and
the Group received court judgement supporting the claims of the
Group in August 2021. Other legal proceedings will be followed
in the meantime.

The Board, together with the PRC legal advisor, are of the view
that if the borrowers are unable to confirm a repayment schedule
subsequent to the legal proceedings, the Group will take further
legal action proactively in order to recover the receivables from
the pledged land owned by the Parallel Importer as it is expected
to be a lengthy legal proceedings in the PRC. Nevertheless, the
Group will continue to negotiate with the borrowers actively with
the objective to come up with a mutually agreed repayment plan.

A special working team is set up internally to handle and follow
up all the long outstanding receivables and the team will review
the work progress with management on a monthly basis. The
special working team also works closely with the Group’s
PRC legal advisor and will take appropriate legal action if it is
considered necessary.

For the impairment of loan to and interest receivables, the
management is responsible in developing and maintaining
the processes for measuring expected credit loss under the
impairment requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9, the Directors we assessed these default payments
receivables to be credit-impaired since they already had default
history. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss rate of
default payments receivables were approximately 80% (i.e.
probability of default of 100% and recovery rate of 20%)
with reference to the valuation performed by the independent
professional valuer.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

During the review at the end of FY2021, an impairment in
goodwill of approximately HK$98.5 million was noted. It was
due to the fact that the financial performance of micro-financing
and financing referral operations (the “Tobacco Financing CGU")
was unable to achieve the forecast of FY2021 prepared in last
year. The management of the Company revised the forecast
projection in coming four years in accordance with the historical
performance. As mentioned in the impairment of loans to and
interest receivables, there is a trend in increasing credit-impaired
default payments, the status in recovering those receivables did
not improve and the Company considered there is an increase in
future cash outflow on the operation by adjusting the loss rate
from 3% to 4% on each transaction as those credit-impaired
default payments may not recovered eventually. As a result, the
cash flow forecast of the Tobacco Financing CGU was adjusted
and the impairment loss on goodwill of the Tobacco Financing
CGU of HK$98.5 million was recognised.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative expenses include office utilities and administration,
legal and professional fee, employee expenses, depreciation
of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment and
amortisation. Other operating expenses mainly consist of
operating expenses of industrial property development and
loan financing. Administrative and other operating expenses
amounted to approximately HK$109,561,000 during FY2021,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$16,499,000 as
compared to approximately HK$126,060,000 during FY2020.
The decrease in administrative and other operation expenses
were mainly resulted from the relocation of office in Beijing and
Hong Kong. In addition, there are no consultancy fees incurred
for the acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group in 2020 in FY2021.
During FY2021, the Group continued to optimize and reform
related business processes to reduce costs and improve efficiency.
The Company’s management will continue to act on its stringent
measures on cost control to maintain the administrative and
other operating expenses at a reasonable level.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased from approximately HK$14,226,000
during FY2020 to approximately HK$29,244,000 during FY2021.
The increase in finance costs was caused by the increase in
effective interest expenses on convertible bonds issued for the
acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group in 2020 and loan interest on
other loans borrowed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continuous to adopts the policy of prudence in
managing its working capital. During FY2021, the operation of
the Group was primarily financed by internally generated cash
flow from operation and external financing. As at 31 December
2021, the shareholders’ fund and net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$148,200,000 (31 December
2020: approximately HK$348,677,000) and approximately
HK$201,445,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$295,593,000) respectively. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$47,936,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$90,241,000) which were principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi and the current ratio was 1.35
(31 December 2020: 1.59).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total borrowings,
denominated in Renminbi and bear fixed interest rates from
4.95% to 10.55%), amounted to approximately HK$241,881,000
(31 December 2020: approximately HK$132,426,000) of which,
approximately HK$63,799,000 is repayable within 1 year,
approximately HK$144,342,000 is repayable between 1 to 2
years, and approximately HK$33,740,000 is repayable between
2 to 5 years. The gearing ratio, measured on the basis of total
borrowings over net assets, was 65.9% as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: 23.5%).

There was no capital commitment in respect of the acquisition
and construction of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: nil).

The Group does not anticipate any material foreign exchange
exposure since its cash, borrowings, revenue and expenses are
mainly in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Fund Investments

The Group's investment portfolio is classified according to HKFRS
9. The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of the investment portfolio were
approximately HK$3,505,000 and HK$4,866,000 respectively
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$11,175,000 and HK$20,203,000). The investment portfolio
includes (i) unlisted investment funds, which primarily invests in
listed equity in the PRC and Hong Kong; and (ii) listed equity in
Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE“-J' &73 *ﬁ'

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities noted as at
31 December 2021 other than the financial guarantees issued.

Guarantee Issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
For FY2021, the Group’s total maximum amount of financial
guarantees issued was approximately RMB2,011,431,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,467,825,000) (FY2020:
approximately RMB2,305,928,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,738,521,000)).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company with a par value of HK$0.001 each
(the “Shares”) was 7,775,857,621 (31 December 2020:
7,775,357,621).

Charges on Assets

The Group’s warehouse located in Taicang, the PRC with the
following carrying amounts have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group:
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For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLEE

2021 2020

—EB=—-F —TTF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Property, plant and equipment ERN Y& 72,755 79,087
Right-of-use assets — leasehold lands FRAEEE-—MHE T 22,485 22,515
95,240 101,602

Save for the above, the Group did not charge other assets to
secure its borrowings as at 31 December 2021.

RALFEN RZF-_—F+_RA=+—
B AEBYEEZREMEENRGHEEER:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign currency exposure

As confirmed by the Directors, the Group's present operations
are mainly carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong, and all of
the Group’s receipts and payments in relation to the operations
are basically denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group does not anticipate any material foreign exchange
exposure and therefore no derivative financial instruments were
used to hedge its foreign currency risks as at 31 December 2021.
Management of the Company will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange exposure and take appropriate measures if needed.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 141 employees
(31 December 2020: 188 employees). Remuneration is
determined by reference to their respective qualifications and
experiences and according to the prevailing industry practice. In
addition to salary payments, the Group's staff benefits include
contribution of mandatory provident fund, a discretionary
bonus program and a share option scheme. As required by
the regulations in the PRC, the Group makes contributions to
mandatory social security funds for the benefit of the Group's
employees in the PRC, including pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, personal injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing funds.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals

The Group did not hold any significant investments and did
not conduct any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during FY2021.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have immediate
plans for material investments or capital assets acquisition.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the "2022 AGM") is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 7 June
2022. For determining the entitlement of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) to attend and vote at the 2022
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 1 June 2022 to Tuesday, 7 June 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 31 May 2022.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Kequan, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 June 2016. He was re-designated as an executive
Director (the "ED"), chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEO") and the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) on
30 June 2016. Mr. Liu ceased to act as the CEO on 8 June 2018
and remains as the Chairman and continue to serve as an ED. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu
was previously the chief executive officer of Z g F Jt & B i%
13 A BR A 8] (Yunnan Ziyuan Group Co., Ltd.), a conglomerate
specialising in investment, real estate development, tourism
development and bio-pharmaceutical biotechnology industry
and has extensive management experience. He graduated from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a major in Applied Chemistry
in July 1994. Mr. Liu also obtained an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree from Tsinghua University in July
2005.

Mr. Yang Dayong, aged 46, was appointed as an ED and CEO
on 8 June 2018. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Yang is the founder of it R & KR t 17 g & & 1%
AR~ 7] (Beijing Anjia Shihang Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.).
He has more than 20 years of experience in the field of fintech
investment, risk management and merger and acquisition.
Mr. Yang graduated from Peking University with a degree in
Economics. He received a Master’'s degree in Economics from
Tsinghua University and a Doctoral degree in Economics from
Renmin University of China.

Mr. Chen Zheng, aged 62, was appointed as an ED on
8 December 2021. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries and
associates of the Company. Mr. Chen is an engineer and senior
economist and has extensive experience in investing business
and corporate management. He is currently a non-executive
director of Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (stock code:
8271), a company listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and an independent non-
executive director of Jiu Rong Holdings Limited (stock code:
2358), a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering and
a Master’s degree in Business Administration.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Peidong, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He was re-designated
as an ED on 5 July 2016 and a non-executive Director on
8 December 2021. Mr. Zhang is currently the managing director
of Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Limited which was
previously owned by a Hong Kong listed company. He has over
20 years of experience in investment, corporate management
and international trade industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from Jilin
University of Technology (now known as Jilin University) with a
major in Metallic Materials Engineering.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2015. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 10 years of experience in corporate accounting and
worked in a number of listed companies. He holds a Master’s
degree in Accounting from Curtin University of Technology (now
known as Curtin University).

Dr. Lyu Ziang, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 July 2016. He is currently the
deputy technical head of R&D division of £ /& B 5@ KR E 5
AR A A (Shanghai Kuajingtong International Trade Co., Ltd.).
Dr. Lyu has years of experience in identification and control
of trade and financial risks. He worked at managerial level of
certain technology companies. Dr. Lyu graduated from Tsinghua
University with a degree in Thermo-Dynamic Engineering and
Control in July 1994 and also received a Master's degree in
Computer Software and Theory as well as a Doctoral degree
in Computer Technology Application from Beijing Jiaotong
University in May 2003 and July 2012 respectively.

Mr. Zhou Liangyu, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He is currently the
managing director of FAIBA R EMEF AR A A (H&H
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.), a company specialising in ODM
service and overall supply chain management service in
electronics industry. Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of experience in
investment, corporate management and technology industry. He
graduated from PR7GE F5MNEFIE2 BT (Shaanxi Province Foreign
Training College) with a major in Foreign Trade English.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests
of all Shareholders. The Company has always recognised the
importance of the transparency and accountability towards the
Shareholders. It is the belief of the Board that Shareholders can
maximise their benefits from good corporate governance.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as amended from time to time.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, being
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman), Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive
Officer) and Mr. Chen Zheng, one non-executive Director, being
Mr. Zhang Peidong, and three independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang and Mr. Zhou
Liangyu.
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Six board meetings and one general meeting were held during FRBEITANR TN —AREKX
the year. The individual attendance record is as follows: o 1.%”&?‘@\ =ofss) ﬁuaﬁpu‘r
Board General
Meetings Meeting
Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to
Directors attend attend
BHiE/ Bk
BERLEE SGERUE
Exe IR
B= CEYN RERE
Executive Directors: HITESE:
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) R REE (EE) 6/6 1/1
Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive Officer) %7(% S (TTECAEZL) 6/6 11
Mr. Chen Zheng (Note 1) BRAEFC A& (BIRE1) —/- -/~
Non-executive Director: FHEHITEE -
Mr. Zhang Peidong (Note 2) FOMER A (3E2) 6/6 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors: HUIHMTESE
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor BAEESE 6/6 171
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHiEL 6/6 11
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BARFEE 6/6 11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Notes:
1. Appointed as executive Director on 8 December 2021.
2. Re-designated as non-executive Director on 8 December 2021.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performances, but the day-to-day management
is delegated to the three executive Directors, Mr. Liu Kequan,
Mr. Yang Dayong and Mr. Chen Zheng, who also assume the
roles of senior management of the Company.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has met with the requirements of Rule 3.10(1) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules, relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, an independent non-executive Director,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise states under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence in accordance with the prevailing Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relationship) among any members of the Board
and the senior management.

Directors are given timely access to relevant information prior
to each board meeting. Directors are given the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings. At the
same time, Directors are entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials to allow them to make informed decisions
on matters arising from board meetings.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of other committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open
for inspection by Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. Individual Director is encouraged to
attend courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
listed company director or further enhancement of professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online
aids or reading relevant materials. The company secretary
of the Company continuously updates all Directors on the
latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. During the year under
review, the current Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Kequan, Mr. Yang
Dayong, Mr. Chen Zheng, Mr. Zhang Peidong, Mr. Kwan Kei
Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang and Mr. Zhou Liangyu had participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by
attending training courses or by reading materials.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Company has distinguished the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in accordance with Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which has been renumbered as
Code Provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022). The Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company are Mr. Liu Kequan and
Mr. Yang Dayong respectively.

The Board will regularly review the effectiveness of the
segregation of roles to ensure its appropriateness under the
Group'’s prevailing circumstances.

The major duties of the Chairman are to provide leadership to
the Board and spearhead overall corporate development and
strategic planning whilst the Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for implementing the decisions and strategy approved by the
Board and managing day-to-day operations of the Group with
the supports of the EDs.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a term
of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

The independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high caliber with academic and professional qualifications in
accounting, financial, management and various business fields
which provide the Group with a wide range of valuable expertise.
With their experience gained from senior positions held in other
organisations, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules and Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties
of the Audit Committee are to review and monitor the financial
reporting and risk management and internal control systems of
the Company. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
(Chairman), Dr. Lyu Ziang and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During FY2021, the Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management and the auditor the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and discussed the auditing,
risk management, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements of the
Group for FY2020 and the unaudited interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

In additional, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for FY2021 and the related results
announcement and auditor’s report, and made recommendation
to the Board that the same be approved. There was no
disagreement between the Audit Committee and the Board
on the selection and appointment of the Company’s external
auditors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

Two Audit Committee meetings were convened during the year.
The individual attendance records are as follows:

FR BAMMAERZESSR -ERKE

BB RCER AT

Number of
Directors attendance
= o R &
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman) AERLEE (FE) 2/2
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHEL 2/2
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BRFRE 2/2
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE il =

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules and Code Provisions of the
CG Code. The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to advise and recommend the Board on the remuneration
policy and framework of the Company’s Directors and senior
management, as well as review and determine the remuneration
of individual executive Directors and senior management with
reference to the Company’s objectives from time to time. The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) and
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor and one non-executive Director, namely,
Mr. Zhang Peidong.

During FY2021, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration policy and framework of the Company’s
Directors and senior management, assessed the performance of
executive Directors and determined the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management with
reference to the Company’s objectives.

Two Remuneration Committee meetings were convened during
the year. The individual attendance records are as follows:
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Number of
Directors attendance
B IR B
Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) BFREL(£E) 2/2
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor RAERELE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Peidong SFOMR L E 2/2
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ANNUAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for FY2021 is as follows:

EEERRE

ENESREEE 2 FE M)

N
iz

R-T——Bf 6 BREES 2 EREEER
B FEHEMT:

Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) Individual
MeeE (Bx) A8
40,000 - 1,000,000 40,0002 1,000,000 1
1,000,001 - 2,500,000 1,000,001%2,500,000 1
2,500,001 - 4,000,000 2,500,001%4,000,000 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules and Code Provisions of
the CG Code. The duties of the Nomination Committee are
(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
with due regard to the diversity of the Board; (b) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and to review their annual confirmation on independence; (d)
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
directors; and (e) before appointments are made by the Board,
to evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation to prepare a
description of the roles and capabilities required for a particular
appointment. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During FY2021, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
size, structure, composition as well as diversity of the Board,
assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and considered the re-election of the Directors. The
Nomination Committee has also reviewed the board diversity
policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered the Group's
measurable objectives for implementing the board diversity policy
during the year under review.
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EXRERRE

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee follows its established nomination
policy in the selection of candidates for Director appointments.
The Bye-laws set out the process for the appointment of Board
members. In the event that the vacancy to be filled is a casual
vacancy, or an additional Director is to be appointed, the Board
will make the appointment of the Director in accordance with
the Bye-laws. In the event that the vacancy has arisen as a result
of normal retirement or rotation, the Board shall present the
candidates to the Shareholders for election in accordance with
the Bye-laws. The Board shall avail sufficient information to
enable the Shareholders to make an informed choice. When a
vacancy arises on the Board (through resignation, rotation etc) or
in the event that an additional Director is to be appointed, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the Board’s needs in terms
of skills, competencies and other diversity considerations with
due regard to any on-going major projects and develop a profile
of the required candidate. The Nomination Committee shall invite
Board members to submit to it profiles of interested potential
Board members. The Nomination Committee shall consider the
profiles received and select candidates whom it shall interview
to assess suitability for the position. In selecting the potential
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall consider, in addition
to the requirements in the Bye-laws, the mandatory regulatory
requirements. The candidate is required to expressly disclose the
nature and extent of other activities or appointments which may
give rise to conflict of interests, and hence his/her independence.
The Nomination Committee shall make its recommendation on
the candidate to the Board, and ultimately to the Shareholders if
required.

The Company values, promotes, and observes the Board diversity
policy in the composition of its Board of Directors. The Company
implements the policy as a part of the recruitment and selection
process in appointment of a member of the Board. The Company
is initiating the use of a matrix to facilitate a review of the skills,
competencies, experience and other attributes of the Board
members to establish a baseline. Selection of a candidate is
generally made based on a range of diversity objectives against
the baseline in the Board diversity policy. Particular regard will
be paid to the benefits of balance of skills, knowledge and
experience, and perspective differentiations introduced to
the Board from the candidates, including varied educational
background, and extensive expertise, knowledge and experience
in technology, investment, trade and financial risks identification
and control, international trade, corporate management to
professional qualification in accounting and other professional
fields.
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EEERRE

Two Nomination Committee meetings were convened duringthe F R ZAFAMAIREZZE LR - HRIKE
year. The individual attendance records are as follows: By uﬂfﬁnﬂﬁﬁDT -

Number of
Directors attendance
2= R E
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) Bl REE(FE) 2/2
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHEL 2/2
Mr. Zhou Liangyu ARFRE 2/2
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS hEERBBE
The Board as a whole performs the corporate governance duties %%’%%&%E? FRMEXED3INME(BZE
set out in Code Provision D.3.1 (which has been renumbered as ::¢ AREHGEATARXEA2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 since 1 January 2022) which include:
(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practice on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During FY2021, the company secretary of the Company is
Ms. Chan Siu Mun who had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
as set out in the Model Code throughout FY2021.
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RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and
the Company’s assets and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually. Review of the Group's internal controls include
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as well
as risk management functions. The risk management and
internal control system are designed to manage, not eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to ensure their effectiveness include
providing a clear policies and procedure, as well as a reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across
business operations.

The Group's risk management policy includes the following
elements:

e Identification of significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those;

e Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
e Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

Risks that affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives are
identified, evaluated and prioritized by department managers.
Management will assess the nature and impact of those risks, risk
register are then established. The Audit Committee is responsible
to manage the risk management process. Risks which cannot be
accepted by the Group are transferred, eliminated or controlled
through risk mitigation measures. Each risk mitigation measure
has a risk owner who is a department manager or designated
person who will be assigned to ensure accountability. Risks
owners are also responsible for monitoring the status of the risk
mitigation measures for risks under their areas of responsibility.

Due to the size of the Group and cost effectiveness consideration,
the Group does not have an internal audit function. Instead, the
Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist
the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of
internal control systems of the Group, assessing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and in
performing the internal audit functions for the Group. The review
covers major activities of the Group in rotation basis and also the
risk management functions. Deficiencies (if any) are identified
and improvement recommendations as well as remedial actions
are proposed.
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Audit Committee and the Board receives the risk management
report and internal control report by the independent professional
advisor annually. The Board, through the Audit Committee, had
performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and considers them to effective and adequate for FY2021.

Regarding the procedure and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group is aware of
its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The handling
and dissemination of inside information are regulated to ensure
the information is kept strictly confidential before disclosure is
appropriately approved. Only personnel at appropriate level can
get reach of inside information. The Group will immediately
disclose the information to the public if it believes that the
confidentiality may have been breached.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For FY2021, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, HLM
CPA Limited, amounted to HK$1,450,000 and HK$400,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim
results review and other reporting services.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Company's auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for FY2021 is set out
in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of this report.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board recognizes that an increasing diversity at the Board
level is inductive to the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and the Company’s sustainable development. All
Directors share their competence to bring sustainable growth to
the Company. The Board had adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). Under the Board Diversity Policy,
selection to the Board will be based on a range of diversity
areas, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. In identifying suitable candidates for
appointments to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
take into consideration the Company’s business models and
specific needs. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity criteria and perspectives. The Nomination Committee
will consider the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge of the Board and the diversity representation of the
Board, how the Board works together as a unit, and other factors
relevant to its effectiveness.

There is currently all male Directors on the Board. The Company
will continue to identify female candidates to join the Board in
accordance with the above selection criteria and through various
channels, including the promotion of existing talent as successors
to the Board, in order to achieve gender diversity on the Board
and hopes to maintain its female membership at no less than
10% for the next three years.

For FY2021, the Group's workforce generally follows a
diversity philosophy that includes gender diversity. The gender
composition of the Group's workforce is set out in the
Employment and Labour Practices section of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report to be published by the Company
in accordance with the Listing Rules. As at the date of this report,
over 20% of the Group’s employees are female. The Company
plans to maintain the same level of female representation over
the next three years or increase female representation where
appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting

Shareholders are given the opportunity to participate and vote
in Shareholder’s meetings. According to the Bye-laws, any 2 or
more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of a written
requisition in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
have the right to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board. Such requisition must state the objects of the
meeting and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at Company'’s head office in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
voting right at general meetings of the Company, or not less than
100 of such registered Shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The
requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than 6 weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than 1 week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
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Pursuant to the Bye-laws, no person, other than a retiring
Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing by some Shareholders (not
being the person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been given to the Company provided that the minimum length of
the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting. The written notice must state that person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or Tel:
(852) 2980 1333.

Other Shareholders’ enquiries should be directed in writing to
the company secretary of the Company at Suites 3612-16, Tower
Two, Times Square, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a Shareholders’ communication
policy and reviews it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars. The Company'’s published
documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are also made available on the website of the Company.
The Company’s annual general meeting provides a good
opportunity for the Directors to meet and communicate with
Shareholders. All Directors make their best efforts to attend the
Annual General Meeting in order to answer questions from the
Company'’s Shareholders.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number and postal address,
which could be found on Company’s website, in order to enable
them to make any query that they may have with respect to
the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the Board
through these means.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the above channels of
communication between the Company and its Shareholders on
an annual basis. The Board is satisfied with the implementation
and effectiveness of the Company’s activities in communicating
with Shareholders and investors during the reporting period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During FY2021, there had not been any changes in the
Company'’s constitutional documents. The Company’s Bye-laws
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board does not have a policy to pay any fixed dividend or
a pre-determined future dividend distribution policy. The Board
has absolute discretion to recommend any dividend declaration.
Dividend will depend on our financial conditions, results of
operations, cash availability, statutory and regulatory restrictions
in relation thereto, future prospects, and any other factors that
the directors may consider relevant. In any event, the Company
will not be in a position to pay or declare dividends until such
time as it has profits available for that purpose as determined in
accordance with the applicable law.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provide corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Detailed review and the future development of the Group's
business are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this report.
Those sections form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for FY2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 71 and 72.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for FY2021 (2020: nil).

There is no arrangement that any Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 251 and
252 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DEBENTURES

The Group did not issue any debenture during FY2021.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to HK$nil (2020: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, there were no purchase, sale or redemption of
the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
10.2% and 20.2% of the Group's total revenue for the year
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 67.8% and 82.2% of the Group's total purchases
for the year respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for FY2021
are disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions as set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions entered into
by the Group during FY2021.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chen Zheng

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Zhang Peidong
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
Dr. Lyu Ziang
Mr. Zhou Liangyu

Pursuant to bye-law 91 of the Bye-laws, any Director appointed
by the Board under that Bye-laws shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting (in case of appointment
as an additional Director) or until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of appointment to fill
a casual vacancy) and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Chen Zheng (“Mr. Chen"), being a Director
appointed by the Board, shall hold office until the 2022 AGM
and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Pursuant to bye-law 99(B) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Yang Dayong
("Mr. Yang”) and Mr. Zhou Liangyu (“Mr. Zhou") will retire from
office as Directors at the 2022 AGM and Mr. Yang and Mr. Zhou,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors regarding his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all the existing
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “"SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short
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SEERTBITHRABRKS MIF
FAR (D BV ik MUK B

Y|

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H8 BFFKARQ

FEBITHRABRAR RSB EE (m%
RES LSRN ([FH5RBPEIEF])EXY
uﬁ)mﬂxfﬁ RO REEESES () RIE
B NMHEIRGIEXVEETRESD /E%ﬂ@
$ AINBTATED (BIEREES K
E1I7:<15IJ$BF‘%flykxﬁﬁ%)s?”‘f”ﬁmﬁi%%ﬁmé

positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such MK E) 5k (b pEffEWET)%m%&HﬁfﬂﬂﬁlJ
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register ~ 2835 21 EE@Z%&E%E’J%V QRIER
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were  #SFRIZBFME AR Tﬁﬂﬁ"’\ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ’?ﬁﬁnﬁﬂ—l—
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the REQXTRGREBRG ZEFR
Company
Total number Approximate
Number of Number of of shares and percentage
issued shares underlying underlying of the issued
Director Nature of Interests held shares held shares voting shares
HFEBT
FREE
e R8T PR e R4 K EE BB
B Bt E ROHE R &E Ro B BAL
Liu Kequan (“Mr. Liu") Corporate and 1,472,750,000 - 1,472,750,000 18.94%
personal interests (Note 1)
Bl ([21%4]) EEREAER (PaE1)
Chen Zheng ("Mr. Chen") Corporate interest 800,000,000 200,000,000 1,000,000,000 12.86%
(Note 2) (Note 2)
PRAE (TRRE4]) EEER (Pat2) (PitaE2)
Yang Dayong ("Mr. Yang") Corporate and 614,826,000 - 614,826,000 7.91%
family interests (Note 3)
BARE ([HEE]) EBR R ER iEE)
Notes: P & -
1. The interests include (i) 1,447,750,000 Shares held by Eastern 1. ZERFZOREOERERERAERAAEEN

Spring Global Limited and (ii) 25,000,000 Shares held by
Mr. Liu. Mr. Liu is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of Eastern Spring Global Limited.

2. The interests include (i) 800,000,000 Shares and (ii)
200,000,000 underlying Shares in respect of the convertible
notes in the principal amount of HK$200 million issued by the
Company with an initial conversion price at HK$1 per Share
that were held by Skill Rich Limited. Mr. Chen is the beneficial
owner of the entire issued share capital of Skill Rich Limited.

3. The interests include (i) 612,810,000 Shares held by Eternally
Sunny Limited and (ii) 2,016,000 Shares held by Ms. Liang
Miaoxin, being the spouse of Mr. Yang. Mr. Yang is the
beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Eternally
Sunny Limited.

RPESRMERERAF

1,447,750,000% % 10 K (i) Bl 5 £ =F B B
25,000,000H§H§1ﬁo BEEABRRREKE
RAREACEITRANESHEEGA

2. ZEREE (B () 800,000,000/ A% 17 X (ii)
FiN/N T%éﬁél’miﬁﬁi%zoo 000,000/ 7L #]
HE R (E AT IRE TR R R ZE TS
I #7200,000,0000% #H B8 A% 17 ) B D B IR
REIFBE - REEBNHVERRAIZIE
BITRANESEB A

3. ZERFVE(OEBERQAAZEAN
612,810,0000% M 15 X (ii) #5 5t £ 2 BL 8 22
B TEBR2,016,0000% B& 1D © 15 %4
BEGER AR EHMEBITRANE R
A

B —FFR
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company’s associated corporations

RELFEBEEROREBARG ZFA

Approximate

percentage
Number of to issued
shares/amount  voting shares/
of registered registered
Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest  Class capital capital
HERT
BREERD
RA®E,/ ERELRZ
B B EEEE EaEitE 5 dAMELTE BOESH
Mr. Liu Intraday Financial Information Corporate interests  Ordinary 55 shares 55%
Service Limited (Note 4)
s ERERESBRBERAF EERR (4) LRk 55k
aBCD Enterprise Limited Corporate interests ~ Ordinary 3 shares 100%
(Note 4)
EERR (4) LRk 38k
Dingtai Runhe Investment Consulting Corporate interests  Registered capital RMB31,000,000 100%
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note 4)
SREMEAZHE(LE)BRAA EEES (H3e)  IWEBA AR
31,000,0007T
Note: Bt E
4. 65.80% of the issued share capital of Long Tu Limited (“Long 4. EEAERAR([EEBE]EBEITRAN

Tu") is owned by Mr. Liu. Long Tu is the legal and beneficial
owner of 55 shares of Intraday Financial Information Service
Limited (“Intraday”), which is 55% of its issued share capital,
whilst the remaining 45 shares, which represents 45% of the
issued share capital of Intraday, is owned by the Company.
Intraday is the legal and beneficial owner of 3 shares of aBCD
Enterprise Limited (“aBCD"), which is 100% of its issued share
capital. aBCD is the holder of RMB31,000,000 of the registered
capital of Dingtai Runhe Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., which is its entire equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors, chief executive or their associates had any interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

65.80% THEBICEHEBE - EEAEXRD
BMiEESRBERAB ([EXER])Z55
BBRD (BEEBITRAZS5%)ZEE

EnEBA M TH4REKN (BE
RKEBMEBITIRA Z245% ) YA AR R A
A % X< @ JyaBCD Enterprise Limited
([aBCD ) 23k th (BRE2IPEEITR
RIZEEREBEZEB A aBCD ARFH
MTEFER (LB ERAR ZEFMELRA
K #31,000,0007C (R E 2 H R A #ER) 2
BAAC

FREXHWEEN RZ2F_—F+_A=1+—
B HMEEE TBTRABHRENHEA
RARB S EEMEREE (& RLESF R
HAE RIS XV #8) /9 B fn ~ M RE A SR HE RE
RHB QREZESFLIEGRIIEXVEFETR
E80 BBAME AN 7 N Bt X B eV (E Al #E 2k Ko
wKE (BIRERIEEZ KIS 55 18 B8 1R 301
FWEFSRSEBNERSIXR) Kb
BNRIEE S MR ERPIFE32GABEFZE
AC i EV A an NMOR B Bk (o) RIBIR ST A A A
GARE ME R FH TS FORR o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as disclosed in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements and the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares”, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. The effect of such arrangements would enable the
Director involved to be the Shareholder.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement and contracts of significance to
which (i) the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party with
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries and (ii) in
which the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN A COMPETING

During FY2021 and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the persons/companies, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

RPESRMERERAF
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Long position in shares and underlying shares of the REATDROGREBERG ZFR
Company
No. of  Approximate
shares or percentage to
underlying issued
Name Nature of interest shares held voting share
HE BT
RN BAREERSG
“l HE EEME MBI 6 BB CESIER N
Eastern Spring Global Limited Beneficial owner 1,447,750,000 18.62%
RRRRER QA EREAA
Skill Rich Limited (“Skill Rich™) Beneficial owner 1,000,000,000 12.86%
(Note 1)
NHRBRRR ([H#E]) EnEAA (Mt3E1)
Eternally Sunny Limited Beneficial owner 612,810,000 7.88%
EF5HR A A EnEAA
Ms. Liang Miaoxin Beneficial owner and family interests 614,826,000 7.91%
(Note 2)
BB L EnfER ARRIGEER (BtzE2)
Chu Lam Yiu Beneficial owner and Corporate interest 691,000,000 8.89%
(Note 3)
R EnlEB AREE#ER (M$5E3)
Wardour International Limited Beneficial owner 125,184,000 1.61%

("Wardour")
Wardour International Limited
(Twardour J)

Notes:

i

BB A

GEE

1.

These interests include 800,000,000 Shares and 200,000,000
underlying Shares in respect of the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$200 million issued by the Company with an initial
conversion price at HK$1 per Share.

These interests include (i) 2,016,000 Shares held by Ms. Liang
Miaoxin and (ii) 612,810,000 Shares held by Mr. Yang. Ms. Liang
Miaoxin is the spouse of Mr. Yang. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Liang is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Mr. Yang.

These interests include (i) 565,816,000 Shares held by Ms. Chu Lam
Yiu and (ii) 125,184,000 Shares held by Wardour. Ms. Chu Lam Yiu
owned the entire issued share capital of Wardour and was therefore
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Wardour was
interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as is
known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company,
no other parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

ACQUISITION OF XIN YUNLIAN GROUP

References are made to the Company’'s announcements
dated 16 November 2019, 29 June 2020, 22 July 2020 and
31 July 2020, and the circular dated 30 June 2020 in relation
to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital and the
assignment of the shareholder’s loan of Xin Yunlian Group (the
" Acquisition™).

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement dated 16 November 2019
as amended by the supplemental agreement dated 29 June 2020
(the "Acquisition Agreement”) in relation to the Acquisition,
the consideration for the Acquisition was HK$360 million and
settled by the Company as to HK$200 million by the issue of the
convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) and as to HK$160
million by the issue of 800,000,000 new Shares (the “New
Shares”). The Acquisition was completed on 31 July 2020 (the
“lIssue Date”).
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Convertible Notes

On the Issue Date, the Company issued the Convertible Notes in
the principal amount of HK$200 million which will mature on the
fifth anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Maturity Date”). Subject

TRRRE

RBETHH KXKABBEITAEEHEAE
200,000,000/ 7T 2 AT AR 245 - I A B B 1T
BHREAEREBEER ([2HB]) -

to the fulfillment of certain profit guarantee arrangement, from BT &FfRBLTHEE%R BT AHPRFE
the third anniversary of the Issue Date up to the day immediately Z={EBFHEZZEEETHSHRTFEAEBR
before the fifth anniversary of the Issue Date, up to 30% of the  FHREI—HHIM ZZ A ERGRAIVREE

principal amount of each Convertible Note can be converted.
On the Maturity Date, the outstanding principal amount of each
convertible note can be converted in full. The conversion price
of the Convertible Notes shall be HK$1.0 per conversion Share,
subject to adjustment pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Convertible Notes. Based on the initial conversion price of
HK$1.0 per conversion Share, 200 million new Shares will be
allotted and issued upon exercise of the Convertible Notes in full,
representing approximately 2.57% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this report.

The interest rate is nil for the period commencing upon the Issue
Date and expiring on the first anniversary of the Issue Date. The

2GR 230% - REIHR A BHERER
AIMREBRRAT N2 ASE AT BMRERE 2
EHEREASRBIRRMI.0E I ATREA
BTREBENIERRGEH T ARARE - RIETH
I EEREKEKG1.08 T REBETFED
# i% 32 4% B 18 Bd 25 K ¥ 17200,000,0000% #7 ix
B HERAREAPARFBEBITRALY
2.57% °

BRBITHRERTHAHESE —EABFH
ZHfE KRBT HRETH RS —

interest rate is 1% per annum for the period commencing from  BAF B E3TH R E _ERF A 2 8 -
the first anniversary of the Issue Date and expiring on the second ~ FFIE A1% - B R ZETHERLFE —EBF

anniversary of the Issue Date. The interest rate is 4% per annum
for the period commencing from the second anniversary of the
Issue Date and expiring on the third anniversary of the Issue Date.
The interest rate is 6% per annum for the period commencing
from the third anniversary of the Issue Date and expiring on the
Maturity Date. The interest accrued on the Convertible Notes will
be payable on the Maturity Date.

As at 31 December 2021, no Convertible Note was converted
during the year and no new Share was allotted and issued by the

BEZTAMESFE =EBFEZHE FF

KRA% - HRNBETHHEAE=EREFAE

¢|JHHEIZHHF’? FHEZE% - AR ERD
FEAH M B RN BB T e

R-ZEBE-—F+-A=1+—0 FRHEEK
AR E 4R - AR B IRAR B I AR 38 R BT AR

Company pursuant thereto. e
Details of the Convertible Notes are set out in note 35 to the FRIBBREENFBEHNES T RN T
consolidated financial statements. 35 ¢
Details of movement of the Convertible Notes during FY2021 are R_-Z - —BF aHREENEFHFS 0
as follows: ™
Number of share
Balance as at Granted Exercised allotted and Balance as at
1 January during during issued 31 December
Holder 2021 the year the year Conversion price upon conversion 2021
A\ZEZ—-F RER% R-B--%§
-A—HBHi BE#k +=-A=t—-H
BEA g0 REARH RERTE HiaE BRITRAEE k=3
Vendor of the Acquisition Agreement HK$200,000,000 = = HK$1.0 - HK$200,000,000
WERENER 200,000,00075 7T 1.087T 200,000,000 7T
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The New Shares

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, part of the consideration
shall be satisfied by the Company as to HK$160 million by the
issue of the New Shares at the issue price of HK$0.2 per Share,
which were issued by the Company upon completion of the
Acquisition on 31 July 2020. The New Shares are subject to a
lock-up for a period commencing on the Issue Date and ending
on the day immediately before the first anniversary of the Issue
Date.

Consideration Shares

Pursuant to the consultancy agreement dated 16 November
2019 as amended by a supplemental agreement dated 29 June
2020 (the “Consultancy Agreement”), the consultant, being
an individual providing consultancy service to the Group (the
“Consultant”) agreed to provide consultancy service to the
Company in relation to the Acquisition Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder. The consultancy fee shall
be HK$10 million which shall be settled by the Company by way
of issuing 50,000,000 consideration shares (the “Consideration
Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.2 per Share which were
issued by the Company upon completion of the Acquisition on
31 July 2020.

Profit Guarantee in respect of the Acquisition Agreement

In respect of the Acquisition Agreement, the vendor undertook
that the audited consolidated net profit of Xin Yunlian Group
for the five years ending 31 December 2024 in aggregate shall
be not less than RMB153 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$167.5 million) (the “Guaranteed Profit”). The vendor
represents that the aggregate consolidated net profit of Xin
Yunlian Digital and Xin Yunlian Cloud for the five years ending
31 December 2024 is expected to be not less than RMB300
million (equivalent to approximately HK$328.4 million). If the
actual audited consolidated net profit of Xin Yunlian Group
for the five years ending 31 December 2024 in aggregate (the
“Actual Profit”) falls short of the Guaranteed Profit, the vendor
will make up the shortfall to be determined in the manner set
out in the paragraph headed “(2) Profit guarantee” in the circular
of the Company dated 30 June 2020.
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Profit Guarantee in respect of the Consultancy Agreement

In respect of the Consultancy Agreement, the Consultant
undertook that if the Actual Profit falls short of the Guaranteed
Profit, the Consultant will irrevocably assigns the Company to sell
the Consideration Shares, and the sale proceeds will be applied
to compensate the Company for the shortfall.

The Company will publish further announcements in a timely
manner to inform Shareholders of the fulfillment of the profit
guarantee and where applicable, the Company’s action upon
non-fulfillment failure of the profit guarantee.

Incentive payment

To incentivize the vendor to contribute in the development of Xin
Yunlian Group after completion of the Acquisition, the Company
agreed to issue to the vendor convertible notes to settle the
incentive payment or to pay the vendor in cash at the request
of the vendor in the event that the Actual Profit exceeds the
Guaranteed Profit, details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “Incentive Payment” in the circular of the Company
dated 30 June 2020.

For details of the Acquisition, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 16 November 2019, 29 June 2020, 22 July
2020 and 31 July 2020, and the circular dated 30 June 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2021, the Shareholders approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “2021 Share Option Scheme”)
and the termination of a share option scheme adopted in 2011
(the "2011 Share Option Scheme”) to the effect that no further
share options of the Company (the “Share Options”) shall be
offered under the 2011 Share Option Scheme but the Share
Options which had been granted during the life of the 2011
Share Option Scheme should continue to be valid and exercisable
pursuant to the terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme.

The 2021 Share Option Scheme is designed to (i) motivate the
eligible participants to optimize their performance efficiency for
the benefit of the Group, and (ii) attract and retain or otherwise
maintain an on-going business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.
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The eligible participants are any full-time or part-time employees,
executives, officers or directors (including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of the Group and any
suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisors who, in
the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or have contributed
to the Group.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options and the share options
granted under any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2021 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each grantee, save that
such period shall end in any event not later than ten years from
the date of grant of the option and subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.

There is no minimum period required under the 2021 Share
Option Scheme for holding of the share options before it can
be exercised, unless otherwise determined by the Directors and
stated in the offer of the grant of share options to a grantee.
An option may be accepted by a participant within 30 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option by payment from the
participant and receipt by the Company of HK$1.00 prior to or
on the last date of the said 30 days period.

The exercise price will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but must be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The 2021 Share Option Scheme will expire on 10 June 2031. As
at the date of this annual report, the remaining life of the 2021
Share Option Scheme is approximately nine years and two months.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and
2021 Share Option Scheme is 1,070,585,762, which comprises
(i) 293,000,000 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
outstanding share options under the 2011 Share Option Scheme;
and (ii) a maximum number of 777,585,762 share options
available for grant under the 2021 Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 13.77% of the issued share capital
(i.e. 7,775,857,621 Shares).

Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme and 2021 Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Details of movements in the share options under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme during FY2021 were as follows:

Number of share options held

WoB- B —F——ERREHAET
BB BHEDT

frisBRERR
Closing
Price of share Weighted
immediately average
Balance as Balance before  closing price
at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at the date of immediate
1 January during during during 31 December Exercise grant of before the
Category Date of grant 2021 the period the period the period 2021  Exercise Period of Share Options Price  share options exercise dates
HKS HKS HK$
R=%=-% RAERRE BROE
RZB=-% Ttz BRERH RHEAIN
-B-H =t-A RN METS
23 RABH &8 BARHE BRig HBREX 4 BRENGES e bHE bmE
B B B
Employees 20 March 2018 91,500,000 = (5000000 (91,000,000) - Anytime within 20/3/2018 to 19/3/2021 0.188 0.187 0227
&8 ZE-N\$=A=tH ZE-\EZAZTEEZF--FZATABHEAKER
30 December 2020 142,300,000 S = (7,000,000) 135,300,000 Any time within 30/12/2021 to 29/12/2025 0.200 0.200 S
“E-RE+-A=1H —g-- ¢+ A=+BE-Z-RFT-A-TAR
BREARE
Consultants 20 March 2018 336,080,000 - - (336,080,000) - Any time W\thm 20/3/2018 to 19/3/2021 0.188 0.187 -
B —Z-\¥=A=+H ZE-N\EZRA-THECZZ-FZATARBEAEN
30 December 2020 150,000,000 - - - 150,000,000 Any time within 30/12/2021 to 29/12/2025 0.200 0.200 -
ZERCRETZASTH —%z- ¢+ A=tRE-Z-RE+ZAZTAR
Eilslaket:
Director
gz
Dr. Lyu Ziang 30 December 2020 7,700,000 - - - 7,700,000 Any time within 30/12/2021 to 29/12/2025 0.200 0.200 o
BFREL ZECRETCAZHH CEC-EtCAZTAECECRFT-ACTAA
HERRE
Total 727,580,000 = (500,000)  (434,080,000) 293,000,000
b

As at 31 December 2021, a total of 293,000,000 share options
granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme were outstanding.
Amongst which 150,000,000 share options were granted to
three consultants (the “Consultants”) on 30 December 2020
with 50,000,000 share options each. Such share options shall
be exercisable from 30 December 2021 to 29 December 2025
(both days inclusive) (the “Exercise Period”). The number of share
options that each Consultant can exercise each year during the
Exercise Period shall not exceed one third of the share options
granted to such Consultant, except that the maximum number of
share options that each Consultant can exercise during the last
year of the Exercise Period shall be all remaining share options
granted to such Consultant that have not been exercised. To the
best knowledge of the Company, each of the three Consultants
is an independent third party and they all have extensive
experience in the micro-finance and tobacco and logistic
industries. The grant of the share options to the Consultants is
primarily to motivate them to optimize their future performance
and efficiency to the Group following the acquisition of Xin
Yunlian Group in July 2020. The Consultants would be providing
their expertise to the Group in the area of supply-chain financing
in the PRC and the tobacco and logistic markets in the PRC.
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For the 336,080,000 share options that were granted to certain
consultants of the Group on 20 March 2018, such share options
were exercisable for a period of three years from the date of
grant. All of the 336,080,000 share options had lapsed in March
2021. The breakdown of the grant of share options to these
consultants of the Group are set out below:
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R-ZE-—NF=ZA-_tHRAAXEESE TE
fE % 11336,080,00017 B& A% #E - & 3 08 A% &
BRCAPBT=ZFHBEARN FITFE-2H
336,080,000 EREE R _TE=_—F=HAX
R o M7z 5 AN 5 B BRI 2 BB R R BB A
I

Grantee Expertise No. of option
ARA BER BREHA
Grantee A Business Consultant 60,000,000
AR AA ES TS

Grantee B PRC Legal Consultant 60,000,000
AR AB B A 2 R

Grantee C PRC Tax Consultant 60,000,000
AR AC Fp B 75 745 A e

Grantee D Business Consultant 60,000,000
A AD EXED

Grantee E Business Consultant 60,000,000
7¥K Tﬁ }\ E %%Eﬁ Fcﬂ

Grantee F Investment Consultant 36,080,000
IR AF T & M

To the best knowledge of the Company, each of the above
consultants of the Group is an independent third party and they
have extensive experience in the financing guarantee industries,
PRC legal and tax and investment. The grant of the share options
to the above consultants of the Group was primarily to recognize
and acknowledge their contribution to the Group in the areas
of PRC legal and tax, investment and the financing guarantee
industries and motivate them to continue their contribution to
the Group as a whole.

No share options has been granted under 2021 Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Acquisition Agreement, the Consultancy Agreement
and the Company'’s share option schemes as disclosed above, the
Company had not entered into other equity-linked agreement
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
set up by the Board and is based on their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the share
option scheme is set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statement. As at
31 December 2021, no forfeited contributions were available to
reduce the existing level of contributions payable by the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur or about the execution
and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto. Directors’
liability insurance policies containing permitted indemnity
provisions have been taken out and maintained in force during
the financial year and as at the date of approval of this report to
provide appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group in respect of the relevant liabilities and
costs associated with legal proceedings against them.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During FY2021, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group provides a harmonious and professional working
environment to employees and ensures they all are reasonable
remunerated. The Company regular reviews and updates its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group also recognises that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners and customers to achieve
its long-term goals. During the year, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. Double-sided
printing and copying, using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance are being implemented in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from
time to time and will consider further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation.

Details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance
will be set out the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
to be published by the Company in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its businesses, financial condition, operations
and prospects. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.
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Strategic Risk
SR G B B

Risk Description
2| B 4

Risk Mitigation
Y

Investment risk

RERRE

The Group from time to time needs to expand
by acquiring new line of business. Some
of the merger and acquisition concerns
are the overvalue of the target company,
insufficient operational experience, no in-
house expertise, under-estimation of time
and resources required to run the business,
or the target company fails to perform etc.

REENSGHTERWBEBNRBRBERNRR -
—LEHERERE: BEARKERS
HELRIRE RZAMERAH KM
TEEXBMFENRENER BER
AIRBEEASE -

In the event that the Group fails to conduct
comprehensive due diligence on the target
company or closely monitor the share
price of the invested stock and bonds, the
Group's financial condition and operating
results would be materially and adversely
affected.

MAEBEREHERLAAFAREZENER
HEXBYERBRREREREFNHK
B AAREEZMBERRREEREHT
NERINEE-
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Before investing in a new project
or acquiring a new business, the
Board performs a full management
assessment and due diligence on the
new project/new business, its business
models, financial performance, market
trend, growth opportunities, and
business valuations, etc.

ERENBEBRWEN X 2 EFES
HWIEB HER AEBESA BB
XE - THBE HREEREKME
SETEENEIEE RGN EBSA
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The Group also engages external
consultants/experts/valuers/advisors/
professionals to support technical
evaluations or provide independent
assessment.

RNEBINELINBER EREHERM,
BN/ BEALZIHEMTESLIR
B FF A

The management continuously monitors
the progress of the acquisition to ensure
the acquisition is within its expected
financial performance. Any material
discrepancy identified needs to be
investigated and informed to the Board
immediately. Moreover, the management
conducts independent assessment on
the adequacy of all the critical internal
control points and risk areas of the
newly acquired business to ensure that
all the controls and risk mitigations are
in place.

EREFBLERWEER  ARRWER
EREHMBRE -WEREANERE
B PAVAETASTRINESS-
AN - B3R B L AT T M R A R B
A Ao B I B K L B B I RO T 0
1 AREIRE B A 12 6 R R R R iR
i



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EESRE

Strategic Risk Risk Description Risk Mitigation
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Unpredictable Major disasters or unpredictable incidents, The Group has established emergency
incidents or such as pandemic, natural disaster, fire responses policies and procedures for
disasters etc. may impact the Group’s operational the management and employees to

FAIFERMNEHRKE  capabilities and the financial performance.
AT BAKE AKFEBRLHBHAA
BRANSHA e ERESEN EER

R ES L

follow. For the outbreak of COVID-19,
the Group has implemented measures
to safeguard the health of its
employees, such as work from home
arrangement, physical distancing, regular
environmental cleaning and disinfection,
and limiting unnecessary travel etc. Also,
the Group has provided its employees
with surgical face masks, hand sanitizers
and alcohol sprays.

AREBEHIEEEEMNE I RERENE

2R AMIZF o A COVID-195% 15 18 3%
% AEBEERSEREAMREEST
fERE - INERMALTHE (RIS FEEIEEE -

FHIEITIR BB 2 FE & U KR #

NERRBEZ WV XEBEAEESR
TIREEZAIMEIOE - RFRAOERBE
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For the unpredictable disasters, such as

fire, the Group has purchased sufficient
insurance coverages.
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Operational Risk Risk Description
R E b 2| B 4

Risk Mitigation
Y
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Loan guarantee risk One of the Company's businesses is engaged
ERERRER in the provision of credit-based financing
guarantee. The business depends on their
partners to perform credit check. The
Group's monitoring of the partners’ credit
check is utmost important. If the partners
do not execute the credit check properly, it
could lead to loan default.
ARABMER —BERRIEHEEREE
RoZEBIHORRESERHRITEES
B AREERZEZCERHFEETEN
AR EHBEE - MEZESIERHNEER
BERZENT BATEBREREN -
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The Group has strengthened the key
aspects of the lending policy and
procedures to ensure that a thorough
and comprehensive credit checks
are performed before granting of
the guarantee. Also, the Group
has performed regular monitoring
of the financial position of the
borrowers, frequent checks on the
counterparties/partners on their work
in credit check, monitoring of credit
performance of the borrowers, and
reporting of loan status as required by
the policy and procedures established by
the Group.

AEBEDMBREREREFOBERA
H ERRHEFRIETHE 2EH
SEEL I AEBC EHERE
RARBRBIRN HEBEHF AE
BHONEESEIE BEEERANGE
EXRBAREAREE S FERBE RRZ
FriiE s BRI

Furthermore, the Group detects leading
indicators of problems, and any sign of
material issues will be reported to the
management immediately for actions.
The Group continuously monitors the
Group's credit risk management strategy
and credit checking policy on those
counterparties/partners. The strategies
and credit checking policy are reviewed
and updated on a regular basis. Also,
a standardized follow-up and recovery
procedures for bad loans have been
established.
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Risk Mitigation
Y

The Group currently has prepayment for
the consumable goods trading, deposit
paid to financing guarantee platform,
and bank for loan guarantee. There is
a risk of prepayment, deposit, and loan
receivable recoverability that could lead to
write-off and affect the Group’s financial
performance.

AEERBHERESNENKIE N TR
BEERTENZEURNTFRITERE
RERNZE FHEBNRE e RE
W E R E AT 3 W R - T B B B K
TERNEENP BRI -

Loan, prepayment,
deposit, and
trade receivable risk
EXC-EAMFIE -ZER
P& U B % L B

The Group is currently involved in a number
of litigations and arbitrations in the PRC.
Lawsuits can have an adverse impact on
the Group, and the impact may lead to
significant monetary settlements that
materially affect the Group’s bottom line
and reputation.

$$.§HW¢.§§%? m&@ﬁ?
oAl e RNEBEL TFTE #
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%@ﬁﬁégﬁ
BARENEREREE -

Litigation risk
o 75 [ B

RPESRMERERAF

The Group continuously monitors the
deposit paid and receivables on a regular
basis. Any sign of issues will be reported
to management for actions.

AEEFHBETHERD MRS RERR
HoHREMBEERRKERBEERS
VABRERTT &) ©

Currently, the Group has engaged a
professional legal team to handle the
litigations and arbitrations. Any sign of
material issues will be reported to the
management immediately for actions.
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Risk Description
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Risk Mitigation
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Cyber security and
leakage of sensitive
information

MR RBBER
BE

The Group is involved in loan financing,
loan referral and consultancy, provision of
credit-based financing guarantee, securities
brokerage business, asset management
and insurance brokerage. Some of these
businesses rely on IT technologies to keep
track of customer information, transaction
records, personal and financial data of
customers etc. All of these records are
highly confidential.

AEBREERRE ERENKRFHRA R
HEREENREER BHRLLES
BEEEERRBEL -BOEB T D HAHE
BEERMRREZFERE RIHLHE &
FOEANMTBERE -FIBZFLekS

BERE -

Also, some of the customers pay for the
services through third-party online payment
service providers. For such transactions,
secure transmission of confidential
information, such as customers’ debit
and credit card numbers and expiry dates,
personal information and billing addresses,
over the public networks is essential.

N BAEFPERBE=HERINRS
BAXMRBEE - RZEXHMNE  BRE
AHPRBEHOREBERN (WEPORFE
TREARFEHLIGR - BEABR KK
B2+ oER-

Any leakage of these information will have
serious consequences to the Group and
the customers. Any significant breach
of security of the Group's technology
platform could lead to the lawsuits
brought by the customers and sanctions by
government authorities in the jurisdictions
in which it operates, resulting in significant
harm to the Group's business operation,
reputation and financial position.

ZEEHNEMRBEOEUAEBENEP
ERERERR -WMASBERMTFaNLE
REEBRERE A RREHEFIREA
12 5 7A N B BT E RDA RE [ 60 IR T A
BIELHIE EMBEERERNEENER
2B BB NN -
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The Group has implemented measures
to protect the Group's proprietary
information database from internet
hacking and other unauthorized
access to the customers’ confidential
information.

AEBEEKREBARERNEENEE
ERNBBEERATHEGBEELE & IE
ARBSEESHEFHNREEFR -

The Group continuously monitors and
upgrades its software and systems to the
latest cyber-attack prevention version.
Systems vulnerability and penetration
testing are carried out regularly to
ensure that the data are protected from
unauthorized access. Also, the Group
has developed a companywide cyber
risk policy and emergency procedures in
case of security breach.

REERBEEITARMMAES W&
BREGNERERFTD BB E R
N o TEEIBIT R GUROR A2 E RIS LA
BREBXIIRE RXALEENSE
Blottsh REBE HIEAFEEAAE
BERBBENZZRAESET-

Furthermore, the technical team regularly
receives updates and training relating
to cyber risk and business continuity,
and all critical data are backed up on a
regular basis and all backups are stored
in secured and safe places.
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Risk Mitigation
Y

Risk of improper
dealing
FEXRSHE

Employee fraud, partner fraud, money
laundering and market manipulation could
have a negative impact on the Group.
According to the Code of Conduct for
Persons Licensed by or Registered with
the Securities and Futures Commission,
employees have the obligation to disclose
and identify all the securities, futures
contracts or leveraged foreign exchange
contracts of their own dealings and report
to their senior management.

1B B EGF A EREEGE 8 RISt

FORAIEHASEEKEETE - RIE
(BrMHPEEBERZEGRMAL
AMARTER) EEBEETERBEIL
FMEBSRZNMERS HEEHOHE
BIRIMERK AMSREBERS -

Failure to detect employee’s trading
malpractice and to prevent conflicts of
interests between a firm’s clients and its
employees, it may jeopardize the interests
of the employers and clients as a result.

MAEEREENITERIABRAF T
FRESRLANGRER AESBEEE
I REFPHIMNE -
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The Group has established the Anti-

Money Laundering ("AML") guideline
and procedures for complying with the
regulatory requirements of Securities
and Futures Commission ("SFC") and
Insurance Authority ("IA"). The Group
has carried out full assessment and due
diligence on new customers and existing
customers, and keeps monitoring if
there are any suspicious transactions.
Also, the internal control system has
been set-up, such as dual authorization
and reviews, in order to lower the risk
of fraud.

AEECDHENAESFRPAEEHESR
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Furthermore, the employees involved

in licence operations are required to
attend AML training in order to update
and refresh the latest development of
the relevant legislation and regulatory
requirements. They are required to
declare if they have any existing trading
accounts opened in other securities
trading firm and all stocks held prior to
their employment.
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EEEHE

Compliance Risk
aRER

Risk Description
2| B 4

Risk Mitigation
Y

Non-compliance
with SFC, listing
rules and PRC

regulatory
authorities
TREeRES
tHRARPEEE
BENERE

As a listed company in Hong Kong, the
Group has to comply with the rules and
regulations established by the regulatory
bodies. The rules and regulations that the
Group has to follow include the Listing
Rules, Companies Ordinance, Securities
& Futures Ordinance, and accounting
standards (e.g., Hong Kong Financial

Reportin Standards) etc.
ES—BAE LT AR ARENBETE
“%%Hm@ﬁ% iﬁ mlbﬁ%

On 10 December 2021, the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange has published conclusions to its
consultation on Review of the Corporate
Governance (“CG") Code and Related
Listing Rules, to enhance the listed issuers’
CG standards and reporting. The new
requirements have come into effect on

_ 1January 2022.
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It is important for the Group to have
control measures to fulfil the compliance
requirements. As these rules and
regulations are subject to regular updates
from time to time, changes in regulations
could make the Group's current business
models unprofitable or unsustainable.
This is evidenced by the PRC regulatory
authorities that has tightened up the
regulations in consumer guarantee lending

platforms.

SORRETE MR R AR
R ABE - %5 B R T
BERE AR EE A EE A
N RN L B Y YIE SR L
EER G CUe T B
EREE TAMEE 35 BH

Failure to comply with these rules within
the designated timeframe may lead to
fines and legal penalties, and could lead
to damages to the Group's reputation in
extreme cases.

MEEEREAREETZERA AlEe
BY IR SOEREE] - BB T Al ae

REBHBEERIEE -
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The management of the Group reviews
the new disclosure requirements, Listing
Rules, and accounting standards, etc.
Any material changes that could impact
the Group will be reported to senior
management or the Board for actions.
Also, the Group has engaged external
professional parties (e.g., auditors and
lawyers) to provide advice on the new
disclosure reg\ uirements.

REEERESEMINRESZRK £
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Furthermore, the Group regularly assesses
the financial exposure on those business
lines that could be affected by regulatory
changes. Regular training has been
provided to the staff on new regulatory
and compliance requirements.
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Compliance Risk
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Risk Description
2| B 4

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EESRE

Risk Mitigation
Y

Non-compliance
with governmental

policies

THEBFBE

Licensing &

regulatory risk
BRREE

[ B

The Group's businesses in securities brokerage,
asset management, insurance brokerage,
asset management, loan guarantee and
loan consultation services are greatly
influenced by governmental policies
(including macro policies, monetary policies
and financial policies).

REENZESFLL EEERE RRLL -
mfﬂ%&?f/mmﬂﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ&ft
XPNBRE(BEREBRE BEEBRK
TRER)TE-

Failure to comply with the governmental
policies may expose the Group to the risk
of legal or regulatory sanctions, material
financial loss, or loss of reputation.

IAREEE TR - AN E Al e R A 1E
FEETR BEAVBERIBEXEN
[, B o

The Group's businesses such as loan
guarantee, securities brokerage, asset
management, loan financing, loan
referral and consultancy services are
highly regulated businesses. They need
licenses and continuous compliance of
the rules and regulations. There is a risk
of non-compliance of licensing and other
regulatory requirements by the Group.

AEENER (FINERER BBHLL-
BEERE BEXRE EXEN LF AR
%)7% ABBREENER ZXEFXHH
ERREFBETER LRI - NEEF
ETE TR R EAMEEE R E AN RR -

As a licensed and regulated corporation,
some licenses, such as Type 1 and the
Money Lenders Licence, are mandatory
for the operation of the Group's business.
Failure to renew or obtain all relevant
licenses would impact the business
operations and the Group may be subject

to fines.
{’E%%J#E‘EE%EE EEAEERLEHER
VEARBBAETER (B 1EEBREAR

fR) o 2N KB Efiﬁ%/ 5 FIT S AR AR AR

ZIKEIE’J%FX ERXBTEW A EE
S e

The management of the Group are kept
informed of the regulatory/policy
updates by receiving notification emails
from different institutions and regulatory
bodies from time to time. Management
and department head also attend
external training/workshop/forum on
relevant matters, such as corporate
governance, connected parties,
government polices etc. to keep abreast
of the changes in the applicable laws
and regulations.

AEBERETHEEMNAKBLRES
BB BAEE  EEREER T HOR
MEH -BEERBFIEERZ2INEHA
TEER BEAT BUTHREZIEH
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AR ER &

Licenses and regulatory team is supported
by external consultants such as
lawyers, accountants, and compliance
consultants to monitor the licenses
and regulatory requirements that could
affect the Group's guarantee and
lending businesses.

hR R N B B B B i | SN BR AR (I an 42
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The Group has developed procedures in
internal control and monitoring process
to regularly review the operations to
ensure the licensing compliance and
to keep abreast of the new regulatory
requirements. The compliance
consultants are responsible for reviewing
the compliance report of the Group
before the submission to the regulation
regulatory bodies.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this report, there are no important events
affecting the Group after FY2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float under the
Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company securities.
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AUDITOR

As at the date of this report, there was no change in auditor of
the Company in any of the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2021
have been audited by HLM CPA Limited. A resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Kequan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EESRE

% B

BEARSHEY REBE=FEF—F L&
SR RAN/NCTE 3 2 (T

AEBR T -_—MENGEEMHHRREH
EBREAMITERAREZ - E_T-_FK
RBEFAREL BREREZREEE/SLRQT
T2 2RE

RREZS
o

"R
B —E-—F=H_-+hH

RAESHMERABRIF | T - —FFH

61



62

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RBERE

181 & 3+ 67 47 H TR 4 3]
HLM CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Rooms 1501-8, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
FUEF AL L POA181 98 KA R 1581501-8%F
Tel FE#f: (852) 3103 6980

Fax {8 EL: (852) 3104 0170

E-mail 7 #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GREATER CHINA FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
RPESRERERAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 71 to 250, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRE

s ET 1A

FARBTFEERERMOEXAE RAY
AR EVBERERNBHIRAEENTE &
LEFIEERMEBAERBEAV SRR L H
AERRETEEN BM T ELEEIRE
HEBNHER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREETEER

BMNESTNMEEARENSTRETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

7B YRl (B R

Referring to notes 18 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Company
had performed an impairment review in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” in relation to
the Group’s goodwill belonging to Tobacco Financing
CGU. The Group had recognised an impairment loss
on goodwill of HK$98,549,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 as a result of the impairment review.

2HGRAEVBHHREMFI8K20: BERFAERED

REBEGTEUFICREERE]H EXEH
BEERERSELBNMBNEEETREMR -

RERE®RST SEEEREHEE_ZT-_—F+—-A
=+ — B It FE R E R EE 898,549,000/ T °

The assessment of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs required involvement of significant judgements
and assumptions by management concerning the
estimated future cash flows and other key inputs and
involved high level of estimation uncertainty.

AR eEABUMNAINO AT REREMMGAR
RIR & m 8 K E th BA B2 8 A BUR VB H B R HIET R RE%
W KmE e st N HEE T -

Accordingly, we have identified management’s
impairment assessment of the goodwill as a key audit
matter.

EHit BB EREEEmERENGEN R —EH
ﬁx%ﬁf%lﬁ\ °©

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BMREEZEFAMRRNEERF B

e discussing with and, where applicable, sought
corroborative supporting information from the
management of the Company and the independent
valuer engaged by the Company (the “Valuer”)
regarding the reasonableness of the valuation
methodologies adopted and the key inputs used;

e B BERFEBERERK BEARZENB(AEM
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FENSEMETHmE (MER)MESKEE

XFFER

e discussing with the management of the Company
and the Valuer about the key assumptions used in
forming the CGU's value-in-use calculation including
the cash flow projections and discount rates used
and evaluating the relevance and reasonableness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

o E“TaﬁF&ﬁ@%ﬁ RIS ELE
Az AEES %%%M@%P“‘@%ﬁim
ERANAARE R WERERMABEBENITE
BT R TR REROBEBE RS RN &

e assessing the competency and experience of the
Valuer.

o FHAHERMENRER-
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREESER

BANFTNAHBARE S HETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables
and provision of guarantee losses

FEWRRERENERERERRE

Referring to notes 4, 8, 24, 25 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group had recognised
impairment losses, net of reversal, on loans and
interest receivables, trade and other receivables and
provision for financial guarantees of HK$51,459,000,
HK$127,169,000 and HK$120,977,000 respectively.
2PUBE_TE-_—F+_-_A=+—RBLtEEZ2&HEAE
M mENES 824 25K31 EBEEBCHERE
WE R B EWBR R b B W SR IE R (B S 18
(R E) & b & &R D 51l /351,459,000 7T
127,169,0007% 7T %120,977,0007% 7T °

Impairment assessment of receivables and provision
of guarantee losses is a key area due to the level of
judgement exercised by the management in determining
the amount of allowance and provisions

HREEBEEECREREFESNSERFTEZERAR
Z b MEUBCRIE R ER G R EREERE DB

o

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BAREEZSFAMRRNEERF B

e assessing the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls from approval to recording
and monitoring of receivables and financial
guarantees issued, the credit assessment process,
the identification and timeliness of identifying
impairment indicators, continuous re-assessment
of the appropriateness of assumptions used in the
collective assessment model and the management's
specific provisions for individual receivables and
guarantee losses;

o FMEEURIERDBELMEELRREBHIIAERK
B RIRET BRI G ) R At REER R EE T
MR R E R B BB M B AT AR
FABRREEMNRFEENTHREEEMRER
FEW R IR S R R EIESHR B E B

64

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRE

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREESER

BT NAHBAREN S HETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables and
provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

FEWSCRRENGERERBEERES (B)

The balances of impairment allowance for the
receivables and provision of guarantee losses represent
the management’s best estimates of expected credit
losses (“ECL") at the reporting date under the expected
credit loss models.

EU R IB R ERE R EREBEENERDEEER
EEHREEBER(RBEEBE)RANKEHH
HEREEBENREMR-

The measurement models of ECL involves significant
management judgements and assumptions, primarily
including the following:
EHMEEFEENAEEAAE R EELEXRAE LR
HOEBEEATRIE:

— Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

- BExEERRELEEZFEM

BB B 1R R IR 2E

FREHELEEON

— Economic indicators for
measurement, and applicable
and weightings.

- BARAEMFENKERER URERAKEBR
K INFE

forward-looking
economic scenarios

We have identified management’'s impairment
assessments of the ECL of receivables and provision
of guarantee as a key audit matter because of the
significant amounts of the receivables and provision
for financial guarantees to the financial position of
the Group and the management judgement and
assumption.

BB EREEHE Y RIBBAREEBRNRMERN G X
EREGAN R -—HHAREFTFTR EAR] EF
M BARAME  BURBERRERREERS S
BMEAEFTEZEREFELHE RRKRR-

e comparing the total balances of the receivables
list and guarantee list, which contain information
used by management to assess impairment losses
for loans and interest receivables and provisions
for guarantee losses, with the general ledger
and comparing individual loans and guarantees
information, on a sample basis, with the underlying
loan and guarantee agreements and other related
documentation to assess the presentation of the
information in the due diligence report, risk control
report and the loan list and guarantee list;

o HHEEERNMEERERLAMERMEEER
BEREEEBENEURBESERIERSRABER
R RAR A B — M WA MR T AL B E
B E AN (R B F B2 4 e B 5 N R IR hh ek A0 EL
AR — B A ERBAETRE  BEER
ENERSREERSEAEHNIIRER

e evaluating and assessing the consistency and
reasonableness of assumptions adopted in
management’s calculation of impairment losses
for receivables and provisions for guarantee losses
by critically assessing input parameters involving
subjective judgement, seeking collaborative evidence
from external sources and comparing historical
losses against the Group’s other internal records and
prior year records. We also assessed the emergence
period by tracing the life-cycle of overdue accounts
from the specific credit events to downgrading
the accounts to non-performing receivables and
guarantees;

o FMEBEREEERURIBRERREREREER
BRAAREN —BEREEMN FXEHET
P REEFIE M A2E SRINEER A8
FEsEBAE SEEAEMAMBRER - —FEH
RREREITHL - RN RPIBBRM B IR EE
FEEAFHELINBEERASTREBWFIAMN
EROZBER RGOS

e reviewing ageing analysis of the receivables
prepared by management of the Company and
discussing with the management of the Company
whether the amounts are recoverable on a sample
basis;

o RHMKEEERN EQFEEEREMNEIUIE
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREESER

BANFTNAHBARE S HETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables and
provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

FEWSCERENGERERBERERES (B)

e examining the management’s estimation on
the ECL of individual balances on sample basis
and the expected loss rate of each category
groups and evaluating the basis and factors
used in the estimation to the appropriateness of
the management’s identification of significant
increase in credit risk, defaults and credit impaired
receivables;

s RMEKEEELTEREYUMEMAMRETHRBAE
EFBMATARBRAENNTEHERE  WTH
Mt EANEERREARZ UTEHEREBHES
b EL N B REBREERENREKRIE
BRI R E 1T

e recalculating the amount of impairment losses for
receivables and provisions for guarantee losses; and

o EMHERUGEREEBERANMEREEREESRE:
N

e checking subsequent settlements of receivables and
guarantees on a sample basis.
o MMERERUGIENBEROHEBERBR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence, that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RBERE

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

YIP YUEN NGA

Practising Certificate Number: P05908
Hong Kong

29 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meRakEMEEKSER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE
2021 2020
—E- - C—ET-FTF
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FHET FAT
Revenue WA 5
Contracts with customers BEAH 280,009 389,887
Interest under effective interest method BRERF R EZAERNF A 4,858 2,433
Total revenue WA B8 284,867 392,320
Cost of sales Fi=R=—1 W (122,441) (279,008)
Gross profit EF 162,426 113,312
Other income, gains and losses Hiig A~ Wz B 7 163,848 37,544
Administrative and other operating TR R EM RS
expenses (109,561) (126,060)
Share-based payment expenses AR A RE R S (4,599) (13)
Provision for financial guarantees B A EIR B S 31 (120,977) (122,544)
Impairment loss, net of reversal EEE1E - MR R 8 (176,049) (147,323)
Impairment loss on goodwill HE 7 EEERER 18 (98,549) (32,722)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BIVEEZRBEEBRE 19 - (1,618)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FHRBEEZREREE 17 (12,981) (7,607)
Finance costs B 78 X AN 9 (29,244) (14,226)
Loss before taxation % 4 A1 S 18 (225,686) (301,257)
Income tax credit (expense) Frigfiile () 10 23,925 (21,021)
Loss for the year FREE 11 (201,761) (322,278)
Other comprehensive income HM2EmWA (Bx) r HIKRFHE
(expense), net of tax
Item that will not be reclassified H# e dd BEi850
subsequently to profit or loss: IFH :
Change in fair value of financial BEATEFAEMZEKZEZ
assets at fair value through SREENFEEES
other comprehensive income (7,789) 4,353
Items that are or may be reclassified HEABEEF 7 HE BB -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation RBEBINEEMELEN
of foreign operations fE N =%3 12,177 36,482
Reserves released upon deregistration BUH 5 11 B B A 5] B 7 B 1
of subsidiaries (2) =
Reserves released upon disposal HE M B ARG RREREE
of a subsidiary (22) -
Other comprehensive income FREMLZEWA
for the year 4,364 40,835
Total comprehensive expense FRATHEHBEXHAEHE
for the year (197,397) (281,443)
RPESRMIERERART | T _—FFW
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBRakEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F C—T-TF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTET FET
(Loss) profit for the year DTATEAFR (EE)EF:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NIIE PN (202,592) (335,628)
Non-controlling interests JEPEPE REZS 831 13,350
(201,761) (322,278)
Total comprehensive (expense) LDTFTATESAERZE (BX)
income for the year PN L
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KNARIEER A (205,170) (307,619)
Non-controlling interests AR T 7,773 26,176
(197,397) (281,443)
HK cents HK cents
Al el
Loss per share BRER 15
Basic R (2.61) (4.61)
Diluted e (2.61) 4.61)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a BRI R

At 31 December 2021 R-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—B--F T _TF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MIFE FET FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB RHE 16 77,016 83,235
Right-of-use assets EAREE 17 26,369 22,515
Goodwill (RS 18 228,033 326,582
Intangible assets mILAE 19 500 500
Interests in associates NN oL v ey 21 - -
Financial assets at fair value through &z A FExF A H b 2 H U258
other comprehensive income PREE 22 3,505 11,175
Financial assets at fair value through &R AFEFFAEBZNEMEE
profit or loss 23 144,513 26,309
Deferred tax assets FELEFRIEE E 34 49,061 17,402
Deposits ®’e 26 1,055 255
530,052 487,973
Current assets REEE
Loans and interest receivables EREFRFE 24 342,298 359,938
Trade and other receivables JrE AT BR R % L A W R IR 25 77,609 52,297
Prepayments and deposits AR FRIARES 26 101,028 72,496
Loans to and interest receivables BT AR S U R B
from a non-controlling interest 43 140,531 56,550
Loans to and interest receivables ERT—RHEE QR RERERNE
from an associate 43 1,260 7,562
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFAEBSNESREE
through profit or loss 23 20,891 35,583
Tax receivables & U2 i 7B = 9
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEENRS 27 807 1,015
Restricted bank deposits XRHRITER 28 38,188 117,430
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELFEY 29 47,936 90,241
770,548 793,121
Assets classified as held for sale PEARIELENEE 36 = 5,563
770,548 798,684
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables, other payables, JE A~ BR 30 Eo At JE AT 3R IE -
deposits received and accruals BEEe REFTER 30 116,857 169,664
Contract liabilities BHEE 162 141
Lease liabilities HEaE 33 5,777 7,922
Liabilities from financial guarantees MEEREE 31 359,925 231,294
Amount due to non-controlling FEA FEVE AR #E 22 5RIE
interests 43 10,306 9,975
Borrowings BE 32 63,799 73,046
Tax payables FERTHEIR 12,277 6,588
569,103 498,630
Liabilities associated with assets EABARELENEEESHEMNAE
classified as held for sale 36 - 4,461
569,103 503,091
Net current assets REBEEFE 201,445 295,593
Total assets less current liabilities ®EERRBARS 731,497 783,566
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E BB R

At 31 December 2021 R-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—B--F _—ZT_FTF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
{hg=a FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBAME
Lease liabilities HERE 33 10,992 55
Borrowings BE 32 178,082 59,380
Convertible notes AR RE 35 175,280 161,707
364,354 221,142
Net assets EEFE 367,143 562,424
Capital and reserve BEARR B
Share capital LR 37 7,776 7,775
Reserves Gk 140,424 340,902
Equity attributable to owners of RRRHEB AEILER
the Company 148,200 348,677
Non-controlling interests FEERR = 218,943 213,747
Total equity RERBET 367,143 562,424

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial &M B # MK BZ SRR VAR 2

4N\ o

statements. 7]

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 250 were  E{RF7T1BE E250E 2R AMBHRRIIKES
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson @R _-_ZE-—F = A -+ LA & RTER

29 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: TEBRERKREE:
Mr. Liu Kequan Mr. Yang Dayong
BRmRELE BREXE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2 EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAEL
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share option  notesequity  Translation  Revaluation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
TEREE
e RABE  BRERE ERRE ERGE Efifit EERE iR Mt FERER @

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TATL TAL TAL TEL TATL TAL TAL TAL

At 1 January 2020 RZZZT5-f-H 6,924 1,969,211 38,808 - (44177) (146,318) 8,586 (1,381,297) 451,737 - 451,737
Loss for the year FABR - - - - - - - (335,628) (335,628) 13,350 (322,278)
Other comprehensive expense E2ERX
- Change in fair value of -RATEFALMEE
financial assets at fair value Wiz eREAELTEE
through other
comprehensive income - - - - - 4353 - - 4353 - 4353
- Exchange differences on -RREENES
translation of foreign operations ~ TIEEMERZE - - - - 23,6% - - - 23,6% 12,826 36,482
Total comprehensive expense ENZERYER
for the year - - - - 23,656 4353 - (335,628) (307,619) 26,176 (281,443)
Recognition of non-controlling ERRERELANELED
interest arising on acquisition FERER
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 187,571 187,571
Issue of shares upon acquisition ~~ MKEMBRABETRA
of subsidiaries 850 150,004 - - - - - - 150,854 - 150,854
Issue of convertible notes RN R A AR
on acquisition of subsidiaries TRRER - - - 53,452 B - - - 53,452 - 53,452
Recognition of equity-settled ERAREEERD
share-based payment expenses TRRERR - = 13 = = = = = 13 - 13
Issue of shares upon exercise R BRESEIRG
of share options 1 352 (113) - - - - - 240 - 240
Share options lapsed FRBRRMBRE
during the year - - (1,046) - - - - 1,046 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTITRE - - - - - - 704 (704) - - -

At 31 December 2020 and RZZZZE+ZA=1-RBR

1 January 2021 —¥--%-f-H 7,775 2,119,567 37,662 53452 (20,521) (141,965) 9,290 (1,716,583) 348,677 213,747 562,424
Loss for the year ERER - - - - & S S (202,592) (202,592) 831 (201,761)
Other comprehensive expense Ep2ERX
- Change n fair value of -BATEHALMEE

financial assets at fai value WEZeRAELTEEY

through other

comprehensive income - - - - & (7,789) S & (7,789) = (7.789)
- Exchange differences on -RAGENEBMELN

translation of foreign operations HER - - - - 5,185 - - - 5,185 6,992 12,177
- Release of translation BRI EE

reserve upon deregistration EiEE

of subsidiaries = = = = @ = = = @ S @
- Release of translation -HE-HNBARGRE

reserve upon disposal EREE

of a subsidiary - - - - 28 - - - 28 (50) (22)
Total comprehensive expense ENZERYESR

for the year - - - - 5211 (7,789) - (202,59) (205,170) 1173 (197,397)
Recognition of equity-settled ERARBEERA XA

share-based payment expenses 353 - = 459 = = = = = 4,59 = 459
Issue of shares upon exercise R BRESEIRG

of share options 1 137 (44) - - - - - 9% - 9%
Share options lapsed FRBARMBERE

during the year - - (37,691) - - - - 37,691 - - -

Derecognition of non-controlling Bt E — G 2 @A B3R

interest on disposal of a subsidiary ~ FERIER - - - - - - - - - 2577) (2,577)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETRE - - - - - - 1,100 (1,100) S S S
At 31 December 2021 1,776 2,119,704 4,526 53,452 (15,310) (149,754) 10,390 (1,882,584) 148,200 218,943 367,143
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁrﬁiiﬁa%%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-FF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(=2 FET FHET
Operating activities RETR
Loss before taxation BR T A BT 1R (225,686) (301,257)
Adjustments for: M TFNIEEEL 2 FAE
Amortisation on intangible assets B EEEH 19 - 255
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB REEITE
equipment 16 9,764 11,215
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 17 4,907 15,112
Fair value change on: EAATEES:
Contingent consideration receivables JEW S ARAE 7 = (495)
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABERT
profit or loss TREE 7 (119,354) (7,052)
Interest income B A (33,170) (22,138)
Investment income REWA 7 (192) (130)
Net realised loss on disposal of HEZRAFEFABED
financial assets at fair value through TREEZ
profit or loss EERERFE 7 145 579
Share-based payment expenses AR 9 S A ;R IB A 2 4,599 13
Consultancy fee expenses wRBRX 37(a) - 4,446
Provision for guarantee losses EREBERE 31 120,977 122,544
Impairment loss, net of reversal RAEEE - MR E 8 176,049 147,323
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 18 98,549 32,722
Impairment loss on intangible assets BIZEERMEREE 19 - 1,618
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EAEEERERE 17 12,981 7,607
Finance costs LUR IO 9 29,244 14,226
Net foreign exchange gain bE 5 U a5 F 5R 7 (226) (32)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MBARI zWE 41 (1,492) -
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HEME WE R
and equipment Rz W F R 7 (250) -
Loss on write-off of property, plant WEEY - BE K&
and equipment R BB 7 118 -~
Gain on lease modification MEBE] 2 W= 7 (640) -
Loss on termination of RIFMELTH 2 EE
a lease arrangement 7 308 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

me

BEREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-FF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET FHTT
Operating cash flows before movements EEELEHAN
in working capital KEHSRE 76,631 26,556
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE LT AR K e L A R W SR IR
2 n (152,977) (32,049)
Increase in loans and interest receivables JFE W E 3k K A B3 N (30,545) (128,271)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments and TR RIBRZES (3En)
deposits V% (26,412) 10,891
(Increase) decrease in loans to and interest BT — B IFIEARRE RS &
receivables from a non-controlling interest  J& W E K| 8 (1 hn) J&k > (57.302) 6,795
Decrease in loans to and interest ERF—HBELAAR
receivables from an associate JE WU EL F) 2R 8,848 14,825
(Decrease) increase in trade payables, FERTBR R - H AL FEST IB
other payables, deposits received BEliEe RETER
and accruals () 18 hn (50,581) 10,065
Decrease (increase) in cash held on REFEBZHRERL
behalf of clients ($&hn) 208 (172)
Increase in contract liabilities =N OR=RES: il 50 89
Decrease in liabilities from BEEREBGERD
financial guarantee - (50)
Decrease (increase) in restricted bank X PR I #1717 OB
deposits (3% h0) 81,617 (57,625)
Cash used in operations KEEBACES (150,463) (148,946)
Interest paid EH g (8,284) (6,212)
Income tax paid EAT 1S %Fﬂ (1,895) (101)
Tax refund Fr 5 15t 3R [|] 119 512
Net cash used in operating activities KEEEBFFACE ST (160,523) (154,747)
Investing activities REEE
Interest received 2 AR 5,865 5,090
Payment for early termination of lease 12 HI Mﬂzfﬁ = T (308) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E ¥ % - = K &E 16 (1,104) (39)
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ’%'«W% 5= K&
plant and equipment & B P18 R 274 -~
Proceeds from disposal of financial ) EH?&?TEJ]\T% w2
assets at fair value through profit or loss TREEFTERT 15,542 11,675
Proceeds from sales and redemption HE RBEERIKRE
of investments Fr 153018 192 130
Proceeds from compensation of i JEJ%ZY%RT
contingent consideration receivable Fr 18 3K - 33,631
Net cash inflow arising on H&Eﬁl‘ﬁﬁ TEEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries WEMAFE 40 - 31,912
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HENBAREEZ
of a subsidiary WE M FE 41 (62) -
Net cash generated from RETBHMEREER
investing activities 20,399 82,399
APESRMIZEREBRART | — T —FFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁrﬁiiﬁa%%

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE"Z-—F+_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B--F _—ZT_FTF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(=2 THT FAET
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from borrowings BEMENIEAE 48 196,062 125,210
Repayment of borrowings BEBE 48 (92,900) (158,446)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T I IR BEFT1S IE 94 240
Repayment for lease liability EREEAE 48 (12,537) (15,759)
Net cash generated from RESEE TS (FTA)
(used in) financing activities REeFH 90,719 (48,755)
Net decrease in cash and RERAESEBYRLS FE
cash equivalents (49,405) (121,103)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HBZBEEK
RE%EY 90,302 205,530
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREEHH T & 7,039 5,875
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—HZzHRER
at 31 December RELEEY 47,936 90,302
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERREEBEYHER
cash equivalents: DT
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 29 47,936 90,241
Bank balance in assets classified DERFEHER
as held for sale BER ZRITHES 36 - 61
47,936 90,302
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company's registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda, and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong has changed from Suites
3001-11, Tower Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong to Suites 3612-16, Tower Two,
Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
with effect from 20 April 2021.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding,
industrial property development, general trading of
consumable goods and loan financing operation including
loan financing, financial guarantee services, loan referral and
consultancy services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. In addition, the functional currencies of
certain group entities that operate outside Hong Kong are
determined based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group entities operate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and
the related Amendments?
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Disclosure of Accounting Estimates?
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets

and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKFRS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020?

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Narrow-scope amendments?
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common
(revised) Control Combinations?

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
(2020) Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are account for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable input is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equal the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and
entities (including structured entities) controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

¢ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group is an investor of a fund in which the Group
also acts as a fund manager, the Group will determine
whether it is a principal or an agent for the purpose of
assessing whether the Group controls the relevant fund.

An agent is a party primarily engaged to act on behalf and
for the benefit of another party or parties (the principal(s))
and therefore does not control the investee when it exercises
its decision-making authority. In determining whether the
Group is an agent to the fund, the Group would assess:

e the scope of its decision-making authority over the
investee;

e the rights held by other parties;

e the remuneration to which it is entitled in accordance
with the remuneration agreements; and

e the decision maker's exposure to variability of returns
from other interests that it holds in the investee.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
reattribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amounts of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the fair value at acquisition date of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued
in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ending within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured at
the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, that is the
date when the Group obtains control, and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operation policy decisions of the investee
but is not control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Change in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligation or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On the disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on the disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating unit in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described in “Investments in associates”
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary
after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion
of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are met, and the
Group discontinues the use of the equity method in relation
to the portion that is classified as held for sale from the
time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell which continue to be
measured in accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in respective sections.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, that is when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives or consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

3. IREMIBRMRRUELRSE
FETBUR (®)

EREGFHE (&)
FKEELEKZILA

AEBRTREDEER (HtLt) R
WA EHEAﬁEE?’]fE*HFﬁE‘JED%XH&
R 125 SR TEPREAKA

BHETHEPEERIRS (H—HE R
AR 75 ) sk — R I K BUHE R A BB i B fm 3k
AR 7% ©

TR RS M HmE AT EF
—IRIRE - AR AT 2R ’ﬁﬁi*ﬁ%ﬁ@
HYE TR HE T BE By ] B AR

s NAKBEANKREFRKRSHEMN
ZNERE B # PR Y ) 2

s AEENBHNTRAEREARTPR
AEBEBRHNBEEGHNEE X

s AEEMBATAYLEAEHAREE
MEBHMAENEE BASHEE
BRES/IED ERE B D N
FEY R SRITEAITHER

B WARFPESHES M REGE
1) 4 )y T B R AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, that is only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

100

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition. measurement of progress
towards complete satistaction of a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group's performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group’s performance completed to date, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the Group
has the right to invoice.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature
of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvements, buildings, warehouse held for provision of
storage services, furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purpose. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual value over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

102

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Right-of use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related
rent concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

3. Re M RARA

HENE
ZETEUR (#)

EREFHBE (&)

HE (&)

A EEEBEBA ()
EREEE
EREEENKRARE:

s HEABWIATESHE:

o M BE B AL EAEEN
FoOREREREERE:

o AEEEAMNEMMBERKRA: &

o AEBRFMEMBEBEE ER
HEAEEMESHAEREREES
& B 5R SR B AG A P A5 TE B IR0 Th 22
ERRAER BRIFRSAAREE
FEREL-

FREEERRAGE RETMI
ENREEBER IHHEEEENTRNE
HEREAR - HASERARITERS
EHICovid- 19t @R ELNEER
BRI -

BN B A TR T E £ TH B E m S ERS AE
HEBENMAER ERAREEBRKA
HERERAFRRTE-BR - EREE
EREGAAIERFHRER (ABREE
REE) RIERORTIRITE -

AEBESEMBRNRPBEREEE
EREBNEB 25 -

RPESHMERARQFA | —T—_-FF% 103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬂ?ﬁ“#&i\%”m REENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

104 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

ZETEUR (#)

EREGFHE (&)
HE (&)

A EEEBEBA (8)
REHERS

ENAREHERE NIREEBMBERE
4= ﬁ'J%%ﬁ)ﬁEI%ﬂﬁﬁE@iﬁﬁé ° §1]
%5 SH AT EMEAERR RSB
ﬁﬁ?ﬂlﬁr)\@ﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁ C

REEREBEH AEBRE B RNHHE
ENRBRERANGEHERE KN E
HEMNFRER  HHEHEFRSNMERR
ZHEE  AARNREREERS B HERE
BEERMER-

HEMNREHE:
o EBENK(ZEEEHENR)MEMAE
WHEES:

o HUAR—BEHILXRZAIZEHEN
P F RS Az EEE L KA

i ’

s MHpEBEEFRTASERHENZE
B

o fHARKEAAEEER TITHEERE
AISEEEEE2ITHEE M

e MWEHMKMASBESITEERERL
HE QAR EREM 28K



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or a change
in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

106

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure the
lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease payments
using the unchanged discount rate, unless the change in
lease payments results from a change in floating interest
rates. In that case, the Group uses the revised discount
rate that reflects change in the interest rate and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets.
A lease modification is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

e the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

e the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the
basis immediately preceding the modification).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021/2022; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.

3. Re M RARA

HAENE
ZETEUR (#)

BERGHBE (&)

HE (&)

FEHEBEMA ()
COVID-19t8EEH R %

FECOVD- 19 EERERELENES
RMEmMs AEEDERERR TIMA

R ERAIITERE D AT EERED
ER/—HEEEEE

. TH?_?H?KQ \ﬁZin;fZZMQETﬁ

Hﬁzﬂi& JiS DAHEE ;

e MEMZZAMBLEFERN =
——F/ T _—FRA= +E|362
A EAR ST 3R &

o THEMHAMIEGKNK KL
E’bo

ERATREDNESESREEHCHEE
R 5 R 2 AT AR AR — 77 2 A e
AAEEMBREERT 165 0B AR
(REBWIFREEFT) HENKZRER
%%%WA%WWTmHﬁHm$%Wﬁ
ERERRBRUARRERAHR LI
WRLE AR ARE R TR
&R

Pt A

RPESHERERAR | —T—_—FF®k 107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. & A B RGREENL S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at amounts
equal to net investments in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct
costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer
lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers ("HKFRS 15") to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

110

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

Lease modification (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform for
a finance lease that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group applies the same accounting policies as those
applicable to financial instruments (see accounting policy
below).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur, therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation, which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial
disposal of the Group's interests in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group, that is Hong Kong dollars, using the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation, that is a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset, all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals, that is partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control, the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬂ?ﬁ“#&i\%”m REENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of
the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
gooadwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indication that they may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. & A B RGREENL S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require the delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

¢ the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. & A B RGREENL S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT 2ETIBUR (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) BERESHEE (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEEN T EMEZTE ()

assets (Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income (i) IR RS MWA
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest HERBEKATENSREE R
method for financial assets measured subsequently BEATEFAHEHMEZERSOER
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently TAMFBWATIEAERFBIAT
measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than VAHE 3R - BhBR B B 3k H IR 15 B RUE 2D
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, ZEMIAMmMS MEWATLE -8
interest income is calculated by applying the effective TRIEERHBEEAERFETIA
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial AP EREERENEERENTE
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently BEBRMNRTX) SEEBEHREE
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial BENEREEMS B N —WEH
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, e AL WA T & gt & B B IH AR
interest income is recognised by applying the effective ERERNETIARER - REERE
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset TRIANEERAREE Fo@A
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the ETBLEREERE REETEET
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that BEREERER BWmEHAGE
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest MBWATHemEERTAERER
income is recognised by applying the effective interest ERMET AR

rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial RBEIRENGEERESREEM
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying EAKEBBAKEEARENER
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised NMEERBRVGEERE SR EEE
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The K AR R B WA B2 R E
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the ENEERBERNE REZE/®
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so EETBREERE ZAETTE
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired. g B 42 ME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬂ?ﬁ“#&i\%iﬁ HAENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT SETEUR (5)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) BERESHBE (&)
Financial assets (Continued) eEEE (&)

EHEERN S EMA KT E (B)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (i) BERLAFEFAEMEE S 2K

At the date of initial recognition, the Group may make
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as
at FVTOCI.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
Revaluation Reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Other income,
gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED %ﬁéﬂ?ﬁ“#&i\%”m REENE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

The Group applies the ECL model to the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
loans and interest receivables, deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables); and

— financial guarantee contracts issued.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and/or collectively with
internal credit ratings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

ISR AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE"Z-—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, for example, a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. x5 ISR MBE LR S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT SETEUCR (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued) BERESHBE (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment RIEE B R EER EI TR E
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued) FEIG A % A ()
(i) Definition of default (i) BANEE
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers HRAREERREEMS A5SER
an event of default occurs when information developed RE K TR N BB 3R 37 3K SN B 2R IR E R
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that WERBEREBATAAREREEZA
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the (BREAER) 2HEEERREEE (I
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals EEEIAAEEFENEAR) -
held by the Group).
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that i BB R0 & 2@ EE DS
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than FEE3ES KK AREERBDHLEER
365 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and A BRIFAEEECERAFENE
supportable information to demonstrate that a more PRAEERMENEEE REE -
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
(iiiy Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EERENSBHEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more ERAE—MHREZHEHEeMEEMRR
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the Xfﬁ/i\ﬁEF ERFIEENELNSEH
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have HemEBEEALHBEERE
occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes FHcREERNREERENEER
observable data about the following events: FEBAUTEERN A BREE:
a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the a) BITAXEBERALRERNTBRE
borrower; i
b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due by TETEXKXBEZNFELNIT
event; =K
c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or 0 ERANERABRBBERAY
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s BRENCHEXENRE £ TE
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a FAE—RBEATTIEEENE
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise BLRHE
consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets write-off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default that is the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default, and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder
for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the
extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls
being discounted.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
other receivables, deposit paid and loans and interest
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. & A B RGREENL S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the Revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, deferred
consideration, trade payables and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes

The component parts of convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate), a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. & A B RGREENL S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform in which the Group applies the practical expedient,
when the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain
or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification
is considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial liabilities” original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are amortised
over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of modification.

130 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

S ETICR ()

EREGFHE (&)
EHMEERREATA (B)
U ER A E (8)

BrTREAMEREERNEMEHE LIRS RN
MEABRTAESL EATTERR A
E2RABENESREKRENRE AEH
EEBEIMERBEEMBER (BRETH
AR)& FHERENERELETEN
HEEBEROERER - MR EMFEHL
EELER AEBRE BHKKET
ReRMTRRE(BENBRERRER
MR ETBENEMNER Eema s
FepBE S mOIMBEREZELEI0% W E
B HFEERZE A EEBEKITAE
MR BRIERERW B BRI FTEE
AR A BRI ER AR IERFIEIRN
— B e BEERE/NNI0% B [P RB K
WA BIEE KB

AT EFRIRRANTBAEBHIFEKN
EEMmMs HESREENKREESSR
REBITNANRSREERSRAGBY
AERAEBBANRETE X HEKARK
EEEANERASRAEAKETEREMEN
BREE TESR NHRAEH - SREE
FREENTAHAENEE B TRt i’

i
T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Chanages in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the
amortised cost measurement applies as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the practical
expedient to account for these changes by updating the
effective interest rate, such change in effective interest rate
normally has no significant effect on the carrying amount of
the relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and
only if, both these conditions are met:

e the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

e the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the
basis immediately preceding the change).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

132

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain
financial asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not
separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified and
subsequently measured in its entirety as either amortised cost
or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that
are not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single
instrument that are separated from the host contracts are
treated as a single compound embedded derivative unless
those derivatives relate to different risk exposures and are
readily separable and independent of each other.

Guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer, that
is the guarantor, to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a guarantee, the contracted fee
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within liabilities from guarantees. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The guarantee issued and not designated as at FVTPL is
initially recognised at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to guarantees issued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Guarantees issued (Continued)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs
on the financial guarantees are determined to be higher than
the amount carried in “liabilities from financial guarantees”
in respect of the guarantees.

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

134

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Current and Deferred taxation for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(i) Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(i)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its
estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve transferred to retained profits.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the
goods or the counterparty renders the service. The fair
values of the goods or services received are recognised
as expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. fR 6 ISR IRREAERE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT SRR ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued) BEAREHBE (&)
Related parties FEA 1+
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ MABATHEUATER AIZALT
related to the Group if that person: AT 2T REREE B EE:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) FEHREREGANER:

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BAREEEEALE N K

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) RAEEXAEERFRATNER
the Group or of a parent of the Group. BIEAB-

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) EEBWNF S T HEM R BIE AR
conditions applies: SERME:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEREASEEBR —SBEMK
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and B (B RA -MEBAR KRR
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). f %@_ RULEA@E)

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) B RS " ERNBEARIXE
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member ErXR (/S EBHES
of a group of which the other entity is a member). WK E R RRIEE ARl e Eh

%)

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i MEAERBH AR —F=T0&%
party. o

(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy " ERBAF=-HEBNAEEDE
other entity is an associate of the third entity. mME—BERAZFE=-TEBH

(v} the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZEBAMAKE IEE\ HAREE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity MEBRES cNammR LB
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a BeErtE-mMARERTER
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the MitEl REE 2 EBETEARE
Group. EEME-

(v) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZEBX()BRATEATZES XK
person identified in (i). HREH

(i) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant Vi@ BFIATATHZERBEE
influence over the entity or is a member of the key AEEBH RBZEB (IZEE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent HAR)MEZEEAB-
of the entity).

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (ViDZERBHEMBEENERKE
part, provides key management personal services to ANAEMAEBENANEER QAR
the Group or to the Group's parent. HEIEEBEAERS-

Close members of the family of a person are those family %/\iﬁ’] HIERZATHERI FH
members who may be expected to influence, or be TEHA R EZATHXZATRENRK
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. FERX B °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, where
necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on
hand, deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BEE T HE XEETTHBA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements

Classification for warehouse for provision of storage services

The Group determines whether the warehouse in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") should be classified
as property, plant and equipment or an investment property.
The warehouse is used to generate warehouse storage
income that comprises warehouse rentals and income
from the supply of warehouse logistics services. In making
its judgement, the directors of the Company considered
that income and cash flows from warehouse rentals and
warehouse logistics services are interdependent and cannot
be separated. In addition, the directors of the Company
determined that the provision of warehouse logistics services
is significant to the warehouse storage operation as a whole.
For these reasons, the directors of the Company considered
that the warehouse is classified as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over non-wholly owned subsidiaries

Note 44 describes that the Group held less than a majority of
ownership interest and voting rights in its non-wholly owned
subsidiaries.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not
the Group has control over Xin Yunlian Advertising Media
(Zhejiang) Company Limited (“Xin Yunlian Advertising”)
and Ninbo Yunlian Micro-Financing Company Limited
(“Ninbo Yunlian”) based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of these non-
wholly-owned subsidiaries unilaterally by considering the
Group's absolute size of holding in them, the relative size
and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders and the
practical right to appoint the majority members of the board
of directors of these non-wholly owned subsidiaries. After
their assessments, the directors of the Company concluded
that the Group has the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of these non-wholly owned subsidiaries and affect
the amount of the Group's return. Therefore, the Group has
control over these non-wholly owned subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BEE ST HIE ML T TNREBA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises the property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with
a finite useful life over their estimated useful life and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful life reflects
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets with a finite useful life. The residual
values reflect the directors’ estimated amount that the Group
would currently obtain from the disposal of the assets, after
deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were
already of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of their useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment mainly represents the
Group’s warehouse property. Property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment other than warehouse
is determined with reference to the fair value less costs
of disposal of those property, plant, and equipment. The
recoverable amount of warehouse is determined based on a
valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, using the depreciated
replacement cost approach. An impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, other
than the carrying amount of warehouse of HK$72,754,000
(2020: HK$79,086,000), is HK$4,262,000 (2020:
HK$4,149,000).

Right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the fair
value of the right-of-use assets less costs to sell or the future
expected cash flows. An impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BEE T HE XEETTHBA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of right-of-use assets of leasehold
land is determined based on a valuation carried out by an
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, using the depreciated replacement cost
approach. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets is
HK$22,485,000 (2020: HK$22,515,000).

The Group performed impairment assessment of the Group's
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets for the
year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment loss has been
recognised for property, plant and equipment (2020: Nil) and
impairment loss of HK$12,981,000 (2020: HK$7,607,000)
has been recognised for right-of-use assets.

Provision of ECL

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires significant
judgment and estimation, in particular, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk and credit-impaired financial
assets as well as the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses. These estimates are driven by a number
of factors, changes in which can result in different levels
of allowances. At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort
for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also forward-looking analysis. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are set out in note 50(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

144 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

A=A F ERRE (5

R THABRERZENETERR (B)

W B E R ARG R A(E L ER R EE
7B (&)

HELHERREENTRESECRE

HEAKETHBAENELSERERMEE
eI ER Tﬂlﬁk$/ﬁiﬁ TEVEEMERE °

FREEEMRMES22,485,000 7T ( =
T T4 22,515,000/ 7T) ©

AEBHAEEHE-_ZT-_—F+=HA
“+—HLEFENYE BELRKERFE
AEEEETREN G WYERDE K
EERREERREBE(ZE-_2F  8)
Nt A& EMERREE 512,981,000
BT (ZZEZFF:7,607,00087T) °

BB R

RIETBMEREELFSRE A ER
CRMEEETRAESEFZ2AELERA
BT BRI REETREEEE T
HEERRZKEENEREERESBRE
EUARYHARRGRELBREEZSE
FEBEERENGT ZEHFTXZERE
HE *“EPEF%@JT EEHEELTE
REZEBEEBE RESBREAH AEEERA
ﬂiT#&:tEHH:I:%ﬂ'LFhEE HE 2 B TEET
FHRNRE ZENRBEITHE U
BYIXERAUAREERBREGTBEE N
$’$@E‘fﬁtA%FE$HF§&E = f5F BB INGK
AFBAMABSZEEARZER 48
REENTEERUARAEESWT - AR
FERILIABABBENFBIRNEGS
B 7 #R R M 5E50(b) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$228,033,000 (2020:
HK$326,582,000), net of accumulated impairment losses of
HK$264,321,000 (2020: HK$165,772,000).

Fair value of financial assets at FVTPL — profit guarantee and
incentive payment

The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL — profit guarantee
and incentive payment arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries was determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select an appropriate
basis from a variety of methods and makes assumptions,
including the discount rates, estimation of post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries and the probability
of meeting their profit targets. They are subsequently
remeasured to fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in assumptions used could materially affect the
fair value of the balances and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operation.

The carrying amount of financial assets at FVTPL — profit
guarantee and incentive payment as at 31 December 2021
was HK$144,513,000 (2020: HK$26,309,000).

Fair value measurement of other financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to this
model are taken from observable markets where possible but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BEE ST HIE ML T TNREBA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for intangible assets. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which it belongs is estimated to determine impairment
losses on the assets. Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amount, which would affect profit or loss in future years. The
recoverable amounts are reviewed by the management at
least at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December
2021 was HK$500,000 (2020: HK$500,000) after taking into
account the accumulated impairment losses of HK$7,340,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$7,340,000).

Share-based payments

The Group recognises share-based payments expense on
options granted. Share-based payments expense is based
on the estimated fair value of each option at its grant date,
the estimation of which requires the directors to make
assumptions about future volatility of the Group’s stock
price, future interest rates and the timing with respect to the
exercise of the options. The effects of a change in one or
more of these variables could result in a materially different
fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision of guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on expenses required
to fulfil the relevant obligations of guarantee contracts when
the Group computes the provisions of guarantee losses. Such
estimation is made based on the available information as at
the end of each reporting period and is determined by the
Group's practical experience, default history of the business,
taking into consideration of industry information and market
data. It is possible that the practical experience and default
history is not indicative of future loss on the guarantees
issued. Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes in various jurisdictions. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred taxes

The directors of the Company exercise full control over the
dividend policy of subsidiaries in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
dividends would be declared by the PRC subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group did not provide
additional deferred tax in 2021 related to the unremitted
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries that are subject to
withholding taxes once distributed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: AEBERFANBASITAT
2021 2020
B _—T_TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers: RKEEFPEHAMKE:
Sales of goods HE B m 394 17,517
Warehouse storage income BEFRERA 13,656 11,279
Income from loan financing business EXmEEB 2B/A
— Loan referral and consultancy —BER#EN KFBARKE
services fee 87,314 52,974
— Guarantee fee income from —MEERIEREBRA
financial guarantees 170,213 302,649
Income from securities brokerage business 75 F 4 42 215 2 WA
— Commission income from —BHERZZHREWA
securities dealing 29 60
— Commission income from — B2 AESRA
underwriting 2 3
Commission income from R 2 el A
insurance brokerage 2,842 4,641
Commission income from BEEEZRESRA
asset management 201 43
Advertising income =N 5,358 721
280,009 389,887
Revenue from interest under effective REREBRMEESHEZ
interest method: SN &
Income from loan financing business EXMEEBZB/A
— Interest income from — U E 2 F B A
loans receivables 4,858 2,427
Income from securities brokerage BABEEBZWA
business
— Interest income from —RFEEHE ZFBRA
margin financing - 6
4,858 2,433
Total revenue FEU N 284,867 392,320
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The Group's operations are organised into securities
brokerage, asset management, insurance brokerage, loan
financing, industrial property development business and
general trading. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker ("CODM") for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance is
prepared on such basis. During the year ended 31 December
2021, management has revisited the reportable segments
and the Group's internal reporting by managing its business.
After considering the future strategic plan, the Group has
identified the following four reportable segments. The
corresponding segment information for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been restated. The securities
brokerage segment, asset management segment and
insurance brokerage segment as disclosed in the last year
have been restated into the others segment:

— Industrial property development segment represents the
operation of a warehouse in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

— General trading segment includes trading of consumable
goods in the PRC.

— Loan financing (I) segment represents the provision of
financial guarantees, loan financing, loan referral and
consultancy services in Hong Kong and Beijing.

— Loan financing (Il) segment represents the provision of
micro-financing, loan referral and consultancy services in
Ningbo.

— Others segment represents the operation of securities
brokerage, margin financing, provision of asset
management services and provision of insurance
brokerage and agency service in Hong Kong and
advertising service in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) D EBE R ()
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Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLFE
Industrial Loan Loan
property General financing financing
development trading (1) (In Others Total
I£RANERRE -REZ ERRE() ERBE() iy @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR THER ThER THER
SEGMENT REVENUE ABEA
Recognised at a point in time RE-BHEER - - 15311 672 3,468 19,451
Recognised over time BREADER 13,656 - 170,213 71331 5,358 260,558
Recognised from other source BEMRREER - - - 4,858 - 4,858
13,656 - 185,524 76,861 8,826 284,867
SEGMENT RESULTS AL (4,716) (354) (128,150) (82,924) (3,199) (219,343)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZHEFR - - - (98,549) - (98,549)
Unallocated corporate income KABEEMA 24,352
Unallocated corporate expenses FABEEMY (26,616)
Unallocated finance costs FARHABAK (14,016)
Unallocated fair value change BREZRATEIEN
on financial assets at FVTPL SREEZAPBATESD 119,419
Unallocated impairment loss ERBEEZAIRAEESE
on right-of-use assets (6,334)
Share-based payment expenses MR X RERAX (4,599)
Loss before taxation BREAEE (225,686)
Income tax credit FERES 23,925
Loss for the year KEEFR (201,761)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

BE-_Z-—F+-A=+—RHIEE

2 BEE R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued) DBBRAREE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BHE_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HILFE
Industrial Loan Loan
property General financing financing
development trading [0} (I Others Total
TERNEER -RE% SREE( ERRA Hit )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHET FHET THET FhET THEx
SEGMENT REVENUE AEHRA
Recognised at a point in time RE-BEHERER - 15,093 35,191 334 7171 57,789
Recognised over time REREER 11,279 = 302,649 17,449 71 332,098
Recognised from other source BEMRREER = = 138 2,289 6 2,433
11,279 15,093 337,978 20,072 7,898 392,320
SEGMENT RESULTS PHEE (1372) (9,451) (201,289) (1,464) (3,869) (223,445)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZHEBR = = (25,955) = (6,767) (32,722)
Unallocated corporate income KAESERA 8,883
Unallocated corporate expenses RARLERX (50,179)
Unallocated finance costs FAWBBKA (6,250)
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL BRBRELATEIIGNEREEL
LTEZD 6,974
Unallocated impairment loss on FARERREEZHERR
right-of-use assets (5,000)
Fair value change on contingent AR E AT EEE
consideration receivables 495
Share-based payment expenses IR AFERX (13)
Loss before taxation BHAEE (301,257)
Income tax expense A% (21,021)
Loss for the year TEEBE (322,279)
All of the segment revenues reported above are from external EXEZFHOME S HBWAEIRBINRE
customers. =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segments. DE)DHT o
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—%+Z-A=+—H
Industrial Loan Loan
property General financing financing
development trading () (1] Others Total
TERNERRE —-RES ERRE() EXRBEW) Hitr @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER FET FER FET
ASSETS gE
Segment assets AHEE 102,459 26,328 297,237 464,638 10,367 901,029
Goodwill B - - - 228,033 - 228,033
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents AABRERBLEEY 625
Unallocated property, plant and equipment KA BYME - BERRHE 261
Unallocated other receivables, ROBEMERTE
prepayments and deposits BRRERRS 1,743
Unallocated financial assets at FVTOCI APBELAFEFARMZE
bENEBEE 3,505
Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL AABRDFEFABEH
SREE 165,404
Consolidated total assets GREEHE 1,300,600
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities AHEE 64,491 24,648 429,038 217,162 3,807 739,146
Unallocated other payables FAOBEMEMNTE 2,190
Unallocated lease liabilities AABEEEE 6,535
Unallocated amount due to AARENFERERTE
non-controlling interests 10,306
Unallocated convertible notes AABTRRESR 175,280
Consolidated total liabilities GREEAHE 933,457

152 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) D EE R (#)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) ITHEEREE (B)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZF-_FF+=-A=+—8
Industrial Loan Loan
property General financing financing
development trading 0] (I Others Total
TERMELE —%E5 EFRRE() BEFREN) Hity st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAL ThET TAT FAL TR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets AHEE 104,247 27,703 438,017 293,204 16,573 879,744
Goodwill Bl - - - 326,582 - 326,582
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents KA ERERELZEN 7,299
Unallocated property, plant AABRDE BERRE
and equipment 177
Unallocated other receivables, AAOMEMBKRE BRFER
prepayments and deposits e 4,428
Unallocated financial assets at FVTOCI R ERAFEG AR RE
YRmeREE 2,909
Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL KA ERERATEFABERERERE 59,955
Unallocated assets classified ARSI BEABELENEE
as held for sale 5,563
Consolidated total assets GREEEE 1,286,657
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities AHEE 72,637 6,092 370,972 87,099 3,991 540,791
Unallocated other payables AP BEEMEMNK 1,898
Unallocated lease liabilities FARHERE 5,401
Unallocated amount due to ROBREMFERERRE
non-controlling interests 9,975
Unallocated convertible notes FARARREE 161,707
Unallocated liabilities associated ANBAGELERBNANEEE
with assets classified as held for sale 4,461
Consolidated total liabilities GRBELE 724,233
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_ZE-_-F+-A=+t—HLFE

Industrial Loan Loan
property General financing financing
development trading 1] (n Others Unallocated Total
IXANEER it EHRE() LEE() Ht B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Thn Thr Thr T T
Information included in segment AR BER/ FHEE
results/segment assets: HER:
Amortisation and depreciation BHRAE 9,579 - 1111 1,769 156 2,05 14,671
Bank interest income EEE Y ON (28) (15) (192) (50) @ 1) (288)
Other loans interest income HtERMSHWA - - (9.442) = = = (9442)
Investment income REKA - - (159) (33) - - (192)
Finance costs BBAA 4357 951 3% 9,366 164 14,016 29244
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL AP B ABHH
SHEECATESD - - - 65 - (119419) (119,354)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HENE BEAREZ
plant and equipment (W& B8 18 - - (1) (6) (261) (250)
Loss on write-off of property, MENE HERREZ
plant and equipment ) - - - - - 118 118
Impairment losses (reversal of HERS (BEHESS)
impairment losses) - (662) 88,486 88,262 (37 - 176,049
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEERERSR - - 6,647 - - 6,334 12,981
Provision for financial guarantees BEEREE - - 110,947 10,030 - - 120977
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HILFE
Industrial Loan Loan
property General financing financing
development trading [0} (I Others Unallocated Total
T$BENELR —%ES ERREN)  EFWRE0) £t KAR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Thr Tin TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
Information included in segment TARHEE/ HBEE
results/segment assets: AR
Amortisation and depreciation BERNE 8,943 40 4,545 163 281 12,610 26,582
Bank interest income FAFEHA 9) 3) (136) (63) @) (66) 279
Other loans interest income HipEZFSMA - - (13,094) = = = (13,094)
Investment income RERA = = 7) (123) = = (130)
Finance costs FRAAR 4,934 4 581 2,421 37 6,249 14,226
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL BRATEGABRE
SRHEEZATEEY - - - (79 - (6,973) (7,052)
Fair value change on contingent ERIARELATEEY
consideration receivable - - - - - (495) (495)
Impairment losses (reversal of impairment losses) ~ H{ERE (EEHERSE) = 9,339 130,204 7,729 51 = 147,323
Impairment loss on intangible assets BENEEREER = = 1618 = = = 1618
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEENESR = 143 2,089 = 375 5,000 7,607
Provision for financial guarantees BEEREE - = 121,453 1,091 = = 122,544
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Geographical information

The Group'’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the
locations of operations and information about its non-current
assets other than deferred tax assets by geographical location
of the assets are detailed below:

D EBE R ()

B E

A E BN B B b B T

AT AR EEREELE R GRS

HIRARIREEMAERE DN IERBE
E(REMBEEERIN 2ER:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REPREFHBA FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—-fF —E-EF —E-—-§ —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET TET THET
Hong Kong &k 3,074 4,891 377,866 356,738
PRC i 281,793 387,429 103,125 113,833
284,867 392,320 480,991 470,571
Information about major customers EREXEEFHNEHR

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

REBFERBEAREEBKAI0% A
ER—REPZWAMT

as follows:
2021 2020
=B —F C—T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAET
Customer A' BEPEA 29,192 N/A 7~ 3 A

' Revenue from loan financing (Il). The corresponding revenue did
not contribute over 10% of total revenue of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

T OREBERBREMMBA-RBEE-_T_-F
FH+_A=+—HILFE #HEEAHER
EEAUWAI0% AT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—RHLFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HAUWA - e K g8
2021 2020
=B —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Fair value change on: B@AATEES:
Contingent consideration receivables JEUW S A RAE - 495
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRNEREE 119,354 7,052
Interest income from: FEWAKRE :
Bank deposits |ITER 288 279
Other loans HEMER 9,442 13,094
Loans to a non-controlling interest ERT—EEERER 23,381 7,640
Loans to an associate BT g A A 59 1,125
Investment income KEWA 192 130
Net realised loss on disposal of HERAFEFAEBRZ
financial assets at FVTPL TRMEEZEERBEERE (145) (579)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HEME BERZREZ
and equipment W 558 250 -
Loss on write-off of property, plant W% WE R&REEE
and equipment (118) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EMHB ARz K= 1,492 -
Gain on lease modification MEEE] 2 W 640 -
Loss on termination of a lease arrangement #R FFE %L HE 2 E5 18 (308) -
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 & F 58 226 32
Service fee income AR5 & A 628 1,076
Management service income ERERBEA 39 4,567
Bad debts recovered Z AR 7,337 -
Government subsidy I # B 599 2,265
Sundry income FIEWA 492 368
163,848 37,544
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 8. BIEEE  HIKED
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-FTF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment BRI B IE R EEE
loss) recognised on: CREEBERRE) :
— Trade receivables and other receivables — — & Ui BR Zt N E b fE U 018 127,169 28,626
— Loans and interest receivables —ERWEF KT B 51,459 113,594
— Other deposits —H ik (248) 9,337
— Loans to and interest receivables —ERTIEFEREER
from a non-controlling interest JE W F) B 68 7)
— Loans to and interest receivables —EXTFREBE T K&
from an associate eI E R 8 (2,399) (4,227)
176,049 147,323
Note: B
Details of impairment assessment are set out in the note 50(b) to SREREFEBHN G S R E M E500)

the consolidated financial statements.

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BITSR A
2021 2020
B —T-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE& T
Effective interest on convertible notes AR ERERF A 13,573 5,389
Imputed interest on deferred consideration IEER EHEEF & - 147
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENFE 1,100 1,009
Interest on bank loans IRITERF R 6,421 6,212
Interest on other loans HEaERF B 8,150 1,469
29,244 14,226
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-FT_—F+-A=1+"HILFE

10.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

10.FTS 8 (%) X

2021 2020
—EB-—F C—T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Current tax: B HABIE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REERTER 5,618 2,706
Under (over) provision in prior years: BEFERENE (BREER)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ST 1,540 )
Deferred tax (Note 34): EEREIE (MIFE34) -
Current year KEE (31,083) 18,317
(23,925) 21,021

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group's
subsidiaries in Hong Kong have no estimated assessable
profits for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") is calculated at the
applicable rates based on estimated taxable income earned
by the PRC subsidiaries of the Group with certain tax
concession, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practice in respect thereof.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Income Tax (the
"EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years

BEEBNESHEONESHMESH  &EHK
EEE A E $2,000,0008 7T % F#5 A
8.25% Y B EEFH - M #8482,000,000/% 7T
2 ) #ELA16.5% B R R B - T & F
SERMAHERNEETEEN RN EES
1#£16.5% W& — T R BH -

KAREERE BHEMESH MBS
FREBEGREVERAMEBIEKR

REFEEEFES I G EREEF
A16.5% st E - AR AEER BB B
RARNBE_E_—FR_E_FF+=
A=Z+—RALEFERTEGTEREEF

WA EAE BB RSB E -

RECEMESR (TREMBEHR]) IR
HBEEEN 2R REMNREXNTEZEER
ETRBERZAEENE QR AR
Bt ERTBALBRREFE -

BIBEFBRCEMEFE ([REMSRE]D)
RAZEMETEE GG 2K E B
BRI MEFE 2 ERRBEMEMSH
HEE25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on Enterprise Income Tax
Policies for Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region and Xinjiang
Kashgar Autonomous Region ( (B Z BRI BB
AR FERTERRTMASASERERECEMRS
RERKEAEE) ) promulgated by the State Council
on 29 November 2011, if a corporate enterprise is newly
established within calendar years 2010 to 2021 in two
specific regions with business fallen within the scope of
the Catalogue of Preferred Enterprise Income Tax for Key
Encouraged Industries in Poor Areas of Xinjiang ( {58 K
BEWESHSBEREZCEMSHEERBE) ), the
corporate enterprise can enjoy a preferential tax treatment,
that is 5-year exemption, from the first year when the entity
begins to generate revenue.

The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before tax in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

10. 57158 (%) B (@)

BERAEENR-_E—F+—A=-1+A1B
Em e I BRB58 B il 5E
R ERRTMERSREEREEDERN
SHEBRBEROBHN) WARTERW
AR EHERNEF S SFE T~ —
FHANY BXEKE GheR#mEE
BEEREEXCENSHEZRRN) &
B AARICHARERBHBEEKRADN
F—FHREESFRFESR-

REFEMREHN (BR)AxllGEas B
R EL At 2 [ i 2 2% 1 B9 R 50 A U 18 3 AR 0
T

2021 2020
=B _T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Loss before taxation B A& 18 (225,686) (301,257)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% & A AT 57 F2 K25%
(2020: 25%) (ZEZTF:25%) (56,422) (75,314)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A MBS B 2
for tax purpose 86,622 98,721
Tax effect of income not taxable ARG ANTFEE
for tax purpose (56,059) (11,500)
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERENE (BREES) 1,540 2)
Tax effect of unrecognised AIERERH=ZENTRIETE
temporary differences (849) (190)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERREEMRIBEEZ
as deferred tax asset MIBEBEONMBEE 13,790 17,440
Tax effect of tax exemption granted REHBERENH B E (14,989) (14,144)
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABTRERNRIEEIR
not recognised (419) (527)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ R Efth B AR L ER
operating in other jurisdictions MBARTRHENTE 2,861 6,537
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FRMET (ER)HAX (23,925) 21,021
RPESRMIERERART | T _—FFW
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

11.LOSS FOR THE YEAR M.ANFE EE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging the AEEBEBESMBRTYIEB BES:
following items:
2021 2020
=B —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Amortisation of intangible assets BZEERE (GTATTB K
(included in administrative and Hip&eamMs)
other operating expense) - 255
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN &
— audit services —ZE R 1,450 1,450
— other services —H AR 400 400
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses  F&R AR X (1F ERA 102 16,169
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 4,907 15,112
Depreciation of property, plant M- BEREETE
and equipment 9,764 11,215
Lease payments for short-term lease WRFAAHEBGBTFEZ
not included in the measurement of EEHMHEEZHERMK
lease liabilities 539 -
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & T A (BEZEEHS) 49,311 42,759
12.DIVIDENDS 12.0x B
No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the year RBE-_FT-_—F+A=+—HLF
ended 31 December 2021. The directors of the Company did B ek ERIEZRERE -AAQ
not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of the AESTITEERBE_S=_—F+=A
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). =T HLEFERMNRE(ZE_ZF:
") o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(FBEEENRE (%
6226&)&? 5 FmRBIRE

H 35 5% )

() EERTHARME

RIFER LR EEE QBRI
BRNESERTRARFAMSOT

s &) B0

BT —F+-A=1+—HILFE
13 i%%u &1{"—\/ %;;:E/_\g
5= ( 86225 ) 38315 * ‘A 7

Yaray

BE_Z_-F+-A=1+—HL*F

B
Salaries, Contribution ~ Share-based
allowance to retirement payment
and other  Discretionary benefits expenses Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes (Notec)  emoluments
SR A 32 %
e BER BIKEA RIEAX
ik A BB HE L8 (Kztc) Hessm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER TR TR TR THER
Executive directors BTES
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chairman An Rk (ER) - 3,600 300 18 - 3,918
Mr. YANG Dayong, BABEE (fTHEAH)
Chief Executive Officer - 1,200 - 18 - 1,218
Mr. CHEN Zheng (Note a) RIE%E (Mia) - 47 - 2 - 49
- 4,847 300 38 = 5,185
Non-executive director FUTES
Mr. ZHANG Peidong (Note b) ~ RME &4 (Hiztb) - 349 - 18 - 367
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITES
directors
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BEREE 360 - - - - 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu FRFRE 360 - - - - 360
Dr. LYU Ziang afREL 180 - - - 119 299
900 - - - 119 1,019
Total emoluments WelE 900 5,196 300 56 119 6,571
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEEMTAER (BERA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION fkhl (Z5622F )ﬁ3831'7% /NE]
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (FHBEEEFz ’,éfﬂ)%ﬁw (%
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622GE) MNEE EMHBAFET
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT ML EE) (&)

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EBRITHARMS (&)

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BHE_ZT_TF+_A=1T—HIEF

[Z

Salaries, Contribution Share-based

allowance to retirement payment
and other  Discretionary benefits expenses Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes (Note ¢) emoluments

ARR (D 3 A

e 2UR RINET HIERX
ik EthEF BT HEL:3S (MsEc) Werm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR ThET TR TR T

Executive directors BTES

Mr. LIU Kequan, Chairman BR Rt (XR) S 3,600 300 18 = 3918

Mr. YANG Dayong, BABEE (TTHEAH)

Chief Executive Officer - 1,200 - 18 - 1,218

Mr. ZHANG Peidong (Note b) SRR %4 (HitsEb) = 360 = 18 = 378

- 5,160 300 54 - 5514

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITES

directors

Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BERLE 360 - - - - 360

Mr. ZHOU Liangyu RRFEE 360 - - - - 360

Dr. LYU Ziang afHET 180 - - - 1 181

900 - - - 1 901

Total emoluments MeaE 900 5,160 300 54 1 6,415

Notes: B 51 -

(@) Mr. CHEN Zheng has been appointed as an executive (@ BEZZEZ—4F+ZANBR KX
director of the Company with effect from 8 December FEEZXAEAANTRITES-

2021.

(b) Mr. ZHANG Peidong has been re-designated from an b) BZZE-—F+ZANB® RTE
executive director to a non-executive director with effect EERNTESHIRIENTES-
from 8 December 2021.

(c) The value of share options granted to the director of the (0 BEARERENE RN RERETS
Company under the share option scheme of the Company BYRRAAEE BBREBERZS
and its subsidiaries represents the fair value of these BREZ2ATE(ERERSMBR
options charged to the consolidated income statement for HERANE2ZFNAFE ZEEWERNA
the year in accordance with HKFRS 2. HBR) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE
13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEENRNER (BEQA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION &1 (5 622&)%3831'7& /Nl
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (BFEEEFRER) R (%’
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 6226%)&? 5 FmRBIRE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT M EE) ()

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

No director waived any emoluments in the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020. No incentive payment for
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office
was paid or payable to any directors during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company or its subsidiaries during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

RAESHMERABRIF | T - —FFH
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEZFMZMER

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporates and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors (2020: Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for those disclosed in Note 43, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

14.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two directors (2020: two), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor
a chief executive of the Company are as follows:

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE
“whEHEEHESR

FAXEEREERFEEERFERE (=
ToTF MB)ABES EMeHFBHR
FXHFIB - BT =R (ZE_ZTF: =
BIWHEARRESHITHBHEN TS FH
BEERFANBESFBOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-FTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FETT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R RHMER 5,100 5,100
Performance related bonus EWRREEAL 425 425
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R 4K4E ) 5+ 2| 4 7% 54 54
Share-based payment expenses AR ST A R IB A 2 770 2
6,349 5,581

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company and whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

UTF B A AR EFOREFEEA
BR S H I E

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-FTF

No. of No. of

employees employees

BEAHE EE AZ

HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 T & 7T E 1,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/& 7c & 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017%8 7T &£2,000,000/8 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7T £3,000,000/%8 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T £3,500,0007% 7T - -
3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
employees of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for both years.

R EFE AEERERARRIME
ERAERSHFMA LM EMHESER
AR I AR £2 [ By 1Y) 22 B sl B L A 1

— T —
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

15.LOSS PER SHARE 15. F I E 1R

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following

RRRGEEARESRERREEEERT)
BT IIBEE

data:
2021 2020
=B —ZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Loss EiE
Loss for the year attributable to owners AT EEREABEMSH
of the Company for the purpose RNARER AEIEFAEIR

of basic loss per share

(202,592) (335,628)

2021 2020
B —T-FTHF
‘000 ‘000
TR T A%

Number of shares RO E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 3@ i% N4 19 gk B

7,775,723 7,281,808

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company, and the weighted
average number of shares of approximately 7,775,723,000
ordinary shares (2020: 7,281,808,000) in issue.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 did not assume the exercise of the outstanding
share options since this would result in a decrease in loss per
share. No adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss
per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
as conversion of convertible notes would result in a decrease
in loss per share. Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is the
same as the basic loss per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT R ERN Ve &

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and Motor
improvement Warehouse equipment vehicles Total
HA-RER
HEWEEE BE & RE nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR AT AT THT

Cost D%

At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZE-f-H 10,497 153,911 4,243 3,529 172,180

Addition through acquisition BRAKERBARGRE

of subsidiaries - - 3,183 - 3,183

Additions AE - - 39 - 39

Disposal HE - - (5) - (5)

Exchange realignment X AR - 9,494 321 112 9,927

At 31 December 2020 and RZZZBE+_A=t—-RHEK

1 January 2021 —E--%-f-H 10,497 163,405 7,781 3,641 185,324

Additions RE 1,073 - 31 - 1,104

Disposal HE - - (11) (746) (857)

Write-offs fii 85 (10,497) = (606) = (11,103)

Exchange realignment I 5 35 % 14 5,407 171 63 5,655

At 31 December 2021 R-BZ-%§

+=A=+-8 1,087 168,812 7,266 2,958 180,123

Depreciation and impairment TERAE

At 1 January 2020 R-Z-FE-f—H 8,528 71,261 3,534 2,506 85,829

Provided for the year AEERE 1,828 8,201 618 568 11,215

Disposal HE - = (5 = (5)

Exchange realignment XA - 4,857 110 83 5,050

At 31 December 2020 and RZZZZF+-A=F+—HK

1 January 2021 —E-—f-f-H 10,356 84,319 4,257 3,157 102,089

Provided for the year AEERE 123 8,786 631 224 9,764

Disposal HE - - (11) (722) (833)

Wirite-offs A (10,400) - (585) - (10,985)

Exchange realignment XA 2 2,953 65 52 3,072

At 31 December 2021 R-B--f5+-F=1+-AH 81 96,058 4,257 2,711 103,107

Carrying amounts HREE

At 31 December 2021 R-B--#+=-A=t-H 1,006 72,754 3,009 247 77,016

At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF+-A=+—H 141 79,086 3,524 484 83,235

The above items of property, plant and equipment are FtE - RE REREEEB FER TIFN

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per EIRE R E RS Tﬁ%

annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of remaining FRE Y& 4 T8 E 2R 20%
unexpired terms of the (ABRhG = Bk )
leases or 20% LSRRGS

Warehouse 5% 2 5%

Furniture, fixtures and 10%-33% R, B R Z=339%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-33% SEE Z=33%

The warehouse is situated on land in the PRC held under a EEMRPE L RIEPH T HER

medium-term land use right. ERFE -

RAESHMERABRIF | T - —FFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-FT_—F+-A=1+"HILFE

17.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17EREEE
Leasehold Office
lands premises Total
HELH# BWOAEYE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-_-—$+-A=+—H
Carrying amounts BREE 22,485 3,884 26,369
As at 31 December 2020 R=-ZB-EF+=-A=+-—H
Carrying amounts BREE 22,515 - 22,515
For the year ended BE-Z2—_—F
31 December 2021 +TZR=+—BHLEE
Depreciation charge heESE 761 4,146 4,907
Impairment loss recognised EREEERZBEBE
in profit or loss - 12,981 12,981
Exchange realignment P X 2 (731) (192) (923)
For the year ended BE-Z-ZTF
31 December 2020 +TZA=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge neES 710 14,402 15,112
Impairment loss recognised ERERBERZRERERE
in profit or loss - 7,607 7,607
Exchange realignment PE W IR (1,311) (175) (1,486)
2021 2020
—B--F —ZT-FTF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Expense relating to short-term lease B HHEE@N X H 539 -
Total cash outflow for lease HERS ML ERE 13,076 15,759
Additions to right-of-use assets RNECHAEEE 20,819 176
Additions to right-of-use assets through FRWENBARIRE
acquisition of subsidiaries EAEEE - 497

168

For both years, the Group leases various offices in Hong Kong
and the PRC for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term up to 6 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all

leasehold lands.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

17.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases
is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed above. (2020: Nil).

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$16,769,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$3,884,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
lease liabilities of HK$7,977,000 and related right-of-use
assets with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$Nil). The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not enter
into any lease that is not yet commenced.

17 FAEEE (&)

EA_Z\:—i—I—_H_—i- B EHES
A E FXRENEREE S HNERE
f—f,iﬂ/\ifﬁ (ZT-TF 8)-

N AR B —FF+_A=F+—H"'B
WA E & 1E16,769,00078 7T & HE 8 &I (F
FA# & 2= BR T 4218 43,884,000/ 7T ( —Z
—EF:HERET7,977,000% 7T & AHEHY
@Fﬁﬁééﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@@% =& TT) oBR A
ABENHEEETRHOERER @l\vfﬂia
Tﬁ% Z T ENENEARE - HEEETSE
PAME IR o

R FR_FT_TF+_HA=+—
B AEBEWKREY HMARGBHTMAEE

o

18.GOODWILL 18. 7 &
2021 2020
S8 —ZT-FTF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cost 5%

Balance at beginning of the year FHIRER 492,354 165,772

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries AUk B BT B A R E & (FI5E40)

(Note 40) - 326,582
Balance at end of the year FRER 492,354 492,354
Accumulated impairment losses Rt REEE
Balance at beginning of the year F s 165,772 133,050
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEBRBIEEE 98,549 32,722
Balance at end of the year FRE 264,321 165,772
Carrying amount FREE
Balance at end of the year FRE 228,033 326,582

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

HHEE R E AR
W 5 208 5 -

L IRGEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE"Z-—F+_A=+—HILFE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS o.M L& B
Information
Trading integration
right platform Total
EREH
R 5K =) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FAET
Cost R AR
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE_ZTF—H—H 500 10,819 11,319
Exchange realignment b W, A = 667 667
At 31 December 2020 and R-E-TF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2021 k—ZF-—F—H—H 500 11,486 11,986
Exchange realignment bE 38 B - 380 380
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+=-HA=+-—H 500 11,866 12,366
Amortisation and impairment ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&}ﬁﬁ
At 1 January 2020 R-ZTE-_ETF—H—H - 9,042 9,042
Provided for the year FAREE - 255 255
Impairment loss recognised FANEHERBEERE
for the year - 1,618 1,618
Exchange realignment ME H R - 571 571
At 31 December 2020 and R-_E_TF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2021 ;E=—F=-—F—H—H — 11,486 11,486
Exchange realignment bE 5, 58 & - 380 380
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_—-f+-A=+—H - 11,866 11,866
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December 2021 R-Z2--%+-A=+—H 500 - 500
At 31 December 2020 R-IBE-ZF+-HA=+—H 500 - 500
The trading rights are retained for stock trading and ROBEFRBIERZEERRELLES-

170

stockbroking activities. The trading rights are considered to
have indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute
to the net cash flows of the Group indefinitely, and are
not amortised. Instead they will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Information integration platform provides all the foundational
building blocks of trusted information, including data
integration, data warehousing, master data management,
big data and information monitoring. The right of using
information integration platform is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years. The management performed impairment assessment
on intangible assets of each cash-generating unit in
accordance with HKAS 36. The management estimated
the recoverable amount of those cash-generating units of
which these intangible assets have been allocated are lower
than the carrying amount of these intangible assets. As the
carrying amount of information integration platform was
HKS$Nil, no further impairment loss was recognised.

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND

INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amounts
of goodwill and trading rights with indefinite useful life set
out in notes 18 and 19 allocated to one subsidiary in the
security brokerage segment (“Security Brokerage CGU")
and subsidiaries in the micro-financing and financing referral
operations (“Tobacco Financing CGU") as follows:

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

19. 8] EE (&)

EEERFERHMBEGSEEEENR
B BREEER BEAE THEE
B AREBEREEEZE-EREERKF
BHRNESBAEERMFMEERA 2
HEAEETERNME - ZFRARE10F G5
AERFHETHE-EEERERES
APERIE36 HERBCELEMUNETR
BEETREME - EEEENZFCD
REFEENRSELBMNAIKEI SR
EH A -ZEFRSELEUNTKRE S
BERLFEFLEENKREE - ARNER
SXRFENERMERTET LEE—F
MR E RS -

207 & [ BLERR 0] {8 F 4 B AY

BB ENRE R

REARATS W18 R 19FTEEE &
BEEBAFRAFTFH 2R ZECERABEE S
REBLHLLES BN —FEMBLAR ([F
SELBEEESM]) RN BEER LR
EENEHEONB AR ([BRERERS
EEBEMN])WT:

Goodwill Trading right
BE RHE

2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--F —ECTE —B_-F e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx T FHT FTAET
Security Brokerage CGU BHFELRSEEBN - - 500 500
Tobacco Financing CGU BEERMERSEEEN 228,033 326,582 - -
Total T 228,033 326,582 500 500

APEESRERBRAR | — T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

207 2N EBERFERAFEN

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, with reference
to the professional valuation performed by the independent
valuer, the management of the Group has determined that an
impairment loss of HK$98,549,000 (2020: HK$32,722,000)
arose in relation to goodwill allocated to certain groups of
CGUs. There were no material changes in the methodology,
sources of market data and assumptions applied in the
valuation between 2021 and 2020. After reviewing the
performance of Tobacco Financing CGU in 2021, the
management of the Group revised the carrying amounts
of Tobacco Financing CGU downwards based on cash flow
forecasts.

The recoverable amount of Tobacco Financing CGU is
determined based on a value-in-use calculation with the
assistance of the independent professional qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation
of the CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020. The major underlying assumptions on
which management has based in the preparation of cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill
are summarised below:

Discount rate per annum — the discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
industries.

Budgeted revenue and budgeted gross margins —
management determined budgeted gross margins based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development.

Terminal growth rate — the rate used is based on the average
projected inflation rate of the geographical area in which the
business of the CGU operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

20.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Tobacco Financing CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
four-year period, and at a discount rate of 18.17% (2020:
17.33%). Cash flows after the four-year period were
extrapolated using a 2% (2020: 3%) growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, impairment loss of
HK$98,549,000 (2020: HK$Nil) has been provided in relation
to Tobacco Financing CGU as the recoverable amount of this
CGU was reduced to HK$228,033,000 at the end of the
reporting period. The impairment loss arose as a result of the
less than satisfactory past and expected performance of the
Tobacco Financing CGU.

Security Brokerage CGU

The management of the Group determined that trading
rights amounting to HK$500,000 was no longer utilised to
generate profits to the Group. For the purpose of impairment
testing on these trading rights, the recoverable amount has
been determined based on secondary market prices and no
impairment was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

JREEE R AR RS

20.78 8 2 R B R n] {5 B F Hi Y

B A ERERNS (8

EERMERSELEN

EHREREBEEFERFRAERNKERE
HERENFHEMNMEBEELNRS
mERBITHKA18.17% (ZTE T F:
17.33% )R K - (W FHRE IR R
ENREEMSLEMRRE FH2% (=
TEF 3% ) MIERRES -

BEr-—_E-_—+-_A=+—R1LtEE"
EEERERSELENTIRBAERE
98,549,000 L (ZE T F TH )
W HERZIREELEBMNRRERRA A
U [8] 4 %8 8k > 2£228,033,000/8 JT © 2= 4 I
BEEEITAENEERERGCELEEMNRA
ARTEHEETIREAR-

RERLEREELEN

AEEEIEREE T RMHEEAS00,000%E T
IRGETBRAUNABRNEEEA RN -
HIHER FEETRERNRAR  Ea]kE
CHERBE-_FmEREMETE  BRXNE
B FR-_ZF_FEFF+_A=+—
HIEFERERBIE-

Y /7

7,

2021 2020

—EB-—F C—T-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Cost of investment in associates — unlisted R EE&E QA RIIREMKAR—FE LT 307,534 307,534
Share of accumulated post-acquisition Rt EREE R

loss and other comprehensive expense Hh2EAX (38,936) (38,936)

Less: Accumulated impairment loss B REDREEE (268,598) (268,598)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 1.0 B R R B M AR ()
The following is the particulars of the associates, which are NTRELTRAIEBENEMISREL
unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not Bt R RIMEEIS -
available:
Place of Proportion of nominal

incorporation ownership interest
Name and operation attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ARAEEER
a8 ERAN - E 3:1 PR TEXK
2021 2020
—E-—-F ZT-TF

Intraday Financial Information Service British Virgin Islands 45% 45%  Investment holding
Limited (“Intraday Financial”) (Note a) ("BVI")

EXREREERBARAR RERLES REZRR
(Mrgx&r])) (Mzka) ([(RBRLES])

Zhongyan Xin Shangmeng E-commerce People Republic of 25% 25%  Trading of consumable
Limited (“Zhongyan E-commerce”)* China ("PRC") goods and consultancy
(Note b) services

hENREETRKERAT hEARLME HEmE 5 Nt R
(MrEsr|%l) (KaEb) (THhE])

*  For identification only

FrE Bl & AR Ty FE AR AN GRS B
BHRERAR-

Notes: B E -

(a) REXEMZEmE2ERENMEIERS
HEXEBMZBEDEENB S D AME
B AEETEXRFEBREBB - A&
EAFEAERNDMEREEGESH
FEFEED R A62008 T (ZE-F
£:4,900570) M172,1008 T (Z 2 - &
F 165,900/ 7T ) ° & & B I £ 55 i 5t &
WHEEREBMZER ARAREERAT

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

(@) The interest on Intraday Financial was fully impaired and the
Group has already shared the losses of the Intraday Financial to
the extent of the Group's interest in the associate. The Group
has no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the
Group’s unrecognised share of losses of Intraday Group for the
current year and cumulatively were HK$6,200 (2020: HK$4,900)
and HK$172,100 (2020: HK$165,900) respectively. Considering
that there is no specific plan to revamp the business of Intraday

Financial, the directors of the Company are of the view that no JfE % O] R (B 4 o
reversal of the allowance for impairment should be made.
(b) The interest on Zhongyan Group was fully impaired when the by RAEEEMNERE E/\_ T-_TF+H

=t BERKENE QAR 2ERE
REEW |BEBESE 7¥<}f")§ﬂ% cAKEAN

acquisition of subsidiaries was recognised at 31 July 2020
and the Group has no obligation to take up further losses.
The amounts of the Group's unrecognised share of losses of FERRARABERDMEHREEENEIE
Zhongyan Group for the current year and cumulatively were DR 51,514,000 T (ZE=F E
HK$1,514,000 (2020: HK$1,135,000) and HK$2,649,000 1,135,000/ 7T) }2,649,000/ 7T (ZF =
(2020: HK$1,135,000). T4 11,135,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2238 N ES
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE T EEE
INCOME
2021 2020
—B--F —ZT-FTF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FATT
Listed investments: LEHRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB L TMRRAE 5 3,505 2,909
— Equity securities listed in the PRC — B LT E AR AR 5 - 8,266
3,505 11,175
The movement in the fair value of equity securities are as BRAZFZ A FEEHHOT
follows:
HK$'000
FHEIT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_ZTF—H—H 6,369
Recognised in other comprehensive income P EL 2 T UK a5 7 AR 4,353
Exchange realignment VE A 453
At 31 December 2020 R-EB_TF+_-_RA=1+—H 11,175
Recognised in other comprehensive expenses REAM 2 X ER (7,789)
Exchange realignment PE 5 3 & 119
At 31 December 2021 N—_E-—F+=-_A=+—H 3,505
It represents the Group's investments in listed equity HiEAEEREEEREATFEFAREM
securities designated as FVTOCI. The Group does not intend THKBEN ETRAZFFIRE - ANEE
to dispose of these investments in the near future. BERNEHRALEZERE -
The details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note ANFEFEZFBREES VB HREN T
51(i) to the consolidated financial statements. S51() I EE -
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE BN FEFAERNEHE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
—B--F T TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted investments funds (Note a) FELMEERES (MisEa) 4,866 19,959
Early redemption option on convertible REBEL A RREREEE
notes (Note 35) (H$5E35) 16,025 15,380
Profit guarantee and incentive payment (Note b) & FI4R & M BB & (M #Eb) 144,513 26,309
Unlisted trust fund JEMETRES = 244
165,404 61,892
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDTA:
Current assets MEBEE 20,891 35,583
Non-current assets ERBEE 144,513 26,309
165,404 61,892
Notes: P& -

(@) As at 31 December 2021, the balance of HK$4,866,000 (2020:
HK$18,264,000) represents the unlisted investment fund
established in the Cayman Islands which primary objectives
are to provide returns through pursuing different strategies,
investing primarily in equity and equity related instruments of
companies listed in Hong Kong and PRC. During the year, the
Group redeemed part of the fund and received the principal of
HK$15,000,000 (2020: HK$10,000,000) and recognised a gain
on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL of HK$1,032,000 (2020:
HK$579,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

BE_Z-—F+_-_A=1T—HIFE

BIEAFEFABRNESHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) = (%)
Notes: (Continued) Mz (48)
(@) (Continued) @ (&)

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of approximately
HK$1,695,000 (equivalent to RMB1,427,000) represents the
Group's interest in the privately-offered unlisted investment
fund established in the PRC. During the year, the Group
redeemed the fund and received approximately HK$542,000
(equivalent to RMB450,000) (2020: Nil) and recognised a loss
on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL of HK$1,177,000 (2020:
HK$NIl).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an unrealised gain
of HK$570,000 (2020: HK$179,000) arising from fair value
changes in unlisted investment fund established in Cayman
Islands was recognised in profit or loss.

(b) The balance represents the profit guarantee and incentive

payment in relation to the acquisition of Xin Yunlian Investment
Limited (“Xin Yunlian”) and its subsidiaries and associates (“Xin
Yunlian Group”) as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the fair value
change of HK$118,204,000 (2020: HK$1,184,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

NZE-FF+-A=+—8 ZEHY
#1,695,0007% 7T (AEE MK AR 1,427,000
TL) HEAEERPRKMAEI LT
REESPHNRE - RAFE AEEE
[ E 4 3 W EL49542,0008 7T (HHERAR
#450,000L) (Z2E 2 F &) LER

HERAFENARS Zimmﬁﬁmﬁia
1,177,000 L (ZE=ZFF &) °

HE-_T-_—F+_A=+—HLEFE"
ARFAEHERIMIELMEEES AT
BEE B M EE 2 KB HIWE570,000% 7T
—ZT =T :179,000/870) B R BE A FE

uz7J°

IR A B TS RR MY REA0PT IR R - X A& BR
BREHREBREARQR ([FHEH])
REMBARMBERR (KERIHE
B ) s MRE LB

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE"
NFEEEN18,204,0008 L (T ==
11,184,000 L) BN B HER -

R EENFERNGREMBRRME
51() % F& o

The details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note
51(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

24.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

24 R WS 75X 2 F B,

2021 2020

B _—T_TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHEIT

Other loans HibhE % 565,263 513,052
Less: Impairment allowance BB R (222,965) (153,114)
342,298 359,938

Other loans are denominated in RMB made to independent
third parties, of which approximately HK$282,106,000
(2020: HK$254,510,000) are secured and bear interest rates
ranging from 5% to 6% (2020: 5% to 6%) per annum, and
approximately HK$283,157,000 (2020: HK$258,542,000) are
unsecured and bear interest rates ranging from 6% to 24%
(2020: 6% to 24%) per annum.

An ageing analysis of the loans and interest receivables net of
impairment allowance as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the payment due date, is as follows:

HEERDUARSFEQABLE=H
EH  Hh #9282,106,0008 T (Z & =
T :254,510,0008 70) BB B RIEF
FENT5% E6% (ZE_FF:5% =
6% )&t B - i #9283,157,000/8 T (—Z & =
T4 : 258,542,000/ 70 ) B EE T K IRFE
FENF6% E24% (ZE_FF 6% 2
24% )&t B o

RS B RIZ A 5B H B &) R W B 5K K R
B (HIBRRERER) WREDITAOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-FTF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

No past due 7 #8480 HA 268,638 289,183
Less than 1 month past due B S 2 1E A 3,028 415
1 to 3 months past due BHE =318 A - 681
3 to 6 months past due B HA3E61E A - 41,568
6 months to less than 1 year past due BH6E A ZE N R1F 27,785 18,586
More than 1 year past due %60 HA R 38 5F 42,847 9,505
342,298 359,938

178 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021
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mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

24.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)  24.JEWE ZX & F B (4)

The movements in impairment allowance of loans and EWERRMNEHHEREBEZSNT
interest receivables are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZZT-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT

Balance at beginning of the year F A 153,114 19,282

Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries BAKERBEARRE - 19,050

Amounts recognised during the year FHNEHREHE 56,515 114,101

Amounts reversed during the year FANE LB SR (5,056) (507)

Amounts recognised for credit-impaired loans B EREERERN

(Note a) EXeH (MiEa) 13,326 -

Exchange realignment b SR B 5,066 1,188

Balance at end of the year FRAER 222,965 153,114

Note: B3 -

(a) The amount represents the increase in impairment allowance (a) ZeBEEFERENEER®EATERERH
for credit-impaired loans as a result of the increase in their gross HER B AT NI & B R EE A -
carrying amount due to the passage of time.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk EBARNEEEERELKBRBKE K EA

exposure arising from loans and interest receivables are BNEERRINEZFEHNEE MR

set out in the note 50(b) to the consolidated financial = KtsE50(b) ©

statements.
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BE-FT_—F+-A=1+"HILFE

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

180

25. J1& Wi AR 75 B EL A i WK TR

2021 2020
—B--F _—ZT_FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade receivables from: T3 E 4 2 YRR :
Loan referral and consultancy services EREN RFEARS (Mista)

(Note a) 23,993 44,574
Financial guarantee services (Note b) BEERRE (MiEb) 43,328 21,744
Insurance brokerage commission (Note ¢)  RER&E 42 (MsEc) 57 45
Asset management fee (Note d) BEEEEE (M:Ed) 77 5
Advertising service fee (Note e) BEREE (Miste) 9 321

67,464 66,689
Less: Impairment allowance B RE B (40,375) (26,681)
27,089 40,008
Other receivables (Note f) H Ath e R IE (P EES) 150,738 21,378
Less: Impairment allowance B RE B (100,218) (9,089)
50,520 12,289
Total trade and other receivables JRE 5T B TR K2 LAt JRE Wi TR TE 4B R 77,609 52,297

Notes:

(a)

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from loan
referral and consultancy services are within 30 days upon the
contractual obligation being performed.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from financial
guarantee services are mainly within 60 to 90 days upon the
contractual obligation being performed.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from product
issuers arising from the provision of insurance brokerage
commission are mainly within 45 to 60 days upon the execution
of the insurance policies and/or receipt of statements from
product issuers.

Credit terms granted to customers of asset management fee are
within 30 days or as mutually agreed between the contracting
parties.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from
advertising service fee are mainly within 30 days upon the
contractual obligation being performed.

Included in other receivables were default payment receivables
of HK$144,092,000 (2020: HK$16,561,000) in relation to loan
financing operation.

B RE

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. & Ui BR 3k K E i fE W FRTE ()

An ageing analysis of trade receivables net of impairment R ERIEER B B BB (KR
allowance as at the end of the reporting period, based on BERE) NRESITHT
the invoice date, is as follows:
2021 2020
B —T-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 — 30 days 0£30H 9,723 10,560
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,998 2,174
61 — 90 days 61290H 2,125 1,477
Over 90 days 90H KA E 13,243 25,797
27,089 40,008
The movements in impairment allowance on trade receivables FEM AR SR E R v B an T -
are as follows:
2021 2020
B _—T_TF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year F YR 26,681 6,213
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries % B U BT B A RIRE - 378
Amounts recognised during the year FAEHER /i\gﬁ 36,595 21,160
Amounts reversed during the year FAERE S (255) (1,479)
Amounts written-off during the year FAME 2 258 (23,528) -
Exchange realignment ME 5, 5 882 409
Balance at end of the year FOREEER 40,375 26,681
The movements in impairment allowance on other receivables Hi RSB RERENESNT
are as follows:
2021 2020
S —ZT-FTF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year F YR 9,089 130
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries % B U BB B A BIRE - 6
Amounts recognised during the year FAEHEREE 91,310 9,035
Amounts reversed during the year FAERE S (481) (90)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 5 & 300 8
Balance at end of the year FOREEERR 100,218 9,089
Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk ERAEEEEEBREKREEBKERRE
exposure arising from trade and other receivables are set out il ERUCKIEN EE AR E Z B ER &R
in the note 50(b) to the consolidated financial statements. B WK M TES0()
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

26.PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

182

26. AN RIA RIR &

2021 2020
—EB-—F C—T-TF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHEIT
Prepayments (Note a) AT FIE (KisEa) 24,764 3,763
Rental and utilities deposits MekAAXREES 1,555 4,492
Statutory deposits EERE 255 255
Other deposits (Note b) Btz e (3Eb) 85,215 73,876
111,789 82,386
Less: Impairment allowance R E R (9,706) (9,635)
Total prepayments and deposits FENFIERIECESE 102,083 72,751
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MImEMS O -
Current assets & E 101,028 72,496
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,055 255
102,083 72,751
Notes: B =T -

(@) Included in the prepayment, balance of HK$20,929,000 (2020:
HK$Nil) represents prepaid data collection service expenses paid
to an associate for loan financing business.

(b) As at 31 December 2021, other deposits mainly consist
of deposits paid to co-operators in relation to the Group's
guarantee and trading business, which amounted to
HK$84,339,000 (2020: HK$73,718,000).

The movements in impairment allowance on other deposits
are as follows:

(a) F&f+FIA 45 £420,929,0008 T (T =
TFE A EARERREES N —MH
BN RTBN BRI ERBEFEY -

b) RAZE=-—F+=-_A=+—80 Hiiks
TERERAEEERNEEEKEN T
A 1EH KR 484,339,000 T (—ZE ==&
£ : 73,718,000/ 7T) °

Hip e R EREEEMT

2021 2020

=B —T_TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Balance at beginning of the year F YR 9,635 280
Amounts recognised during the year FAEEREE 428 9,346
Amounts reversed during the year FASEOI TR (676) 9)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 319 18
Balance at end of the year FOREEER 9,706 9,635

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from other deposits are set out in the note
50(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

27.CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS

The Group maintains separate trust accounts with licensed
banks to hold clients" monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies
as cash held on behalf of customers under current assets
recognised the corresponding accounts payable to respective
clients as stipulated under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO"). The Group is not allowed to use
the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations under the
SFO.

28.RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Restricted bank deposits represent the guarantee under its
business pledged customer deposits received under tripartite
custodian agreements among the online lending platforms,
guarantee customers and the Group under its guarantee
business. For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the Group's restricted bank deposits with banks
have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

As 31 December 2021, certain restricted bank deposits
of RMB3,150,000 (approximately HK$3,863,000) (2020:
RMB3,305,000 (approximately HK$3,925,000)) in reputable
PRC banks have been frozen by the court.

27.

28.

RPESRMERERAF

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE
REFHENIAE

AREBRFERITHAKBILETERS A
FERABRBEERETELZEPRR
AEEERRZEEFPRANERRBEE
BTN ZREPHANAES URBEFEE
HREEHRN (TFEFRBEERD]) 28
EoHERABRNTEREF ZHBERER-R
BEZEHEGRD AEETABHEER
RENEEREBHER-

SR HIERITER

RRHRITERIEC WEREHRELE
E¥E EREPEAKEIT M=
EmREFNEFPER -REARERE
KM AEENXRHIEITFRZ AR
MRS FEYR MR-

N-ZZE-—F+-_A=+—H8 NP EHREF
BRITRITHETZRHBITERARE
3,150,0007T ( #93,863,000& 1) (ZE =
T4 A R #3,305,0007T (493,925,000
T0) ) B AT R & o

— T —

B _ATER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

29.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9.0 MREFEY
For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated cash flow MEIGeReERERMs RekBE:
statements, cash and cash equivalents include cash and the ZEVEERERRIGHRE=A LA
following balance with an original maturity within 3 months: BYIA T A5 ER
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Bank balance and cash RITESRRRE 42,722 75,990
National Debt Reverse Repurchase products Bl {& i [B] B & 5,214 14,251
Total HEt 47,936 90,241
30.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES, 30. T RREN - MR 3018 - B2
DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS Wz & K IERTE A
2021 2020
B —T-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Trade payables from: TOESE 2 BN ARFR
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BHERXHER: (MiFa)
— Cash clients - ReEP 346 432
— Margin clients - REBEESEF 425 641
Insurance brokerage service (Note b) R & 42 AR TS (M9aEb) 227 238
Total trade payables JE 1~ BR SR 4B 2R 998 1,311
Accrued expenses st E R 18,398 12,510
Deposits received (Note ¢) Bl EZEE (MisEc) 71,605 123,410
Other payables H th & 1~ :RIE 25,856 32,433
Total other payables, deposits received H N FKIE - 2 iR E &
and accruals JEEt B B4 115,859 168,353
Total trade payables, other payables, JE A BR R - L B A5 BRIE
deposits received and accruals Bl EZe RERTE R EHE 116,857 169,664
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

30.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES,
DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Trade payables to securities brokerage clients represent the
monies received from and repayable to brokerage clients in
respect of the trust and segregated bank balances received
and held for clients in the course of the conduct of regulated
activities. However, the Group does not have an enforceable
right to offset these payables with the deposits placed.

The majority of the trade payables balance are repayable on
demand except for certain balances relating to margin deposits
received from clients for their trading activities under the
normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the
required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The settlement terms of trade payables, except for margin
clients, arising from the securities brokerage business are two
business days after trade date.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of the securities business.

Trade payables arising from the provision of insurance brokerage
services are generally settled within 30 days to 120 days upon
receipt of payments from product issuers.

An ageing analysis of trade payables from insurance brokerage
service at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

30. /B RR X - KB E - B
WHE e MEGTER (#)

B AT

(a)

ENEFRLEEPERAERNETIRE
ABBETEREREPFHE ZEELE
VRTTHEREWELEFPREREERLE
P FRIA - AT - AN 5 [ 3 4% 7] 58 & $1T
BAIWAGFERSBIHEZFRNKRR

REBRERMNRRERARBREE HEE
REBEBEETFRRSEHCREPH
RESTFREENE THERKRI - EHEB
REREBESHFRCEBRRBREER-

ERRCEBELEZRAER (REESE
FRIMNZEEPRARZBRMIES X
H o

REDM AT RBEIMEE WAL ERE
RREC AT

— AR BE m 1T A KIR30E120R
NEE R PR IRISEL 2 EIRRK -

REE SR KA RBERRT 2 E
%

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZEETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FET

0 - 30 days 0230H 88 118
31 - 60 days 31260H 5 1
61 — 90 days 61290H 15 12
Over 90 days 90H A E 119 107
227 238
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

30.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES,
DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

30. /B RR X - KB E - B
WHE e MEGTER (#)

Pt (48)

(¢) Included in deposits received was an amount of HK$56,955,000 (0 BUYWEUZEH 56,955,000 (ZEF
(2020: HK$110,873,000) which was received from customers %:110,873,00008 L) WA E B A& F ¢
or third parties as collateral security for the financial guarantees EZFWBREATEER LN EERDY
issued by the Group. These deposits will be refunded to the EHR -ZEREBENERERSNERE
customers or third parties upon expiry of the corresponding RETEPAE=F - BEGH ZZiZ
guarantee contracts. According to the contracts, these deposits STEHBER —FREER -

are expected to be settled within one year.
31.LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 31.Ft&IEEFREE

Notes: (Continued)

2021 2020
=B —F C—T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Deferred income B IE R A 8 8
Provision for guarantee losses EREBRE 359,917 231,286
359,925 231,294

Movement analysis of provision for guarantee losses: EREBBEZH N
2021 2020
—EB-—F C—T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FYEEER 231,286 94,536
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries & B UKEEK B A RIAE - 7,835
Amount recognised during the year FARRZ R 120,977 122,544
Amount written off during the year FAMIEz &5 - (541)
Exchange realignment ME W R 7,654 6,912
Balance at end of the year FREH 359,917 231,286

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from guarantee issued are set out in the
note 50(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

BRAAREEERRMEEBE R L ERD

=¥ 50(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

“5
32.BORROWINGS .68
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank loans (Note a) RITENR (Mista) 119,010 109,259
Other loans (Note b) Hip &R (Ktitb) 122,871 23,167
241,881 132,426
Bank loans Other loans
RITER HitEX
31/12/2021 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—EZ—F —TTF —E=Z-F —TZTF
+=A=t+—-H +=ZA=+—HB +=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
T FHET FEx FHET
Carrying amount repayable: R T B E R AR E
Within one year —&RQ 63,799 49,879 - 23,167
More than one year, but not —FAEEMEUA
exceeding two years 21,471 11,876 122,871 -
More than two years, but not MEA EEBREURA
exceeding five years 33,740 47,504 - -
119,010 109,259 122,871 23,167
Less: Amounts shown under WREBEEINTZEHE
current liabilities (63,799) (73,046) - -
55,211 36,213 122,871 23,167
Notes: B =T -

(@ The bank loans of RMB70,000,000 (approximately

(@ BMITERARY70,000,0005T (&

HK$85,883,000) (2020: RMB65,000,000 (approximately
HK$77,194,000)) are secured by the pledge of the Group's
assets as set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements which carry effective interest rates of 4.95% to
6.37% (2020: 4.95% to 6.37%) per annum. The remaining
bank loan of RMB27,000,000 (approximately HK$33,127,000)
(2020: RMB27,000,000 (approximately HK$32,065,000)) bears
interest at fixed rate of 7.5% (2020: 7.5%) per annum, is
guaranteed by the director of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group and secured by a property provided by an
independent third party , and is repayable within one year.

(b) The other loans bear interest at fixed rates ranging from

10% to 10.55% (2020: 10% to 10.55%) per annum and are
unsecured.

85,883,000 L) (ZE_TF: ARK
65,000,0007T (4977,194,000/8 7T ) ) A 47
BB RR M FEA2ET E A S B S EE I
B REBRFRELIS% £6.37% (=&
ZEF495% £6.37% )it B oA T ERTT
B AR #27,000,0007T (433,127,000
BL) (ZE=-ZFF: AR¥27,000,000
7t (#932,065,0007% 7T ) ) Jh 1% [E & F F| X
75% (ZE-_ZTF:75%)t 8 BAAE
BRIz EHBEARESREERIT A
—RE—EE R IRENYE R
BAR—FREE-

HMERDRBEEFHMNENF10% E

10.55% (ZZE=ZF :10% £10.55% ) 7T
BN EHE IR -
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

33.LEASE LIABILITIES

— — 7~ =

The following table shows the remaining contractual THREINAEEHERBZRRES LI
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities: B :
2021 2020
ZBZ-F —T_FF
Present value Present value
of the lease Total lease of the lease Total lease
payments payments payments payments
HENRZ HERRZ HERK
BiE HEARAE B k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THET AT
Within one year R—FR 5,777 6,623 7,922 8,293
After one year but within two years —F&1BRBER 5,935 6,585 55 56
After two years but within five years MFEZBRAFER 5,057 5,514 - =
16,769 18,722 7,977 8,349
Less: total future interest expenses &l : K 2R I 8. X 8 58 (1,953) (372)
Present value of lease liabilities MEBEZRE 16,769 7,977
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

34.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS BIET IR & B
Provision
Impairment for financial
allowance guarantee Total
HERE MEEREE mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
Cost @S
At 1 January 2020 E/\\ T-_TF—H—H - 22,555 22,555
Addition through acquisition BYENBARIARE
of subsidiaries 8,758 1,960 10,718
Credited (charged) to profit or loss ~ RAFEREBE=F A (Hk
for the year 3,471 (21,788) (18,317)
Exchange realignment PE W, 5 & (640) 3,086 2,446
At 31 December 2020 and RZZT-_TF+=A
1 January 2021 =+—HK
—_E_—%—A—H 11,589 5,813 17,402
Credited to profit or loss for the year REREZZF A 21,175 9,908 31,083
Exchange realignment b W, A B 384 192 576
At 31 December 2021 R=-ZB=—F
+=—HA=+—H 33,148 15,913 49,061

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$650,991,000 (2020: HK$600,016,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$209,273,000 (2020:
HK$196,070,000) that will expire in one to five years. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries and associates established in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

RBREBHR AEEEARDAHHEER
650,991,000 0 (T - T 4
600,016,000/%7@7%{’E}ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxlﬁnfru
R 7 & DA TR R R 2R i ) SRR - B 4 Bt
AOAREEERRAELCHEEE K
%wﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%m*iﬂimuﬁ
Z E518209,273,0008 T (ZE T F:
196,070,000/ 7T ) ° E b B8 A E R HA 45
$§o

BRIBFFBECERSR A ERBKZI
BhEMIIRKEETIRZKEBEUY
10% BB -ZHREBH_ZEZENF—A
—HE4LEY BEAR _TT+F+_-A
=+ —HEZAN - HPBEEIIEEE S
FIEMREBEERE]AHEIEL B
AREZENIMRER -AEEm S BH
TR B5% 3(10% ° Bt NEBEZE AR F
BB AR RBE ARG EN
F—A—HRBRELEZEFDIKEE MR
FEH -
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34.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued) 34 IELEFRIBE E (8)

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed profits
of subsidiaries in PRC for which deferred taxation liabilities
in relation to withholding tax have not been recognised was
HK$23,207,000 (2020: HK$15,440,000). No deferred tax
liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing

w_z:—$+:ﬂz+—a’ﬁ¢ﬁw

NEADEZFEEMNEREZE (B
ﬁm%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
&) 42 %823,207,0008 T (—ZE - F:
15,440,000 70) - M ERZSE=ERR
BB A E - 1 J5 B 2N 5 B e 42 Il 3¢
@ﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬁ-rﬁﬁmﬁ-rfﬁ&&: Rr=HE7]

for reversal of the related temporary differences and it is BTN A RARREE -
probable that such temporary differences will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future.

35.CONVERTIBLE NOTES 35. A MR AR

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement and the
supplementary agreement for the acquisition of Xin
Yunlian Group, convertible notes with principal amounts of
HK$200,000,000 at conversion price of HK$1.00 was issued
to the vendor of Xin Yunlian Group on 31 July 2020 (the
“Issue Date”). It entitled the noteholder to convert 30% of
them into ordinary shares of the Company at any time after
the third anniversary of the Issue Date and ending on the
maturity date, which is on the fifth anniversary of the Issue
Date. On the maturity date, the noteholder has the right to
convert the remaining 70% of them in full. The conversion
of the convertible notes is subject to a lockup period until
the date which the Company, vendor and vendor guarantor
confirm or mutually agreed the principal amount to be
reduced by the compensation for the shortfall of guaranteed
profit of Xin Yunlian Group for the five years ending
31 December 2024. The principal amount of the convertible
notes equals to the guaranteed profit cannot be converted
during the lock-up period. If the convertible notes have not
been converted, they will be redeemed on the maturity date
at the entire principal amount. Further details are set out in
the Company's circular dated 30 June 2020.

The Company shall have the right to redeem the convertible
notes at any time after the Issue Date, prior to the fourth
anniversary of the Issue Date.
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35.CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 35. AR AR 245 ()

The convertible notes contains three components, liability, MR EEREs =By et #xk
equity and the derivative components — redemption option. PTEMBH —BREZE - ER LD EBRK
The equity component represents the value of the conversion BZEBEH BEREZARRAARZA
option, which is credited directly to equity as convertible BREBEH#EE TRRERCBEH DL
notes reserve of the Company. The liability component of %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$%/§)\,@:§ﬁ#m@)ﬁﬁ BEEE
the convertible notes is carried as a non-current liability on ERELORTHEAL BEBO ZER
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion FHEF822% 01/T$*B’\—EEELT¥%
or redemption. The effective interest rate of the liability BATERE  HATEESNIERER

component is 8.22% per annum. The derivative component
— redemption option is measured at fair value with change in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amounts of above-mentioned convertible notes LR EENREARER ZRAEE
recognised at the end of the reporting period were calculated FEMT:
as follows:
Convertible
Notes
TRREE
HK$'000
FAET
Equity component ERED
At the date of issuance REITRER 53,452
Liability component BREES
At the date of issuance R E1T B HY 156,318
Effective interest expenses ERMNERX 5,389
At 31 December 2020 R-_ZB_TF+_A=+—H 161,707
Effective interest expenses ERFMERX 13,573
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+-HA=+—H 175,280
Derivative component — redemption option PTEE D —EEEERE (M5E23)
(Note 23)
At the date of issuance ‘EAﬁ*ﬁ HH (9,770)
Gain on fair value change NEEEZFH R E (5,610)
At 31 December 2020 E/\: T_TF+_A=+—H (15,380)
Gain on fair value change ?E“@Mﬂl (645)
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+-H=+—H (16,025)
Principal amount, at 31 December 2021 and 2020 AR-_ZE-_—F K -_FT-_TF
TZA=T—BZAeHE 200,000
The details of fair value measurement of the Derivative BEATESRH —BREEZE 2 ATEFE
component — redemption option is disclosed in note 51(i) to BENERE M RERMIEES10)

the consolidated financial statements.
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36.ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 36.

COMPANY CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

On 30 December 2019, a subsidiary of the Group, Wangxin
Xin Yunlian Equity Management (Zhejiang) Company Limited,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose
of a 60% equity interest of Hangzhou Zheng Pin Zheng
Yuan Network Technology Company Limited (the “Disposal
Company A") to Hangzhou Songsen Gaozheng Technology
Company Limited for nil consideration.

The assets and liabilities attributable to the Disposal Company
A, which is expected to be sold within twelve months, have
been classified as a disposal company held for sale and
are presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries
classified as held for sale are as follows:

SERRHIELEZ HEAT
MAERE S

BE-_Z-_ZF+-A=1t—HLFE

R-ZE-NF+-_A=+tB XEEZW
BRRWEH A EHBRERECHI)ER
RAEFT B E WS ARTRERMMER
= ERAR QA HE TN IEmERE S
MERERAR (THERRAL)H60% X
&

EHER T —EAREENHEARAR
HEEMBEBEEDEABELENLEER
A WE—T-_TEFF+_HA=+—"HZ%
BMBRAKRTORZ5 -

mH

DEBFIFHEZHBRARIMNEEN AT
WEZHEMT

g

HK$'000
FAETT
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELHENEE
Inventory BE 23
Trade and other receivables JE 2 B 3 K B A P R IR 176
Prepayment and deposit BRHRERES EW55
Bank balance and cash RITHEBR MRS 61
Amount due from a non-controlling interest JE Y — TR FEHE AR i 2 B IR 48
Total assets of the Disposal Company held for sale RIELHENEERARNEERE 5,563
Liabilities associated with assets classified HAOBAREHENEEMEBENARE
as held for sale
Trade and other payables JRE AT B R I L At JE A< TR IR 898
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary JERT— IR R B A RIFKIA 3,563
Total liabilities of the Disposal Company HAYBRBELHENEERBY
associated with assets classified as held for sale HEARNBEESE 4,461

The disposal of the subsidiary has been completed on
10 March 2021. Details of the disposal are set out in note
41,

192 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

BER_E-_—F=A+tHEXLEHNER
Ao N & 2 FBEHNKITES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

37.SHARE CAPITAL 37. /8 AR
Number of Nominal
shares amount
BB E E{E
‘000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FREE0.001E TR L B
At 1 January 2020, RZZ-_TF—-—H—R"
31 December 2020, —EEFE+A=1+—H"
1 January 2021 and —T-Ff-H-BRk
31 December 2021 —E-—F+-A=+—H 2,109,890,000 2,109,890
Preference shares of HK$0.001 each FREE0.001ETTHEB LR
At 1 January 2020, RZZE-ZEF—-A—-R"
31 December 2020, —E_EF+__A=t—H"
1 January 2021 and T -F-HA-HAK
31 December 2021 —E_—F+ZA=t—H 110,000 110
Issued and fully paid: BERITRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each Hxﬁ@o oo%ﬁsﬁ
At 1 January 2020 W_E-ZTFE—f— E 6,924,077 6,924
Issuance of shares upon RUREEH B A A& BTG,
acquisition of (KizEa)
subsidiaries (Note a) 850,000 850
Exercise of share options (Note b) 1T S AHE (PiI3ED) 1,280 1
At 31 December 2020 and RZZEZTF
1 January 2021 +4ﬂ_+ =53
—T-_-%—H—H 7,775,357 7,775
Exercise of share options (Note b) TR R (FI3EDb) 500 1
At 31 December 2021 i 2
+=ZA=+—H 7,775,857 7,776

Notes: M-

(@) Pursuant to the agreements in respect of the acquisition of () BERE B REM FA40MBE - IRIE
Xin Yunlian Group as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated = B %lqﬁl Bhaw R_ET_TF+LA
financial statements, 800,000,000 new shares and 50,000,000 —t+—HERKBEEEEZ SRREFR
new shares of HK$0.001 each at an issue price of HK$0.200 FERZETESRRKMN0 2008 TEITR
per share were issued and allotted to the vendor and the fic % & X [E {50.001,% 7T #1800,000,000%
consultant respectively upon completion of the acquisition on %19 550,000,000/ #1 A% 15
31 July 2020.

The fair value of shares allotted to the vendor and the PRETELSREROROAFESRNE
consultant are approximately HK$146,408,000 and 146,408,0007% 7T 2 4,446,00078 7T °

HK$4,446,000 respectively.
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37.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 37. /%7K (&)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) On 9 December 2020, upon the exercise of the share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.188 per share, the Company allotted
and issued 1,280,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each.

On 9 April 2021, upon the exercise of the share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.188 per share, the Company allotted
and issued 500,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.

MisE: (&)

by RZE-FF+_-_ANB ERITEESE
B B%190.188 LA T{F i AR A 18 - AN A Aid
% N #%171,280,000/% & % M {50.00175 7T
B FTAR (7 °

R-ZE-_—FMNAAA EERITEESR
f%170.188 TT1TE BE IR #E1% - N2 Rl RC 8%
I #%17500,0000% & % H {E0.00178 7T #) #7
AR ©

ENBFTZEBRORE T ERAERE
=5 RS-

38.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME 38. B AR iERT 2

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“2021
Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed
at an annual general meeting held on 10 June 2021
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible participants to recognise and acknowledge their
contributions to the Group, and will expire on 10 June 2031.
The Company’s old share option scheme (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) was terminated upon the adoption of
the 2021 Share Option Scheme. No further options shall be
offered under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, but in all other
respects the provisions of the 2011 Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect and all options granted
prior to such termination and not exercised at the date of
termination shall remain valid. Under the 2021 Share Option
Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant options to
any full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers or
directors (including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Group and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisors who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no share option
was granted under 2021 Share Option Scheme, and as
at 31 December 2021 the number of shares in respect of
options granted and remained outstanding under the 2011
Share Option Scheme was 293,000,000 (2020: 727,580,000),
representing 3.77% (2020: 9.35%) of the issued shares
of the Company. As at the date of this report, the number
of shares available for issue under the 2021 Share Option
Scheme is 777,585,762 (As at the date of 2020 annual
report: 687,191,917), representing approximately 10% (As at
the date of 2020 annual report: 8.84%) of the total number
of issued shares of the Company.
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BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE
38.fE ARt AT 8l ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

38.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by

BHE-_Z—

—E+=A=+—BILFE

employees and consultants during the year ended BENERMAFAEARARGIBRENZEEH
31 December 2021 are set out below: IR
Number of share options
BREHE
As at As at Exercise
1 January Lapsed 31 December price
Category of participants 2021 Granted Exercised (Note ¢) 2021 Exercise period HK$
RZB=-% BAM  RZB=-% e
SEATEH -A-H BR Bif (K& +ZA=t-B f7EH# B
Category I Employees
Bl EE
20.3.2018 91,500,000 = (500,000) (91,000,000) = 20.3.2018-19.3.2021 (Note a) 0.188
—E-\f=AZ+H “Z-N\E=A=t+H%E
ZZZ-E=A1+NA (Mia)
30.12.2020 142,300,000 - - (7,000,000) 135,300,000 30.12.2021-29.12.2025 (Note b) 0.200
“E-ZFE+-R=1H —E-—-f+-f=1+RZE
“ECRETCACTAA
(fitstb)
Category Il: Consultants
RN B
20.3.2018 336,080,000 - - (336,080,000) - 20.3.2018-19.3.2021 Note (a) 0.188
—Z-\E=AZ+A —Z-\F=A=t+RA%E
ZRC-EZATAR (W)
30.12.2020 150,000,000 - - - 150,000,000 30.12.2021-29.12.2025 (Note b) 0.200
ZEZZETZA=TH ZE-F+ZA=tHE
“ECRET-ACTAR
(fitsEb)
Category llI: Directors
Bl -ES
30.12.2020 7,700,000 = S S 7,700,000 30.12.2021-29.12.2025 (Note b) 0.200
ZECRETCAZTH “Eo-F+t-A=tRE
ZECREFCAZHAR
iG]
Total 727,580,000 - (500,000) (434,080,000) 293,000,000
&t
Weighted average exercise price 0.193 - 0.188 0.188 0.200

MEFBEE
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38.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 38. B MEET 2 (@)
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HIEE"

Movements of the Company’s share options held by

employees and consultants during the year ended BENERMAFAEARARGBRENZEEEH
31 December 2020 are set out below: N
Number of share options
BREHE
As at As at Exercise
1 January Lapsed 31 December price
Category of participants 2020 Granted Exercised (Note ¢) 2020 Exercise period HK$
R-B=-% BA%  RZBZEE T\
SEALER -B-A 2R [EXix;d (W) +ZA=+-B 7S BT
Category I: Employees
B8
20.3.2018 104,500,000 - (1,280,000) (11,720,000) 91,500,000 20.3.2018-19.3.2021 (Note a) 0.188
ZF-\$¥=A=tH —Z-\F=A=t+RH%E
ZEZ-E=A1NA (KzFa)
30.12.2020 - 142,300,000 - - 142,300,000 30.12.2021-29.12.2025 (Note b) 0.200
ZE-RETA=TR “EC-H+-A=tHE
“ECRETCAZTAA
(fitstb)
Category II: Consultants
Bl B
2032018 336,080,000 = = - 336080000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 Note (3) 0.188
ZF-\¥=A=tH —Z-\F=A=t+RH%E
ZEZ-EZATAE (MiE@)
30.12.2020 - 150,000,000 - - 150,000,000 30.12.2021-29.12.2025 (Note b) 0.200
ZERETA=TR “EC-H4-A=tHE
ZECRETCAZTAA
(fitstb)
Category llI: Director
Al -E3
30.12.2020 - 7,700,000 - - 7,700,000 30.12.2021-29.12.2025 (Note b) 0.200
“ZRETAZTR “E-H+-A=tHE
“ECRETCAZTAA
(fitstb)
Total 440,580,000 300,000,000 (1,280,000) (11,720,000) 721,580,000
it
Weighted average exercise price 0.188 0.200 0.188 0.188 0.193
METHTREE
Notes: Mz -

(@ On 20 March 2018, the Company granted options to subscribe
for a total of 457,580,000 shares under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme to employees and consultants of the Group. The validity
period of the options is 36 months from the date of grant of
the options, that is from 20 March 2018 to 19 March 2021.
The options will entitle the grantees to subscribe for a total of
457,580,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each at an exercise price
of HK$0.188 per share.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before
20 March 2018, the date of grant was HK$0.187.
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For the year ended

38.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) On 30 December 2020, the Company granted options to
subscribe for a total of 300,000,000 shares under the 2011
Share Option Scheme to employees and consultants of the
Group. The validity period of the options was 60 months from
the date of grant of the options, that is from 30 December
2020 to 29 December 2025. The options entitled the grantees
to subscribe for a total of 300,000,000 new shares of HK$0.001
each at an exercise price of HK$0.200 per share. The number
of share options that each grantee can exercise each year
during 30 December 2021 to 29 December 2025 (the “Exercise
Period”) shall not exceed one third of the share options granted
to such grantees, except that the maximum number of share
options that each grantee can exercise during the last year of
the Exercise Period shall be all remaining share options granted
to grantees that have not been exercised.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before
30 December 2020, the date of grant was HK$0.199.

(c) The share options were forfeited or lapsed due to resignation of
employees and consultants during the year.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a Binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted and the following inputs to the model:

mE M BRRME

31 December 2021 BE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
38. AR AT 8 ()
BzE: (&)

by RZE-_ZFBF+_A=+RH KXAFIRE
—E——FEREFERASEEE LE
sl 5% ) B R 4 LA 52 B8 & $£300,000,000% %
m-BREZEXIAABRERT B
HE60E A (I E-FEF+_-A=+8
E-T-_RE+-_A=t+hB) HBRESE
BT AR AR AT EE & 1%0.200%5 7T
R B4 $£300,000,0004% & % 1 {E0.0017%
TTZHBD - FEBRARE_—F+=
A=+BZz_ZEZ_AF+-A=-+hH
(I{TEB]) BFATENBERESE TG
AR TZEARANBREN =22 —
HERITFEH s RBFESERANITEZ
BRESGAHEEAARTZERARAZN
RIEITE 2 T BRI -

ARFARAREE-B-BEF A=+
B (BN iH B9 B 4915 (B 50,1907 7T -

(0 BRESRKIXZ HTEFRNEERE
A B (E -

RO AREEENBREZ 2 TFETIR
B AR - AEAREEEL G

I B R B IR 0 BB R PR IR D A6 S A6k £

TR PR B I A BUR

30 December 20 March

2020 2018

e —F-N\F

+ZA=tH =A=+H

Fair value (HK$) NFE(BT) 0.02 0.09
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (BT) 0.200 0.188
Share price at the date of grant (HK$) REFLHBHORE (BT) 0.199 0.187
Dividend yield (%) IR B A (%) - -
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA K 18 (%) 54.00 78.10
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 [ B A1) 3R (%) 0.368 1.627
Expected life of options (years) TEEIRE AR (F) 5.000 3.000
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38.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 38. B MEET 2 (@)

The expected life of the options is based on the contractual
life and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair value of the share options granted on 30 December
2020 was HK$7,081,000. The fair value per option granted
was HK$0.02. The Group recognised the share-based
payment expense of HK$4,599,000 (2020: HK$13,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

BRERHFHIOREBEAOFHEE K
WRF RE R MITEER T - BHIK I8
RERFESL N B AARKREZHEZENRER &
ABRERER-

REBEE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE"
BER B E R FEA7,081,000%8 7T
FHERLBERENDFER02EBTL
REBEE_E-_—F+_HA=+—HIFE"-
A& B RER AR D 32 (- FRIEF 74,599,000
BT (ZZTE T :13,00087T) °

39.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 39. 3R K48 K51 5]

The Group is required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme, the MPF Scheme, in respect of its employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Both the Group and its employees contribute 5% of
the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme. The maximum
contribution for each employee is limited to HK$18,000
(2020: HK$18,000) per annum. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

The employees of PRC subsidiaries are members of defined
contribution plans organised by the municipal and provincial
government authorities in the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to make monthly contributions to these plans at
a fixed percentage of the employee’s basic salary. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme in the PRC is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

Contributions to the retirement benefit schemes for the year
amounted to HK$4,891,000 (2020: HK$4,249,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 July 2020, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Purchaser”) completed the acquisition (the
" Acquisition”) of Xin Yunlian Group (the “Completion”). Xin
Yunlian Group is principally engaged in provision of financial
referral and loan financing services in the PRC.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated
16 November 2019 (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement dated 29 June 2020), the assets to be acquired
by the Company are the entire issued share capital of Xin
Yunlian and shareholder’s loan owing by Xin Yunlian Group
to the vendor at the date of Completion.

The aggregate consideration is HK$360,000,000, which
should be satisfied by the Purchaser by issuance of
convertible notes with principal amount of HK$200,000,000
by the Company and 800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2
each of the Company in the amount of HK$160,000,000.

As part of the Acquisition, if the aggregate audited net profit
after tax attributable to the Company of Xin Yunlian Group
for the five years ending 31 December 2024 (the “Actual
Profit”), is less than RMB153,000,000 (the “Guaranteed
Profit”), the vendor and vendor guarantor will compensate
the Company for the shortfall for an amount equivalent to
the difference between the Guaranteed Profit and the Actual
Profit multiplied by 1.2 times. For avoidance of doubt, if the
Actual Profit is less than or equals to zero, the Actual Profit is
deemed at zero. In such event, the Company shall have the
right to deduct the shortfall from the respective convertible
notes at maturity date.

To incentivize the vendor to contribute in the development
of Xin Yunlian Group, the Company agreed to issue to
the vendor additional convertible notes equivalent to the
difference between the Actual Profit and the Guarantee Profit
multiplied by 0.2 times to 0.8 times based on the Actual
Profit to settle the incentive payment, or pay the vendor in
cash if the Actual Profit (subject to a cap of RMB612 million)
exceeds the Guaranteed Profit.

40. B T /8 1~ )

RZE-_ZEF+A=1+—H AxQF2E
EMBARI([ER]) TR WEHER S
B (TWEEE]) (IEK]) HEBHEE
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AR 75 ©

REEHA-ZE-—NFt AT HANE
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B mEmT) AR BEENE
ERRTEK BN ER 280 BITRA R
EBMREBRENHNBRRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. 1 BBHIB 2 A (:)

The Company issued and allotted 50,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.2 each amounting to HK$10,000,000 in aggregate
to the consultant (the “Consultant”) in accordance with the
consultancy service agreement entered into by the Company,
the Purchaser and the Consultant, who provided consultancy
services to the Group, in relation to the Acquisition (the
“Consultancy Agreement”). The Consultant undertook
that if the Actual Profit falls short of the Guaranteed Profit,
the Consultant irrevocably assigns the Company to sell the
50,000,000 ordinary shares, and the sale proceeds will be
applied to compensate the Company for the shortfall. The
Consultant has irrevocably undertaken to the Company
that the Consultant will not sell, transfer or dispose of the
50,000,000 ordinary shares (i) within five years after the
issue of the 50,000,000 ordinary shares; or (ii) until the
Guaranteed Profit is satisfied, whichever is later.

The vendor has irrevocably undertaken to the Company that
he will not sell, transfer or dispose of the issued 800,000,000
ordinary shares within one year after the issue of the
800,000,000 ordinary shares.

The fair value of the 800,000,000 consideration ordinary
shares issued and allotted to the vendor and 50,000,000
ordinary share issued and allotted to the Consultant as
at 31 July 2020 are HK$146,408,000 and HK$4,446,000
respectively which is based on the valuation performed by
an independent professional valuer, using an option pricing
model.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 31 July 2020 and circular dated 30 June 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following table summarises the fair value of assets and
liabilities of Xin Yunlian Group recognised at 31 July 2020:

40. W FE BT B 1~ A ()

TREA T HEMEEE
St HERNEENRBENAFE:

—T—F
_— < — =<

F+tA

HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% HWE KRR 3,183
Right-of-use assets ERAERE 497
Intangible assets mEE -
Interest in associates REEE N R 2w -
Deferred tax assets EETHIBEE 10,718
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables JFE LS BR R % EL i UK SR IR 26,521
Loans and interest receivables ERE R KT E 147,997
Prepayment and deposits BNIENIRE 3,415
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAVEGFAEBERNESREE 1,825
Loans to and interest receivables from ERT—HEEERERE R EWEF S
a non-controlling interest 59,612
Loans to and interest receivables from ERT R E R T RERETE
an associate 17,768
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFeEED 31,912
Assets classified as held for sale DERFBIELENEE 5,211
308,659
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables JE=t & A K H fh B 5RIB (16,280)
Amount due to a shareholder B — R IRERFKIA (59,620)
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE 1< FE 152 AR 2 SR IB (9,332)
Amount due to group companies ET & E R RIFIA (7,240)
Lease liabilities HEBE (382)
Liabilities from financial guarantees BEEREE (7,835)
Borrowings BE (77,503)
Tax payables JE 1~ 58 18 (3,499)
Liabilities associated with assets classified HAOEARELENEERBENEE
as held for sale (4,145)
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Lease liabilities MEaE (171)
Net identifiable assets at fair value BAFEIRNTENEEFE 122,652
Less: Non-controlling interests W IR = (187,571)
Shareholders’ loan assigned to the Group EHETASEE ZREER 59,620
Goodwill arising from the Acquisition (Note 18) W EBEEL 2 2 (M :E18) 326,582
Total fair value consideration N ERERTE 321,283
AFHESBERERART | S -—FF®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE"Z-—F+_A=+—HILFE

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. 1 EBHTB A A ()
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration satisfied by: REXNAAHX:
Consideration shares RERMD 146,408
Convertible notes AR ER 200,000
Less: Financial assets at FVTPL — profit B ERATEFABRSZERMEE
guarantee and incentive payment —EMRBRAE 2 (25,125)
321,283
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WESEELENWRERAFE:
Cash and cash equivalents acquired of FIEENE e RREEED 31,912

41,

202

The directors of the Company have engaged an independent
valuer to determine the fair value of the consideration for the
Acquisition, net tangible assets and intangible assets of Xin
Yunlian Group, in accordance with HKFRS 13.

Goodwill arising from the Acquisition represents the excess
of the fair value of the considerations to be paid/payable
by the Group over the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired. It consists largely of the synergies and economies of
scale expected from combining the operations of Xin Yunlian
Group.

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
approximately HK$1,464,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by Xin Yunlian Group. Revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2020 included approximately
HK$20,072,000 generated from Xin Yunlian Group. Had
Xin Yunlian Group been consolidated from 1 January 2020,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
would have included revenue of HK$49,206,000 and loss of
HK$2,735,000.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 27 January
2020, the Group disposed of its 60% equity interest in
Hangzhou Zheng Pin Zheng Yuan Network Technology
Company Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, to an independent third party of the Group,
Hangzhou Songsen Gaozheng Technology Company
Limited, for nil consideration. The disposal was completed
on 10 March 2021. The carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities on the dates of disposal were as follows:

41,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

41.DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

4. HE—EKEAT #®

For the
year ended
31 December
2021
BZE
—EZ—F
+=A
=+—H
ILFE
HK$'000
FHEIT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost: HAEEFEZEEREBEN DN
Inventory BE 23
Other receivables, prepayment and deposits Hh EYRIE - BN RIBRIZSE 5,503
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHER 62
Amount due to a subsidiary of the Group ERAEE 2 —EHE R R R (3,579)
Trade and other payables JE A<F B SRR % L At JE A< TR 1B (902)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 1,107
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—EHEBARZWE:
Net assets disposed of EHEBEEFE (1,107)
Non-controlling interest derecognised BRI ER 2 IEE IR E S 2,577
Reserve released upon disposal of a subsidiary 7 & — R M B A &) b5 8 [0 {5 22
Gain on disposal & W 1,492

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

BERLE-RNBARZRE RIREFE

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: Y F AT -
HK$'000
FHEIT
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHERE RIRITHEH (62)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ERELTENBATIZIRE R
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReFEMRLFE (62)

The subsidiary disposed of during the year did not contribute
significantly to the revenue, operating results or cash flows of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FRALENHBRARAHAEEEZ T
T F+ A=+ HLEFEZRA K

ERESIHCRELEERNER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
42.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 42. B EEF

ERARBER 2 —RBITEEMELE

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Wz EERAMBENT:
Group:
2021 2020
—EBZ-—F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment Y% BERZE 72,755 79,087
Right-of-use assets — leasehold lands ERAEEE-—NTEZ
in the PRC THE £ 22,485 22,515
95,240 101,602
43.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS BEAEATRS
(a) Balances with related parties (a) BEALHER
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHEIT
Loans to and interest receivables from  ER T —IBIFERER K&
a non-controlling interest (Note i) FE W EL R B (BT 140,531 56,550
Loans to and interest receivables from  ERF—ME# 2 Q8 &
an associate (Note i) JRE W EC M) B (B &) 1,260 7,562
Prepayment to an associate arising from EREEEBELN
loan financing business (Note iii) ] — Bt A Al Y
FE S FRIR (F &) 20,929 —
Amount due to non-controlling JE T IETE AR B 22 SRR
interests (Note iii) (B 5 i) (10,306) (9,975)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

43.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Balances with related parties (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loans to a
non-controlling interest, Wangxin Technology was
unsecured, interest bearing at 10.0% and repayable within
one year. The maximum amount of the loans to the non-
controlling interest was RMB114,542,000 (approximately
HK$140,531,000) during the year 2021 (2020:
RMB325,661,000 (approximately HK$386,755,000)).

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loans to an associate,
Zhongyan E-commerce was unsecured, interest bearing
at 10.0% and repayable within one year. The maximum
amount of the loans to an associate was RMB1,027,000
(approximately HK$1,260,000) during the year 2021 (2020:
RMB20,000,000 (approximately HK$23,752,000)).

As at the end of the year, the balances with related parties
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amounts approximate their fair values.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of convertible
notes of HK$175,280,000 represents the convertible notes
issued to the vendor of the Xin Yunlian Acquisition, and
the financial asset at FVTPL — profit guarantee and incentive
payment with a fair value of HK$144,513,000 represents
the amount that will receivable from or payable to the
vendor and vendor guarantor of the Xin Yunlian Acquisition
after year ending 31 December 2024. Details of terms and
condition are disclosed in notes 35 and 40 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

The vendor guarantor who is also the beneficial owner of
the vendor of the Xin Yunlian Acquisition was appointed
as the executive director of the Company on 8 December
2021 as disclosed in note 13(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

3.EATRS (5)
(a) BBE A 4588 ()
B3 -

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RAESHMERABRIF | T - —FFH

RZEBE - —FR-_ZB-_ZFTF+ A
=+ — B IR R s AT B 1
HHERABERIF 1£10.0% A F| X
FFEYER—FAEE-RZT=—
FR REZERESELNERNR
= IE A AR ¥114,542,0007T (4 A
140,531,000 7L) (ZEZFTF: A
R #325,661,0007T (4 £386,755,000
BIT) ) e

RZEZ—FR_F_FTF+_A
=+ —H mMBEARPENEEE
FTEEMERAEER 1£10.0% 1
FRABIEAR—FREE-R_T
T FR -mBEERARELNERD
B A ARE1,027,0007T (495
1,260,000 L) (ZEZFF: AR
#£20,000,0007T (49 A&23,752,000%
JL) ) e

RER BEATHEKRSERR 28
RBRBEREE ZFFRRERER
FEEE -

R-E-_—F+=-_A=+—80 @A
{8175,280,000/8 7T 2 ] # ik =5 45
NEBWEEEE S EEITH R BRR
Z4) kA F{E144,513,0000 7T 2 1%
ANFEFABZZEREE AR
BRABEEEE TS -_NF+=A
=+ —HIEFERERIENTER
WHEEB 2 BEARETERARKIA) °
BR RG22 FBED RS MR
F M35 X405 o

WAL A B RE M A 13@) TR &
BETERANATERKEETHEES
CEHRBEAN RZZET-—F+=A
NBEZRTARAQRNITES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

43.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)  43.F8:E A T X 5 (&)

(b) Transaction with related parties

The Group undertook the following material transactions
with related parties during the year:

(b) BEALRS

AEERANFEEBEALETTI
BERXS:

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TEF
Relationships Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
22RES REME FHET FAET
Non-controlling interest Interest income (Note i) 23,381 7,640
AR R FEWA (FFED)
Associate Data collection service expense
(Note ii) 26,134 -
/N RN & R 2 (FI i)
Associate Interest income (Note i) 59 1,125
& X ) FEMA (HIEED
Note: Mok -

(i) Interest income charged to a non-controlling interest and
an associate at interest rate of 10.0% and terms mutually
agreed.

(i) Data collection service expense was charged at mutually
agreed fee.

Furthermore, the Group effected the following
material non-recurring transactions for the year ended
31 December 2020:

On 30 March 2020, the Group was entitled to the
compensation from non-fulfillment of profit guarantee
given by Sino Wealth Vendor of HK$39,631,000. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
the net amount of HK$33,631,000 in cash from Sino
Wealth Vendor after deducting the remaining deferred
consideration of HK$6,000,000 to be paid to Sino Wealth
Vendor

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year is HK$9,058,000 (2020:
HK$8,902,000) as disclosed in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

206 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

(i) TR FE4% AR i o K Bt 2 X BB RY LB
WAR10.0% W KT8 e H
7] 198 7E BO IR R HETT ©

(i) BIRWERBRXRETHEERK
HR -

Wi REBZE2 T - Z A
—t+t—BLEFE - XAEEETUTE
RIEREMR S :

RZE-_ZEF=ZA=+H XA&EEHE
RS HBSNnoOWeathE A B EKRE
77 % AR 39,631,000 T8I # (& ©
BHE_T_TF+_A=1+T—HL
FE AREBEKSno Wealth E 5 &S
IR 4 % 5833,631,000/ ;¢ (&L A
Sino Wealth & 5 X & TIRER (B
6,000,000/ 718 ) °

HETEEEAR

FENEMFEEEKEFHMA9,058,000
BT (ZZF ZF 58,902,000/ 7T ) RN 4R
B IEHRERM 13141 EE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

44.SUBSIDIARIES 4411 BB 2 7]
4.1 General information of subsidiaries MARBRRIZ—RESR
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation  registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERALR BETRAR RAAFKERTRAEE/
£ EXBE EEREK/AMEL EMEREELS TERH
2021 2020
—B>-% i 543
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E& & Ef il
Delight Link Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - 100% - Provision of administrative
services to group
companies
MELXBRAT &R LRRA2ET MEERARETHRS
ABEEIEREBR AT (randliterated  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Industrial property
as Taicang Keycharm Storage RMB80,000,000 development
Company Limited®)
REEERRARAR e HMER IERNEER
AR 80,000,0007
AEBEHBHERDF (randliterated  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Trading of goods
as Taicang Haopu Trading Company RMBS5,000,000
Limited?)
KERHNESHERAR HE HMER EnE5
ARH5,000,0007
Greater China Financing Limited HK Ordinary HK$1 - 100% = 100%  Provision of money lending
APEREERRA A LaRRET REEE
Greater China Wealth & Risk HK Ordinary HK$2,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of insurance
Management Limited brokerage services
ATEERERBRAF A EiRR72,000,0007E T RERBELRE
Greater China Securities Limited HK Ordinary HK$18,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of securities
brokerage services
KREBHERA # EIRA18,000,000%7 RIEHERRY
Greater China Asset Management (HK) ~ HK Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of assets
Limited HK$1,000,000 management services
AHEEEER (FA)ERAR 3 EMER RUEEEERRE
1,000,000 7T
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFE
44.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

441 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

44.MT BN E] ()

BIHBARZ—RER (B)

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation  registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERALR BETRAR RAAFKERTRAEE/
£ EXBE EEREK/AMEL EMEREELA TERH
2021 2020
—B>-% i 513
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E& & Ef il
EREHN PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of loan referral
(transhterated as consultmg services RMB100,000,000
(Beijing Xin Nuo Wei Assets
Management Limited®)
IREHMEEE e HMER REEFEN
ARH100,000,0007
Spruce Light Asset Management HK Ordinary HK$5,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Provision of assets
Company Limited management services
EREEERERAR Bh EBRR5,000,000% 7T RUEEEERRE
FRRFETREERERAR PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of financial
(transliterated as (Beijing An Jia Shi RMB220,000,000 guarantee and consulting
Hang Financial Guarantee Company services
Limited®)
ERRFETRERRERA hE HMER REMERRRADRE
AR 220,000,0007
RIfEH PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of commercial
(transhterated as Shenzhen Xin Nuo RMB50,000,000 factoring services
Wei Commercial Factoring Company
Limited )
RIERABRREERAT e HMER REERRERS
AR 50,000,007
ERZNEVCERAREERA PRC Registered capital = 100% = 100%  Provision of consulting
Al (transliterated as Khorgas Nuo RMB1,000,000 services
Li Enterprises Consultation Service
Company Limited ¥)
ERRIAUCEZARBERAR  $E HMER RAEEARTE

AKR#1,000,0007C
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mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

44.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

441 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

44BN E] (#)
BIHBARZ—RER (B)

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation  registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMELR RELE KARMBERTRAEE/
£ EXBE EEREK/AMEL EMEXEELA TERH
2021 2020
—E--F “ZToTE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E& & Ef il
ERRIRFUTLERARES PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of consulting
I 22 8] (transliterated as Khorgas RMB1,000,000 services
An Jia Shi Hang Enterprises
Consultation service Company
Limited )
ERRGZRETREEARSE e HMER REEARTE
BRARA AR 1,000,000
ERBEREABRAR (ransliterated  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Investment holdings
as Ninbo Ruixin Investment 15$30,000,000
Company Limited®)
ERnERERR AR e HMER REER
30,000,000%
I ERRTRREERAT PRC Registered capital - 51% - 51%  Investment holdings
"(transliterated as Zhejiang Xin RMB100,000,000
Yunlian Digital Technology Company
Limited®)
MIHERATRRERAEA hE HMER REER
ARH100,000,0007
I EHENEERAR PRC Registered capital - 51% - 51%  Investment holdings
Atransliterated as Zhejiang Xin RMB173,000,000
Yunlian Cloud Technology Company
Limited)
HIMERENRERARA R HMER REER
ARHE173,000,0007
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44.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

441 General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

44BN E] (#)
BIHBARZ—RER (B)

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation  registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMEIR BRIRMR KARMBERTRAEE/
£ EXHE EEREK/AMEL EMEXEELA TEXEK
2021 2020
—B>-% i 513
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Ef & Ef il
BIHERERESRB OFI)BR  PRC Registered capital - 51% = 51%  Provision of loan referral
AR ** (transliterated as Wangxin RMB100,000,000 service
Xin Yunlian Financial Information
Service (Zhejiang) Company
Limited")
BERERSRESRE L) s HMER RESTEN RS
BRAR ARH100,000,0007
MEBELSER OFT) PRC Registered capital - 31% - 31%  Provision of advertising
BRAA RMB50,000,000 service
(transliterated as Xin Yunlian
Advertising Media (Zhejiang)
Company Limited®) (Note 4)
MEREEEEORT)ARAA» 4R HHER REEERS
(Mt4) ARH50,000,0007
EREREETERAR PRC Registered capital - 31% = 31%  Provision of loan financing
(transliterated as Ninbo Yunlian RMB150,000,000 service
Micro-Financing Company Limited®)
(Note 4)
EREHEERBRAF e HMER REETRERK
GED) AR 150,000,000
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44.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

441

442

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

*  The English transliteration of Chinese name is included in
this report for reference only and should not be regarded
as its official English name.

*  Established in PRC as wholly foreign owned enterprises.
Established in PRC as limited liability companies.
Established in PRC as sino-foreign joint venture.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Xin Yunlian Advertising and Ninbo Yunlian are controlled
by the non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the financial year.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of major non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

44. 1B~ B] ()

44.1

442

MEARZ—REH (&)

fORNERNRXFEER/HSEMH
AR E  FEARELEARNEHE-

* RPBERZZIEEERE-

* RABRZZBEREERA

R BRZFINEERE-

ERINHEZRRIBEFEAEHRE
BREENARRMBLRAR -EER
BIHEMHBARNFBESEER
BERITR-

MEBMBEEREREBRAZENE
DEHES]

RUBEER BENBARCET
EAIEBES

BEEAFEREZZHFZENBL
B2 w1

TRINKNFEEERNFEREm 2 AR
BEEXF2EWNBARZFHE:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation equity interest and
and principal voting rights held by (Loss) profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interest non-controlling interest non-controlling interest
MR R FERESSENERR ARFHERERN
WEARER TEERNHY BERREELA (B8) &R Rt ERER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
S®--f CT-RF ZR--F  —BCRF ¥--F -T-%
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% % TARL TET TR TAR
Ningbo Ruixin Investment Company Limited and PRC 49 49 (13,674) 6,597 199,449 209,177

its Subsidiaries (“Ningbo Ruixin Group”)
ERAEREERAARENBAR ((BRREEE])

Summarised financial information in respect of Ningbo
Ruixin Group, which was acquired on 31 July 2020 is set

out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

APESBERERAT | =

EER_ZE_ZTF+A=+—HWE
LEREEEENTBERBEET
MT-THHBERBEAERRA
GlEESEEIE A K

T —FFR
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44.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

442 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

44. 1B~ B] (%)

MLBERERFERERZFZEWE R

non-controlling interests (Continued) Rlz#HE (&)
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEHF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets MENEE 426,634 337,737
Non-current assets ERBEE 60,327 25,062
Current liabilities mEEE (169,778) (158,707)

Deficit attributable to owners KRBVHEE AEIGEBA

of the Company (6,896) (5,085)
Non-controlling interests AR a 199,449 209,177

212 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME
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44.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

442 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

44. 1B~ B] ()

MLBERERFERERZFZEWE R

non-controlling interests (Continued) Rlz#HE (&)
From From
1 January 31 July 2020
2021 (date of
to acquisition) to
31 December 31 December
2021 ZOZO
E — 7 — 7 ﬂz
BB —F— tﬁ_+ H
A—RAZ (E\ERH)=E
—E-—F —E-FF
+=A +=—A
=+—H =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Revenue WA 137,344 36,787
(Loss) profit for the year FE (BE) R (17,109) 3,162
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: A~ A L EIEARFE
(B8 EF -
Owners of the Company RAREE A (3,435) (3,435)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE A (13,674) 6,597
(Loss) profit for the year RNEE (BE) &N (17,109) 3,162
Other comprehensive income IATALTEEAFE
for the year attributable to: H 2 as
Owners of the Company KABHEE A 1,624 1,374
Other comprehensive income RNEFZEMPEIE
for the year 8,147 14,340
Total comprehensive (expense) income DATAi}EfEZIKEfA@
for the year attributable to: (FAX) W=
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIE Z SN (1,811) (2,061)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M = (7,151) 19,563
Total comprehensive (expenses) income ANEE2HE (FX)
for the year W = B RE (8,962) 17,502
Net cash outflow from operating EEBIR ML FE
activities (137,734) (4,7517)
Net cash inflow from investing activities & EBIR &7 A F 5 187 2,343
Net cash inflow from financing activities &% /& EIE &R A FEE 128,137 9,027
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be (R RAFERE (9,410) 6,619
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45.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS 45. 7B B
DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES LT NG E @]

B>
el
S
%)
s
N\
=)
=
ST
N\
=)

The Company AT

2021 2020

B —T-FF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Unlisted shares, at cost FE_ETRR D - AR 376,602 376,602
Less: impairment loss recognised B EERBEEE (376,602) (376,602)
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B~ Bl FRIE 1,382,604 1,393,621
Less: impairment loss recognised B EERREEE (969,018) (978,353)
413,586 415,268

Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A5 BT /B A B KA 1,827 1,827

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand.

g RN A R REAEER 28
RABERIEE -
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46.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

46. 78N A BY 15 & 1

2021 2020
=B —F C—T-TF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LI NGI Lo = - =
Interests in associates REEE N B — =
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE = =
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NETE 413,586 415,268
Other receivables, prepayments Hib W IE FENRIERES
and deposits 665 848
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAFEFABRZEHEE 16,025 15,380
Bank balances and cash RITEHR IR 165 3,537
430,441 435,033
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H th fE < RIE K B ET & A 1,959 1,868
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BB~ B 5018 1,827 1,827
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,741 -
6,527 3,695
Net current assets REEEZFE 423,914 431,338
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERS 423,914 431,338
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible notes AR ES 175,280 161,707
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,793 -
179,073 161,707
Net assets EEFE 244,841 269,631
Capital and reserve BEXR#EE
Share capital AR A 7,776 7,775
Share premium IR0 %= B 2,119,704 2,119,567
Contributed surplus EBARR 64,379 64,379
Convertible notes equity reserve AR R IR o= 53,452 53,452
Share option reserve B ERE 4,526 37,662
Accumulated losses 25rE1E (2,004,996) (2,013,204)
Total equity AT 244,841 269,631

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Liu Kequan
BmRRE
DIRECTOR
EF

MBRRIEETEN T _—_F=H
“thBRBERRETE YHRATAL

REEFEEE:

Mr. Yang Dayong
BABRE
DIRECTOR
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47.RESERVES 47 116

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of reserves between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:

AARER GBS M ENEERNE
SERIMT

Convertible
Share Share option notes equity Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
TRAREE
R EE BRERE BERE BB 2 ER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T FEL Ti#n THET Fign T
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(Mizra) (Mit3b) (Bztc)
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZF-A—-H 1,969,211 38,808 - 64,379 (1,989,273) 83,125
Loss and total comprehensive FREBRZERYAE
expenses for the year - - - - (24,977 (24,977)
Issue of shares upon acquisition of ~ FAREEM B A BIBETREA
subsidiaries 150,004 - - - - 150,004
Issue of convertible notes RIEENB A RBRT
on acquisition of subsidiaries THREE - - 53,452 - S 53,452
Recognition of equity-settled BRINREEE RN
share-based payment expenses X FARBRAR - 13 - - S 13
Issue of shares upon exercise of R RRERETRY
share options 3% (113) - - - 239
Share options lapsed BRUNBRE - (1,046) = = 1,046 =
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZTFE+-A=T-HR
1 January 2021 “Z--%-f-H 2,119,567 37,662 53,452 64,379 (2,013,204) 261,856
Loss and total comprehensive FREBR2ARYAE
expenses for the year - - - - (29,483) (29,483)
Recognition of equity-settled RIARELE R
share-based payment expenses TRRBRAR - 4,599 - - S 4,599
Issue of shares upon exercise of R EBRERETRA
share options 137 (44) - - - 93
Share options lapsed BRI ERE - (37,691) = = 37,691 =
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—-F+-fA=+-H 2,119,704 4,526 53,452 64,379 (2,004,996) 237,005
Notes: Bt EE

(A) SHARE PREMIUM

(8)

©

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value. The application
of the share premium accounts is governed by the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 and the New Bye-Laws of the Company.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

Share options reserve represents the portion of the grant date
fair value of the unexercised share options of the Company.
CONVERTIBLE NOTES EQUITY RESERVE

The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity
component (conversion right) of convertible notes issued by the
Company. Items included in convertible notes equity reserve will
not be reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

47.RESERVES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(D) TRANSLATION RESERVE

(B)

(F)

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net
assets of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong from
their functional currencies to the Group's presentation
currency are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the translation reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the operations
outside Hong Kong.

REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve represents cumulative net change in
the fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI that have been
recognised in other comprehensive income. The amounts will
be reclassified to accumulated losses when those financial
assets are disposed of.

STATUTORY RESERVE

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is appropriated
from the profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
under the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Articles of Association of the subsidiaries and
associates incorporated in the PRC these entities are required
to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profits, after
offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined under the
PRC accounting standards, to the statutory surplus reserve
fund before distributing a dividend. When the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve fund reaches 50% of the share capital
of the PRC subsidiaries and associates, any further appropriation
is at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by issuing new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus
reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of share
capital.

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE

47.7% & (B
Mizr: (48)
(D) BB 3 18

(E)

(F)

RAESHMERABRIF | T - —FFH

BARERBUININEBEEFEHEIRE
ERBELSAEBE2NERNEHENE
BMEERREMZE KRR ERRNEL G
Rit -RELARBRIANEBELZER
HERBUINERBHEN D BERS-

EfhfEE

EfREEEREME2E RS ERR A FE
AR EEBECEMEERTFEZR
AEPHFE BEHEZSTEREER H
TRBEENHNRERAER-

RIE R
EERE (BT DIR) JHRE BEAA
BREERUEAEE D RHE QR ORBIE
i 8

R B A B AR B A 2 ROk AR o P B AR AR
S ZWBARREE AR ZESERMA
ZEBEREREBEFE ST ELEETFE
AIEEE LAY KR S AEBESF AT
HAMNI0% ZATEHBATEE - EEATEHA
BATESEHREDNTPRMNBAR KB E A
AR ANHI50% - IR AT BITRE R 4
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BE-FT_—F+-A=1+"HILFE

48.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

48.

BMEEPHELZABEAR

TRFANAGERERADELCABE
HB ERREMREEH -BELD
EEXZAERASRECHARKERERRE
BN AEEGARERERDBAREE
PERERENEE:

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
B8 HEAE #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_ZTF—H—H 78,302 21,825 100,127
Financing cash flows MERERE (33,236) (15,759) (48,995)
Unwinding of interests MERD - 1,009 1,009
New lease entered RIMHHEE - 176 176
Addition through acquisition FRWEMBARARE
of subsidiaries 77,503 553 78,056
Foreign exchange translation HNEHRE 9,857 173 10,030
At 31 December 2020 and R-_ZE_ZTF+_A
1 January 2021 =t+—HEk-_ZT-_—F
—H—H 132,426 7,977 140,403
Financing cash flows MERSRE 103,162 (12,537) 90,625
Unwinding of interests F E# R - 1,100 1,100
New lease entered RINHEE - 24,695 24,695
Early termination of lease REKRIEHE - (4,358) (4,358)
Lease modification MEEE] - (332) (332)
Foreign exchange translation HNE R E 6,293 224 6,517
At 31 December 2021 RZEBE-—4F
+ZA=+—H 241,881 16,769 258,650

49.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

218

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues or bank
borrowings. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the years.

49. 8 N[E 2 B 12
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

49.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements for (i) a subsidiary registered under the
Insurance Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“ICO") which are subject to the relevant minimum
capital requirement; and (ii) three subsidiaries which are
regulated entities under the SFO and subject to the relevant
minimum paid-up share capital and minimum liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the capital level of these
entities to ensure compliance with the minimum capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R and ICO.

Particularly for the financial guarantee operation, the Group
monitors regularly the residual balance of outstanding
guarantees for single customers and multiples of the total
outstanding guarantees in relation to net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group engaging in guarantee
business, so as to keep the capital risk within an acceptable
limit. The decision to manage the net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group to meet the needs of
developing guarantee business rests with the directors.

The Group has no other material exposure to capital
requirements externally imposed with regard to the Group
other than described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's
strategy remained unchanged. The Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

The management considers the gearing ratio at the year
ended date is as follows:

EARERETR (#)

AREBAE ST A TN EIMEEARRE : ()
REFARER D BED] (TR 2 BMEGI])

EH%E”J—FEWT% FAESTIHEREEXR
MTE M (i) B %&EﬁfﬂﬂﬁUIﬁTx%ﬁa
“é*ﬁi'f _Fsﬁﬁﬁ% RIZAETERE T L

(ﬁﬁftﬁléff)%ﬁﬁﬂ(f; k8 (MK

TR R T 6948 B R SR B AR J &k
ﬁ%ﬁ)éﬁ‘i\%ﬁm EEEBRABYERZ
‘% BHELKT UHERTEES L
(B EIR) BRI R R 2 BRI &
KEEHE -

g0 me 4&% ﬁ )

e

tﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ*'ﬁigmﬁw
RE-XPNARIMERSKELBAAE

@%Wﬁ%%%%% RIEEREND
@E§$W*U%WﬁﬂﬁmP%ﬁ%ﬁ
B AR BRI XA HE N TR
AEBENBRARNFEENEHEEARIA
mEBEREREFOFTRKOREDRNE
=o

B XAt E SN AR E W EE H EA
SEINERHEINE AR E K E AR

BE_Z_—FT-_A=T-HIEFR:
AREBHRBLESEE - AEEREEN
BELREEER Eittfﬁhz%i‘?ﬁ@%ﬁ
FRARDRIHRA ARIGERAE

EEERSNFEANERABLRNT

2021 2020
—B_—F —T_FTF
HKS$’000 HK$ OOO
Total borrowings e 241,881 132,426
Equity attributable to owners of RARHEE AEGEER
the Company 148,200 348,677
Gearing ratio BEXRBELX 163% 38%
Note: Bt o -
Total borrowings represent bank and other borrowings of the Group BEEEEAEB CRITIRAMEBE RKER
as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. BF TS IR R T 324 B8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—RHLFE

50. 2@ T A
(a) EWMTESHE

2021 —E——f
Financial assets SREE
Financial
Financial assets at Financial
assets at amortised assets at
FVTPL cost FVTOCI Total
BAFYE
BAFE R PN
HN- B 51 B Y 2EKEZ
CHEE CHEE SREE ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTER FTERx TEx FEx
Equity investments EEAREATETAEM
designated at FVTOCI PHWERERE - - 3,505 3,505
Profit guarantee and w R E LB
incentive payment 144,513 - - 144,513
Unlisted investment funds FLEmMREES 4,866 - - 4,866
Early redemption option on REBELIRRER
convertible notes B 16,025 - - 16,025
Loans and interest receivables EME R RFE - 342,298 - 342,298
Loans to and interest receivables B F —IHIEIEM R
from a non-controlling interest JE U ELFI 2, - 140,531 - 140,531
Loans to and interest receivables BT — M2 AR &
from an associate JE U ELFI 2, - 1,260 = 1,260
Trade and other receivables R M B 0 I Lt KO RRIR - 77,609 - 77,609
Deposits ®e - 77,319 - 77,319
Cash held on behalf of clients REFBENERS - 807 - 807
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIBITTR - 38,188 = 38,188
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED - 47,936 - 47,936
165,404 725,948 3,505 894,857
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

508 T A (@)
(a) £MIASE (&)

Financial liabilities A 3=Ni
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
g §
R A5 B
Heme s
HK$'000
THET

Trade and other payables and deposits received JRE A<t BfR K B L At B A~ SR IE
AR EWRE 90,798
Borrowings BE 241,881
Lease liabilities ME&aE 16,769
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE A FE 1R B M 2 2 RRIA 10,306
Convertible notes AR EE 175,280
535,034
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 50. 2R T A (&)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) () eMIADE (&)

2020 —E-TF
Financial assets TREE
Financial
Financial assets at Financial
assets at amortised assets at
FVTPL cost FVTOCI Total
BATE Z#E  RATERA
FFABEZ RASIERE) Ht2EREZ
SREE CREE CREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FET TR FHAT
Equity investments designated BEREATET AL
at FVTOCI ZHKE RERE = - 11,175 11,175
Profit guarantee and wARE R E e
incentive payment 26,309 - - 26,309
Unlisted investment funds FEMREES 19,959 - - 19,959
Unlisted trust fund FEMEFRES 244 - - 244
Early redemption option REBRTRREREEE
on convertible notes 15,380 - - 15,380
Loans and interest receivables EWE R R F A - 359,938 = 359,938
Loans to and interest ERT—2FERERR
receivables from a JE YIS
non-controlling interest - 56,550 - 56,550
Loans to and interest receivables BERT—EBE QAR
from an associate JE W EL RIS - 7,562 - 7,562
Trade and other receivables JRE Wt B 5 B L A e i IR - 52,297 - 52,297
Deposits & - 68,988 - 68,988
Cash held on behalf of clients REFPEBENRS = 1,015 = 1,015
Restricted bank deposits IR HIRITER - 117,430 - 117,430
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReZEED - 90,241 - 90,241
61,892 754,021 11,175 827,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

508 T A (@)
(a) £MIESE (&)

Financial liabilities THAR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R
P AN 51) BR 9
ERBaE
HK$'000
FHEIT
Trade and other payables and deposits received JE A BR K K EL A FE ST RIB A R B iR & 148,515
Borrowings BE 132,426
Lease liabilities HEARE 7,977
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE A 3E 1R B #E 2 2 FRIE 9,975
Convertible notes ] REE 161,707
460,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 50. 2R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and returns and minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed
to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and procedures to reflect changes
in markets and products.

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTOCI, profit guarantee and incentive
payment, unlisted investment funds, unlisted trust
funds, early redemption option on convertible notes,
loans and interest receivables, contingent consideration
receivables, loans to and interest receivables from a non-
controlling interest, loans to and interest receivables from
an associate, trade and other receivables, deposits, cash
held on behalf of clients, restricted bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables,
borrowings, lease liabilities, deferred considerations,
amount due to a non-controlling interest and convertible
notes. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has entered into financial guarantee contracts
in which it has guaranteed the lenders the repayment of
loans entered into by customers of the Group. The Group
has the obligation to compensate lenders for the losses
they would suffer if customers fail to repay.

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from financial guarantees issued. The Group
manages credit risk at every stage along the approval
process, including pre-transaction, in-transaction and
post-transaction monitoring processes. The Group
conducts due diligence and evaluates customers by
internal credit assessment system during the pre-approval
process. Financial guarantees issuance is subject to
approval of the management.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
Group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post
transaction reviews focusing on various aspects, including
but not limited to customers’ product markets, operating
income, assets and liabilities, cash flows from operating
activities to detect potential risks. The Group takes
proactive preventive actions based on the risk analysis
and design contingency plans accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 50. 2R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

When a certain number of customers undertake the
same business activities, stay in the same geographical
locations, or bear similar economic features for their
industries, their ability to fulfill contracts will be affected
by the same economic changes. Concentration of credit
risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results
to specific industries or geographical locations. As the
Group mainly operates its financial guarantee businesses
in the PRC, there exists a certain level of geographical
concentration risk for its guarantee portfolios in that
it might be affected by changes in the PRC economic
conditions.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has a credit policy in place for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts on an ongoing
basis. The Group only extends credit to customers
based on careful evaluation of the customers’ financial
conditions and credit history. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring
credit terms. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments and current abilities to
pay and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as to the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 17%
and 52% (2020: 8% and 24% concentration of credit
risk) of loans and interest receivables from loan financing
business was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively as at 31 December
2021. The management is of the view that the allowance
made is adequate taking into account the historical
experience in the collection of loans and interest
receivables from these largest customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 7% and
33% (2020: 11% and 28% concentration of credit risk)
of trade receivables from loan financing business was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively as at 31 December 2021.

The credit risk on trade receivables from product
issuers in insurance brokerage service are considered
as insignificant taking into account the good market
reputations and high credit ratings of the counterparties.

The credit risk on cash held on behalf of clients, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 50. 2R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREAMEEEERBEE (&)

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Impairment assessment policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amounts regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market conditions.

The management is responsible in developing and
maintaining the processes for measuring ECL, the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9. The Group
applies simplified approach to measure ECL on trade
receivables (except for secured margin loans); and general
approach to measure ECL on secured margin loans and
other financial assets classified at amortised cost. Under
the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the
general approach, financial assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in credit risk
since initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2:
Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime
ECL - credit-impaired.

For such financial assets classified as Stages 1 and 2,
the management assesses loss allowances using the
risk parameter modelling approach that incorporates
key parameters, including PD, LGD and EAD. For credit-
impaired financial assets classified as Stage 3, the
management assesses the credit loss allowances by
estimating the future cash flows expected to arise from
the financial assets.

Financial guarantees carry similar credit risk to loans and
the Group takes a similar approach on risk management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL according
to forward-looking information and used complex
models and assumptions in its expected measurement
of credit losses. These models and assumptions relate to
the future macroeconomic conditions and customer's
creditworthiness (for example, the likelihood of default
by customers and the corresponding losses). The
Group adopts judgement, assumptions and estimation
techniques in order to measure ECL according to the
requirements of accounting standards such as:

(i) Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk
of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since initial recognition at each reporting
date. While determining whether the credit risk
has significantly increased since initial recognition
or not, our Group takes into account reasonable
and substantiated information that is accessible
without exerting unnecessary cost or effort, including
qualitative and quantitative analysis based on the
historical data of the Group, credit rating grade, and
forward-looking information. Based on the single
financial instrument or the combination of financial
instruments with similar characteristics of credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of default of financial
instruments on the reporting date with that on the
initial recognition date in order to figure out the
changes of default risk in the expected lifetime of
financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-FT_—F+-A=1+"HILFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
one or more of the following quantitative, qualitative
or backstop criteria have been met:

e Quantitative criteria: At the reporting date, the
increase in remaining lifetime probability of
default is considered significant comparing with
the one at initial recognition.

e Qualitative criteria: Significant adverse change in
debtor’s operation or financial status.

For loans to margin clients and loans receivables,
the number of days past due and loan-to-collateral
value were used to estimate significant increase in
credit risk. Other financial assets at amortised cost
use number of days past due as determinant of credit
risk.

Definition of credit-impaired financial asset

e Internal rating of the debtor indicating default or
near-default;

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
customer;

e The debtor leaves any of the receivables of the
Group overdue for more than 365 days;

e |t is becoming probable that the customer will
enter bankruptcy or other financial restructuring;

e The credit impairment on a financial asset may be
caused by the combined effect of multiple events
and may not be necessarily due to a single event.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(iii) Parameters of ECL measurement

According to whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk and whether there is an impairment of
assets, the Group measures the impairment loss for
different assets with ECL of 12 months or the entire
lifetime respectively. The key measuring parameters of
ECL include probability of default (“PD"), loss given
default (“"LGD") and exposure at default (“EAD"). The
Group takes into account the quantitative analysis
of historical statistics (such as internal rating grade,
manners of guarantees and types of collaterals,
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking information in
order to establish the model of PD, LGD and EAD.

e PD refers to the possibility that the debtor will
not be able to fulfil its obligations of repayment
over the next 12 months or throughout the entire
remaining lifetime. For loans to margin clients
and loans receivable, the Group estimates PD
by the internal credit ratings. For other financial
assets at amortised cost the PD is adjusted based
on the credit rating of comparable companies
operating in similar businesses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z-_ -+ -_A=+—HILEE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i) Parameters of ECL measurement (Continued)

LGD refers to the Group's expectation of the
extent of the loss resulting from the default
exposure. Depending on the type of counterparty,
the method and priority of the recourse,
past default experience and the realisation
of collaterals, the LGD varies. The LGD is the
percentage of loss of risk exposure at the time of
default, calculated over the next 12 months or
over the entire remaining lifetime.

EAD is the amount that the Group should be
reimbursed at the time of the default in the next
12 months or throughout the entire remaining
lifetime.

(iv) Forward-looking information

The assessment of a significant increase in credit risk
and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-
looking information. Through the analysis of
historical data, the Group identifies the key economic
indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL.

Credit risk exposure

Trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on accounts receivables individually or based on
provision matrix.
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50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

50. 2@ T A

mE M BRRME
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Trade receivables (Continued) FEUBR R (48)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment AEEBFANHNASEERRBE
comprises the following categories: AT %871 -

Internal credit

Basis of recognition of ECL

rating Description provision
BARBEEESSR
REE RS it BEcEE
Grade A The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any Lifetime ECL
past-due amounts - not credit-impaired
AR RGHEFENRREEYREMBINEE FHEHBEERE
—KEERE
Grade B Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settles in full Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired
B BHABANERAPRER ERERAEE FHRHEERR
- REERE
Grade C There has been significant increase in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL
recognition through information developed internally or external - not credit-impaired
resources
C# BRABRRINBRRZER BVTHERREERAREAE 2HRHEEFR
iy —~KEERE
Grade D There is evidence indicating the debtor is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired
D& FEBRTEBACEERE FHRHREERR
—B2EERIE
Grade E There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
EAR FEBBRTEBARABRENRN MASERREEFIENKE SBEMEH

/E/ YT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 50. 2R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers in
relation to its operation. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed based on provision matrix
within lifetime ECL. Debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts
of HK$60,230,000 as at 31 December 2021 were
assessed individually.

(b) EREAREEBEREE (8)

1= B /mE R E G (4)
EEERHO (&)
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EEAEBZERRERZ — X5
AEEREELBERACEFERNR
A EETR - TERERZHPEHREE
&5 18 &0 (B (AR 15 7 8 B P T 1 2 B IR
BRRZEERBMO B - KEE
EHEEEAREREEHBRILBEEE
BEZEKBER(R-_ZE-_—F+=
A=+—HZ#KHEEA60,230,000
ST ) T8 BIFEAS -

2021
== —

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEBER HEREE BERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Grade A A#R 0.0 132 =
Grade B B4k 7.6 7,102 537
Grade C C#& N/A R & - -
Grade D D& 66.1 60,230 39,838

2020

—TTF

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BEHEEX BEREE BEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
Grade A A#R 0.0 49 =
Grade B B4k 7.1 7,584 541
Grade C C# 20.5 20,827 4,269
Grade D D& 57.2 38,229 21,871
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mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
provided HK$36,340,000 (2020: HK$19,681,000)
impairment loss for trade receivables, based on
the provision matrix. Impairment allowance of
HK$33,397,000 (2020: HK$17,878,000) was made on
debtors with significant balances and credit-impaired
debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE"Z-—F+_A=+—HILFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

508/ T A (@)
(b) tREREEEERKE (&)

1= B /mE R E G (4)
EEREEHO (8)

Trade receivables (Continued) JEWBR K (48)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL —I—%@Jﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%fhﬁ%?fﬁqﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the RZTHEREEEEC#
simplified approach.
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(non-credit (credit
Impaired) impaired) Total
2HEE 2HEH
FEEE FEEE
(REEHE) (BEEERE) # st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 EC_Z\_ ZF—H—H 2,788 3,425 6,213
Changes due to financial instruments RZEZTF—H—H
recognised as at 1 January 2020: BRzZEBMIA
FrEnEs):
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EREEERE (339) 338 -
— Impairment losses, net of —REEE (Hk
reversal recognised EREREE) 1,803 17,878 19,681
Addition through acquisition of BRBBERBARAE
subsidiaries 378 - 378
Exchange realignment BE 5, B 179 230 409
As at 31 December 2020 and RZZZTF+H
1 January 2021 =t+—BRZZ=—%
—H—8 4,810 21,871 26,681
Changes due to financial instruments RZZE-_—F—H—H
recognised as at 1 January 2021: ERzE®IA
GECEIE
— Transfer to credit-impaired -BREEERE (4,155) 4,155 -
— Impairment losses, net of reversal —REEE (I
recognised EHERED) 2,943 33,397 36,340
Write-offs i sH = (23,528) (23,528)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 B (3,061) 3,943 882
As at 31 December 2021 NZEZ—F
+=ZA=+—H 537 39,838 40,375
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on loans and interest receivables individually.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

508 T A (@)
(b) ¢t REREEEERKE (&)

1= B /mE R s EFF G (4)
EEERHO (&)
U E SR K F B

7 8. (B4R 4 5 5 1L 34
B8 B TR BT -

AEEEBFEHADEEARDE
AT AR

Basis of recognition of ECL

rating Description provision
BRARHNEEER

BN REN it BECEE

Stage 1 There has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 12-month ECL
recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon origination.

E1EER BEVAHERENEERRYBRZENERELERITREERE REABRBEEESR
B 15 © -~ KEERE

Stage 2 There has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL - not credit-
recognition but are not credit-impaired. impaired

£2ME B BT RACNEERBBZEM ELREEHENER - > HRMEEEE
—REERE

Stage 3 There have been one or more events that have a detrimental impact  Lifetime ECL - credit-
on the estimated future cashflows of that asset have occurred. impaired

F3RER BRESHZBEMTARARREREENTNFEN—BENZE 2HEHRAEEER
Ee —BEERE

Stage 4 There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery.

B4R Bl BB NEBARABRENM KRR MAKEREKEHE SEME
HHEBTE-

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated loss
rates based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged
by the customers to the loans and interest receivables.

RAESHMERABRIF | T - —FFH

ARAEFTREE YR ARFEHFHA
BRINELEOXAEBERE
TG UM BAIEE T U EK A
BHRRESWATEEERUARER
EKERERMNEEERNEFRA
FEELAR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 50. % @t T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREAMEEEERBEE (&)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1EER R R EF G (&)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) EEREEHO (&)
Loans and interest receivables (Continued) EWEFRRFE (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group BHE_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HILHF
provided impairment loss of HK$64,785,000 (2020: B AEBEFEKEZRRF SRR
HK$113,594,000) for loans and interest receivables. B 187 1564,785,0008 T (=T =&
% :113,594,000% 7T.) °
The following table shows the exposure of ECL for loans TRINTIRE -—RAEREBUER K
and interest receivables under the general approach: MEZBBEESEMD :
2021
—EBE--F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE SE2MEEY 3R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TERT FTET FHET
Loans and interest receivables &I & X & F] 8 264,891 34,167 266,205 565,263
Less: Impairment allowance B RE R (6,879) (4,942) (211,144) (222,965)
Loans and interest receivables, U E X K F 8.
net of impairment allowance ~ FBk Jak (B B 1% 258,012 29,225 55,061 342,298
2020
—T_TF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE E2REER F3REER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT AT
Loans and interest receivables ~ FEURE X K F| 8 204,832 58,997 249,223 513,052
Less: Impairment allowance B RE R (22,089) (758) (130,267) (153,114)

Loans and interest receivables, JEWE N F & -
net of impairment allowance 3B R {E B 5 182,743 58,239 118,956 359,938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12 months expected losses method, except
for the purchased or originated credit-impaired default
payment receivables from Xin Yunlian Group of carrying
amount approximately HK$7,953,000 at 31 December
2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables and deposits,
an impairment loss of HK$90,581,000 (2020:
HK$18,282,000) was recognised in the profit or loss.

RAESHMERABRIF | T - —FFH

508 T A (@)
(b) ¢t REREEEERKE (&)

1= B /mE R s EFF G (4)

EEERHO (&)

H{t fE WA R iR

MEMEKRFIBEREREME  AQF]
BEERBERTLEERS BELRBRK
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#49/57,953,0005 T ©

BHE_2-_—F+_-_HA=+—81t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 50. 2R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREAMEEEERBEE (&)

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans to and interest receivables from a non-controlling
interest and an associate

For loans to and interest receivables from a non-
controlling interest and an associate, the directors
of the Company make individual assessment on the
recoverability based on quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The directors of the Company
believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition upon
acquisition of subsidiaries on 31 July 2020 and the Group
provided impairment based on 12 months expected
losses method.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
assessed the ECL for loans to and interest receivables
from a non-controlling interest and an associate, a
reversal of impairment loss of HK$2,331,000 (2020:
HK$4,234,000) was recognised in the profit or loss.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets at amortised cost include bank
balances, restricted bank deposit and cash held on
behalf of clients. The Group accounts for its credit risk
by appropriately providing for expected losses on a
timely basis. In calculating the expected loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of other financial assets and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group assessed
that the expected credit loss rate is immaterial under
12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss
allowance for other financial assets at amortised cost was
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#HZ-T-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Financial guarantee issued

At 31 December 2021, the total maximum amount
of financial guarantee issued was HK$2,467,825,000
(2020: HK$2,738,521,000). After considering the
deposits received from guarantee customers of
amount HK$56,955,000 (2020: HK$110,873,000),
the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial guarantees issued and outstanding amounted
to HK$2,410,870,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$2,627,648,000).

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as most of its monetary assets
and monetary liabilities are denominated in the
functional currency of the individual group entity.
The management is of the opinion that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.
Accordingly, no foreign exchange risk sensitivity
analysis is presented. The significant balance carried
in the translation reserve account is occasioned by
the translation of the financial statements of the
Group's subsidiaries into the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group at
each reporting date.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to borrowings, lease liabilities, convertible
notes and loans receivables. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to receivables from variable-rate cash and margin
clients, restricted bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HItFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 50.% &t T A (4)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREAMEEEERBEE (&)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) iz E e (8)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIER (B)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined TXHERESTIIERIENTE
based on the exposure to interest rates for non- TR T BN S B RAENF X
derivative financial instruments at the end of the R MmEE - ST I REN®EH
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming ﬂir'ﬁfi/ﬁﬂ e TAEREBESF
that the financial instruments outstanding at the ErREEMRE - MEFEERE
end of the reporting period were outstanding for /\,\W*B#&iﬂfﬂwﬂi%oo
the whole year. A 100 basis points (2020: 100 basis ER(ZZE_ZTF :100&E%) E’JJ:
points) increase or decrease is used when reporting AXTR LAEAEEBEHMNEXS
interest rate risk internally to key management BB M MAE EFH
personnel and represents management’s assessment TRE100EE (ZTE_FF: 100E
of the reasonably possible changes in interest rates. B O MmABEMEHEFITE -
If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2020: AREEREBEE-S-—F+=
100 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables A=T—BLFENKRBEESE
were held constant, the net effect of Group's post- B F 725 L 18 412,595,000
tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 BILT(ZZFTEZFF:4,218,000%
would decrease/increase by HK$2,595,000 (2020: JC) °©
HK$4,218,000).

(iii) Equity price risk (iii) IR 1IBR S
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through AEBRERINRZE R TFEA
its investments in listed equity securities which are Hit 2 HBaEMEERN L™
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI. The fair value RAE S - BRI E R Z
of these financial instruments will be affected either ZeMIAENATEKAR (HAF
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the BRE)EELTRAZLFURMEZ
changes in the closing market prices of the relevant BHMIINFANBEETE -KE
listed equity securities. The Group's listed investments B EMERERBEBEIMEF
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong BEm-REEFHEZ LTRE
and in PRC. Listed investments held in the portfolio DERERREREBENMERER
have been chosen based on their longer term EHERERAERNERHIRE &
growth potential and are monitored regularly for BEFBEFERERD R EZD
performance against expectations. The management REHEGAERZERR tEgR
manages this risk exposure by maintaining a portfolio W ERZE R R AT AR E R R ks o

of investments with different risk and return profiles
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
the reporting period. If the prices of the respective
equity instruments had been 10% (2020: 10%)
higher/lower, and held other variables constant,
the other component of equity of the Group
would increase/decrease by HK$292,000 (2020:
HK$1,118,000), as a result of changes in the fair
value of listed equity securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by
assuming that the price change had occurred at the
reporting date and has been applied to the Group's
investments at that date. In the management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent price risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, and
to ensure compliance with SF(FR)R. In the management
of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents and credit facilities
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitors the current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants regularly to ensure sufficient
working capital are maintained and adequate committed
lines of funding from reputable financial institutions meet
its liquidity requirement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z —

50.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

—Ft=A=t+—BILEE

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based

508/ T A (@)
(b) cRHEABEEEERRE (&)

TEE LA (

=)

M=

TRERBEAMESNIHBENR
HHRSAEENETESRAER

on the remaining period at the reporting date to the BMAREANRANETON  TRE
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the BNSBERAGHNARTHRERE -
table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Liquidity table B EL K
As at 31 December 2021 R-B-_—-$+-A=+—H
Weighted
average Total
effective less than 13 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount at
METS AARRE
BRAE HSR-18A -2=fif Z=fAZ-& -EL% REBE REE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Non-derivative financial FEeRBERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables and ENEAREMENTE
deposits received kEkiEe - 42,552 - 12,269 35,977 90,798 90,798
Borrowings - fixed rate BE-E8 7.99% 1,620 3,240 76,134 190,467 271,461 241,881
Lease Liabilities REGRE 6.60% 321 860 5,442 12,099 18,722 16,769
Amount due to non-controling  FEfFIFIRRIER
interests - 10,306 - = = 10,306 10,306
Convertible notes BEREE 8.22% = = = 234,000 234,000 175,280
54,799 4,100 93,845 472,543 625,287 535,034
Guarantees issued BHEHNER
Maximum amount guaranteed RRERRE - 103,187 90,071 1,848,916 425,651 2,467,825 2,467,825
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZZEF+-_HA=+—8
Weighted
average Total
effective less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount at
TS \ AfEBE
BB SH-EA —2=fAf ZHEAZ-£ —E0f mERE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR TER FER FER
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3EfT4E SR E
Trade and other payables and ENEAREMENTER
deposits received kEkES - 43,412 1,228 103,875 - 148,515 148,515
Borrowings - fixed rate BE-E8 7.24% 603 1,206 79,194 67,985 148,988 132,426
Lease Liabilities HEEE 6.56% 1,363 2,680 4,250 56 8,349 1,977
Amount due to non-controling  FEffIFIZRIER
interests - 9,975 - - - 9,975 9,975
Convertible notes RREE 8.22% - - - 234,000 234,000 161,707
55,353 514 187,319 302,041 549,827 460,600
Guarantees issued BELMER
Maximum amount guaranteed RRERRE = 56,913 29,658 2,043,603 608,347 2,738,521 2,738,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZE-ZFT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 51.AF{EFT=
(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at (i) UREHEEZRATEFENSEME
fair value on a recurring basis ENRAFE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair AEEHXDEHEERNSRERIZ
value at the end of each reporting period. The following AVEFE - TREHRUNAEETZSE
table gives information about how the fair values of CRMEEZAFENER(LEER
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the AefEERN R ASE) -
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 R-ZB-Z—-F+=-A=+—-HWA¥
BEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— -t} BE=R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTHT THT THT
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at FVTOC: RATEFAEMZE
WEZeREE:
— Listed equity securities (note a) — EWRARES (Mia) 3,505 - - 3,505
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRATEFAERZ
— Profit guarantee and incentive —BHRERSES (D)
payment (note b) - - 144,513 144,513
— Unlisted investment funds (note ¢) ~ —JF L MIREES (KizEc) - 4,866 = 4,866
~ Early redemption option on —REEOTRREE
convertible notes (note d) RIBRE (MI5Ed) - = 16,025 16,025
Total #Et 3,505 4,866 160,538 168,909
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 R-_E_ZEF+_A=+—HHAF
e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 ER FE=H; Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FEL FEL
Financial assets cRMEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI: RATEFAEMZE
Wz eREE:
— Listed equity securities (note a) — EMRARES (Mia) 11,175 = = 11,175
Financial assets at FVTPL: BATEFAEREZ
— Profit guarantee and incentive —aFRERAES (HFED)
payment (note b) - - 26,309 26,309
— Unlisted investment funds (note ¢) ~ —JE L MIREES (KizEc) - 18,264 1,695 19,959
— Early redemption option on —REERABRBEZE
convertible notes (note d) EEE (MEd) - - 15,380 15,380
— Unlisted trust fund (note e) —ELmETES (Mite) - - 244 244
Total @t 11,175 18,264 43,628 73,067
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

51.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 51.AFEEE (&)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, financial
assets measured at FVTOCI amounting to HK$8,369,000
were reclassified from level 1 to level 3 as these listed
securities have been delisted.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Notes:

(@) The valuation techniques and key inputs used of the listed
equity securities, classified as the financial assets at FVTOCI,
for Level 1 fair value measurement are quoted bid prices in
an active market.

(b) The fair value of the profit guarantee and incentive
payment relating to the acquisition of Xin Yunlian Group
is based on the valuations performed by an independent
professional valuer, using a Monte Carlo simulation, which
are reviewed by and approved by the directors of the
Company.

As the guaranteed profits covers a period of more than
one year, there are more interactions to be assessed for the
results. Monte Carlo simulation is therefore adopted as the
simulation that produces distribution of possible outcome
values. By assuming probability distributions, variables can
have different probabilities of different outcomes occurring.
Probability distributions are a much more realistic way of
describing uncertainty in variables of the result.

A decrease in the probability of fulfilment of guaranteed
profits would result in an increase in the fair value
measurement of profit guarantee and incentive payment
and a decrease in discount rate would result in an increase
in the fair value measurement of profit guarantee and
incentive payment, and vice versa.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the profit guarantee and incentive payment are
based on the management’s best estimates. The value of
the profit guarantee and incentive payment varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

51.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

The key inputs used of financial assets at FVTPL — profit
guarantee and incentive payment in relation to the
acquisition of the Xin Yunlian Group for the Level 3 fair
value measurement at the end of reporting period are as
follows:

Significant unobservable inputs

EIETABREARE
Volatility S g
Discount rate SRS

R (24 )

Due to the variety of basis of determination used in the
profit forecast of Xin Yunlian Group, it is not practicable to
provide any meaningful sensitivity in relation to the critical
assumptions concerning future profitability of the acquired
business and the potential impact on the fair value changes
on financial assets at FVTPL — profit guarantee and incentive
payments at the end of the reporting period.

Time (in year)

The fair value of an unlisted investment fund established
in the Cayman Islands of HK$4,866,000 (2020:
HK$18,264,000) is determined based on the net asset
value quoted by the fund administrator. The net asset value
of the fund is based on the quoted market price of the
underlying listed investment.

The fair value of an unlisted investment fund established in
the PRC of HK$1,695,000 at 31 December 2020 is based
on the valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer, using a Discounted Cash Flow method, which are
reviewed and approved by the directors of the Company.
The assets of the fund primarily represent an investment in
20% equity interest in the registered capital of an unlisted
company incorporated in the PRC which is engaged in
property development projects.

mE M BRRME

BE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—"HLFE
51.2FEFE (#)

() UEEMEERAFEAENESHE
ENDFE(E)

Bisr: (48)
b (&)

RBERR RE=RAFEFEM
SEBNEHEH RE MR A FER

ABm 2 & BEE I MRE LB
EREEHABBENT:

2021 Range 2020 Range

—E--FEE —FT-PFEE

68.28% 66.83%

4.64% 6.81%

3.00 4.00
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z-_ -+ -_A=+—HILEE

51.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

An increase in discount rate would result in a decrease in
fair value measurement of the unlisted investment fund,
and vice versa.

The significant unobservable input in relation to the
privately offered fund in PRC for the level 3 fair value
measurement at 31 December 2020 is discount rate at
12.32%.

The fair value of redemption option on convertible notes
of HK$16,025,000 (2020: HK$15,380,000) is based on the
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer,
using Crank-Nicolson finite-difference method, which are
reviewed and approved by the directors of the Company

An increase in risk-free rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of early redemption option on
convertible notes, vice versa. An increase in volatility
would result in increase in fair value measurement of early
redemption option on convertible notes, vice versa.

The significant unobservable input in relation to early
redemption option on convertible notes for the level 3 fair
value measurement at the end of reporting period are as
follows:

Significant unobservable inputs

EIETABRREARE
Volatility S 1
Risk-free rate SRS

BIHIREFE (3R 5F)

The fair value of an unlisted trust fund of HK$244,000 at
31 December 2020 was determined by an independent
valuer. The assets of the trust fund primarily represent a
portfolio of loan receivable with interest rates ranging from
1.5% to 2.0% per annum.

Time to maturity (in year)

An increase in discount rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the unlisted trust fund, and vice
versa. The significant unobservable input in relation to the
unlisted trust fund for the level 3 fair value measurement at
31 December 2020 is discount rate at 3.4%.

51. 0 FEETE (#)

() UEEMEERAFEHAENESHE
ENQFE(E)

izt (&)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

51.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

HEz—_ZT—

51. 8N F{EE = (#®)
(i) E=RATFEHBYE

—F+-B=t-RALEE

Financial
assets at
FvTOCI Financial assets at FVTPL
RATEFA
Afh2EUE
ZEREE BRATEGABEZSRER
- Early
- Profit redemption
- Unlisted guarantee option on
- Equity investment - Unlisted and incentive - Contingent convertible
interest fund trust fund payment considerations notes Total
-REEE
-¥LTRE -FELTER  -BRARER TAREE
-RAER 2 2 HEBE  -BARE BER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THT THT THT T THT
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEF-A—-H = 1,596 - - 39,136 - 40,732
Avising from issue of convertible BRUERE LA
notes on acquisition of subsidiaries BOTRREEES - = = = = 9,770 9,770
Addition through acquisition BRKENBAARE
of subsidiaries - - 1,825 25,125 - - 26,950
Disposal/redemption e/ BE - - (1,675) - - = (1,675)
Compensation entitled to: EZARHE:
- deduct from deferred consideration  — BIEFEE MR - - - - (6,000) - (6,000)
- recelve in cash -Re kM - - - - (33,631) - (33,631)
Change in fair value recognised RERERN
in profit or loss ATEED - - 79 1,184 495 5,610 7,368
Exchange realignment 5 AR - 99 15 - - - 114
At 31 December 2020 and i |
1 January 2021 =t-Bk
—Z--%-f-H = 1,695 244 26,309 - 15,380 43,628
Transfers into level 3 BEAZ=H 8,369 - - - - - 8,369
Disposal/redemption hk=y4{E] = (542) (182) = = = (724)
Realised loss recognised in profit RERBANEER
or loss Eg = (1177) - - - - (1177)
Change in fair value recognised BRNLTERD
—in profit or loss -RER - - (65) 118,204 - 645 118,784
~ in other comprehensive income -REpZERS (8,487) = = = = = (8,487)
Exchange realignment AR 18 24 3 - - - 145
At 31 December 2021 R-F-—-%
+ZA=t-H - - - 144,513 - 16,025 160,538
APEESRERBRAR | — T —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

51.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 51. A F{EFTE (8)
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at (i) EFEUAXFEIENESHEERERE
other than fair value PANS S|
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RAREZRR REEKKT EEZ
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities THEELRERMARE EI’J BE [EIRER:ER:
recorded at amortised cost are not materially different RZEZ—FR-ZFZFF+ A
from their fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. = t+T—HHNAFEILEERER.
52.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 52. 8 AN HE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group and the R_E_—FR_F_ZFF+_A=1—
Company did not have any significant capital commitments. A RNEE KRR AW &M EKE AR
¥
53.GUARANTEE ISSUED 53.8 % H A ER
At 31 December 2021, the total maximum amount of RZEZ—F+A=+—H B#H&
financial guarantees issued was RMB2,011,431,000 RRLERREEAAKE2,011,431,0007T
(approximately HK$2,467,825,000) (2020: (#92,467,825,00087L) (ZE_FF: A
RMB2,305,928,000 (approximately HK$2,738,521,000)). 2 #2,305,928,0007T ( 412,738,521,0005%
The total maximum amount of financial guarantees issued TL) ) EREBMEERESBEAMWEF
represents the maximum potential loss amount that would FRERBOME FTRRANE AN ELEE
be recognised if counterparties failed completely to perform TR
as contracted.
54.CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES s NAREENBE
The Group had no significant contingent assets or liabilities as N B FRIZEF+A=+—
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 other than those described H AEETEEANIAEEXEE K
in note 53 to the consolidated financial statements. ZERERE VKM TSI E SN o
55.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 55. % 5 B8 =18
There is no significant event affecting the Company that have B ¥ E B R AR M2 A (I 2 RN A A
occurred since the end of the reporting period. MEBEREIE-
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHRE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
BE gz S S S
—E--f e e S —E-NE ZE-N\F e 3
+=A=+-B +-A=t-B +ZA=t-B +ZA=+-B +-A=t+-8
LLEE ItFE tFEE JI:3ES It5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET FEL FEL FEL FEL
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 284,867 392,320 151,005 152,595 130,652
Cost of sales HEKA (122,441) (279,008) (62,402) (56,703) (62,969)
Gross profit EF 162,426 113,312 88,603 95,892 67,683
Other income, gains and losses A - iz R BB 163,848 37,544 63,476 30,923 89,103
Administrative and other TRREMELHY
operating expenses (109,561) (126,060) (141,642) (115,836) (99,797)
Share-based payment expenses  BARR {7 3 fHEER X (4,599) (13) = (40,313) =
Provision for financial quarantees B & (R % (120,977) (122,544) (84,120) (1,302) =
Finance costs KA (29,244) (14,226) (8,232) (11,560) (16,340)
Impairment loss, net of reversal ~ JHEE B (NBE@) (176,049) (147,323) (18,384) (7,523) =
Impairment loss on goodwill BHEZREBE (98,549) (32,722) (111,257) (7,143) (14,650)
Impairment loss on intangible B EE 2 REER
asset - (1,618) (5,722) - -
Impairment loss on right-of-use  FREEEZHEFE
assets (12,981) (7,607) - - -
(Loss) profit before tax BEA (B8 EN (225,686) (301,257) (217,278) (56,862) 25,999
Income tax credit (expenses) EEEE (FY) 23,925 (21,021) 10,883 (1,741) 43
(Loss) profit for the year ER (BB &R (201,761) (322,278) (206,395) (58,603) 26,042
Attributable to; TN ALEL:
Owners of the Company KAREEA (202,592) (335,628) (206,395) (58,603) 26,020
Non-controlling interests R 831 13,350 = = 2
(201,761) (322,278) (206,395) (58,603) 26,042
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEHE
31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
“B--F “Z-TF “E-NE —E-N\F “E+tF
+=RA=t-B +ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—-B +ZA=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TET TAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &EHERE
Total assets BEE 1,300,600 1,286,657 786,027 910,656 1,065,243
Total liabilities BaE (933,457) (724,233) (334,290) (246,031) (350,414)
Non-controlling interests R ER (218,943) (213,747) - - -
Equity attributable to RARERAEE
owners of the Company En 148,200 348,677 451,737 664,625 714,829
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